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@ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

Statement of Financial Position
|Million Baht}

Laurresnl Asseis

Mon-curren] Asssts

Courresnil Linbs=lities

Mor-curreEn labilifes

Paid up capital

Sharehodder's Egquity

Tatal Equity

Statement of Enmprn hensive
Income [Million Baht)

oales Hevenwue

Gross Profit

Cither Ravenus

EBITDA

Met Proftl Before Tax

Mat Proft After Tax

Mat Proft After Tax Atfributable
I Egquilty Holfers

Eaming per share

Divedend paid - intsnm
Divedend paid - final

Financial Ratios

Giurrent Hatio {lemes)

EGraes Praii -".-1.-ng_|-| o)

Met Profit Before Tax Mangin [%:)
Met Profit After Tax Margin (%)
Aeturn on Total Assets (%)
Fetum on Equity (%65

Lebt 1o Eguity RHakio fhomses)
Liividend pavvoul (56 of Mael Profl
After Tax Atiributable to Eguity

Holders)

| FY2017/18
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Consolidated Financial Stalements
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ir.o
1.05

22.1%
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1,173.7
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1.23T.1
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23220
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* FY2014/15
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305 5
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2 A THE
35283
1 4258

Q447
1.968.3
28376

B ]
1.010.1
B7.5
560.9
1545
1RR.D

134

EXTERMAL SALES REVEMUE
IMilllon Baht)

Sales Revenue by Company
Ingress Autoventurss Co, Lid

Firee Components (Thadand] o, Lt
IPdgriess Hracason Sdn Bhd

I Tt !|I|l.-|r||_;|||:': =an B
Talent Synergy Sdn Bho

PT lngress Malindo Ventures

PT lngress Techmologies Indonesia

Ingress Autoventurss (indial Pt Lig®

Sales Aevenue by Country
Thaitend
Wlalay s
Indonesiz

India*

Sales Aevenue by Products
Hodl Tamming produects
alampeyg products

Autoamahan solsion

FYaoi7/18a | FY2016M17 | FY20 5/ 16

ar3a
TES.0
318.0
\ 27T
126
1RA.B
0.3

36.9

@ REVENUE STRUCTURE

Caonsolidated Fimancial Statements

1,024.5
2051
Je5.8

1.34.5.1

15,3
el

0.5

FY2014/15

1.314.3
1502
4027

17211

6.7
2569

0a

Fyan13/14

18671
105 4
|
4612
164917

201

(]
T

29129

2,359

3,158.8

38525

4,207 .8

B T
1.548.5
a1
36.9

1. 96843
15444

2an2

1.229.6
1,724.2

2048

1 AG4.5
o R R

2575

1.5 2
£ 16549

AT

29529

1517.3

1 58300

209159

1.54957T

131068

3,158.68

1.65%4.6

1,548, 7

32,8525

1. 973y

16714

42078

&304

1 AT

1dk H.4 15,4 BT
28129 28459 3. 168.6 <8525 4007 8

* The Comselidoted resulis presenfed were bosad on dwe Common

Airce e aneeplon af e Group under ngrass Corporahoh Berhao

The Comparmy wos ineorporaled on 1.5 March 2074 an

“ Ingress kadustral (Thalland) Public Coimpamy Limited

d the Group Restriedurng r.Tllll_Lh'r:-rr.'-']' O 20 January 2TS

Canfrol concept of which INGRS Group exists

SALES AREVENLIE B MFAMNY

1.0

* Ingress: Autovertures {Indig) Pvl Lid (formeanly known os ingress

e subsidiany af INGIES affactive from 13 November 2017

SALES REVEMNUE BY COLUNTRY

Incha

Maoyur Auvto Ventures Pl Lid] bacome o wholly

SALES REVEMLIE BY PRODUCTS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MESSAGE

The Board of Directors wishes to express our heartfelt condolences o the family of our late Charman,

—

Tan S Dr. Surin Pitsuwan, the former Foreign Minister of Thailand and ASEAMN Secretary-Genesral who passed
away peacefully on 30 Movember 2017. He was truly a visionary leader, a passionate educator, a Kind-hearted
humanitaran and an accomphshed dipfomatl who was respected worldwide and a great inspiration to all who
have come 1o Know hire We are very mach indebled 1o hm for af his contnbutions especially 1or s gracious
dedication and continuous gubdancs leading lowards INGES lEting In Thalland, He wlll he truly missed and his

cortrDution will remain a legney 10 INGHS

Year 201T marked a significant milestons to the Ingress Group and Ingress Indusinal (Thadand) Public Limited
Company or INGRE with the successful listing of it= shares on the Stock Exchange of Thailand ("SET ) on

8 Avigust 2017

Having manutacturing operalions spresd over few Asian oountries, roamely: TRadand, Matsysia, Indonesia and
I, IMGIHS 15 prooad 1o De recognized as the first Foreicn Compa iy B b Nstesd an SEL. Qn behall of IEHS
Shareholders, [Mrectors and M snagement we wolkd ke 1o expréss our smcens gralifude snd apprecaaton o

the SEG, SET. cur Financital Advisor Baybank kim Eng Thalland, our Auditor and CGonsoltants Sinout ther

concerted efforts and kind cooperation, the listing would never be realzed
INMGRS presence in the 4 countries are managed by two investment offices im Thailand and Malaysia

The business operations are E-II[.'I[_'-.'II'.L—'_‘l L'l:.-' B mamutact: g planis, witn tecihnical collaboranons and partmershups

withy local, Japaness and Kaorean, Hawvi g full In-house capaiities 10 9o both product and toaling Sesagn

Ingress kdustnal [Thalland) Public Ceenpamy Limibed

INGRS managed to capture significant shice of the markst share with its core products. INGHS past track
rencords hawe proven itz capabilities for excellent business and operation management and continuousty being

considersd as the preferrsd supplier to major wehicle assemblars in the countries, in which, # is operating.

INGHRS & COuragqmng perdormance has awavs Dean Supoorad by SIrong economic Tundamentals ol each

gauntry. In the gast years, GLDF growlh has been most encouradimg. 1 alland™s GDP arowlh averaged al

3.43% 0 thee fast three yvears, whilst BMalaysia and Indonesia both recorded improvements by 50, 10 the

calendar year 2017, otal production of vehicles grew by 2.3%, 3.3% and 3.9% for Thailand, Indonesia and
Fa

Indhia; respectively. However, Malaysia's total producton registered a drop of B4%

=

Domesiic Wehicle Sales in Thailand recorded an i

growth of 13.4% last year, compared o the
yaar before. A= noted earlier, Thailand's sutomotive market was at the lowest position in 2016 and recovery
1% immdment, Similar posilive growth was also recorded in Indonésiz and india, with only Malaysia showing
a slght arap. hring the penced, GELD expors has Deen very encouragimg with aboul 232 millbom undts axportsd,
malnly from Thailand, India and Indonesis, With the svailable et cagacily by all QEMs, CBL and componenis
gxports are expecied 1o be horther anhanced

The Group's best performer was Ingress Technologiss Sdn Bhd, who is the leading stamping and modular
asgembler in Malaysia, The introduction of new models and higher volume intakes have contributed to battar
revenue of 7.5% compared to a year ago. On the other hand, Ingress Autoventures Co,, Ltd Thaitand, with

planta i Eastam Seaboand Bavonog angd Hi-tech Indusirial Park Avitthaya continues (o conirbile sigmificanily

b Ave gromip 0 protitabibily

Lespite generalty positneeg perlonmances | e countries where INGHHS operales, parlomeanog i Malaysa as
taken a shight dip. This was mainly due to the temporary slowdown in the Malaysian domestic sales since the
takeover af 48.9% Proton shares by Zhejiang Gesely of China as the public is stil waiting for the business and
market sirategy moving forward. However, the outlook =5 very encouraging. Gesly has laid down long term plans
of making Proton s hub for nght-hand-drive vehicles development and manufacturing, that would increase
wEarly wolummes 10 SO s Dy S

Lin 13 Movemnbar 2017, INGHS acquinsd 100% share of ona o 115 0l cralas o ndia, With Tull controd of

the Indian operation, INGHS & poised 1o everage rom e vast potentiads thal he Indian aulomatiee market

can offer. With 4.78 million wnits of wehicles assembled in India in 2017 and potential growth of about 7% in

the next few years, new manufacturing hubs are being developed, with Sanand in Gujarat on the Indian West

b=img the latest. IMGRS 15 actively looking at these new growth areas to further sobdify ds pressnce in India,

beyornd its curent plant location in Gurgacn, Delh

Lauring the last linancial year whilech ended on 31 January 2018, the INGEHS Group s recorded révenue o
HBE 2497 billion with net prott of THEB 998 million, The revenue expenanced a marginal 0.4% decresase as

gormnpaned 1o e previowrs year with a nel prollt percentage reducad from o2.8% 1o 1.5% The reduction of

AMMUAL REPDRT 204




net profit reduced w

nainly due to the recognition of a significant foreign exchange gain amounting to
Bantl £ 7 millan in the finadcial year ended 31 Jancary 2010 aa compared [0 the recognition of foredagn
erchange loss amounfing 10 Baht 1.4 millian o e Tinanc] vieAar anded 41 January Z01H ha Toreac
srchange galnd Joss) was manly due 1o the gand (oss) recorded on the elimination of inlercampany
Daalances within the Geroup on the axchangs mate lectuabion babsesn local and torelgn currency at end of 1he
lreanaial year &% companad o the ransaction date Meverthaless, he pany recorded Detler groess margin
dervesd fram anfeendl cost redushion efors a8 wall &8 hogher gross neargin

AT IGnSs Ingm rewiy iniridieced

PrOOLUCTs

With an expected mmprovemnent in both domestic and sxport demands, togeiher with the full year recognition of

revenue and profit contribution from Indian operation. the outlook for Year 201899 is expected to be good.
In line with the commendable performance in year 201718, the Board of Derectors proposed the final dividend
of THE (.026 par share, subleot o sharenolders’ appeoval 0 May 2008, With the declargbion and psyment o
the Tad divicdaend, the andiderss yvield, Iinclistve of the intenm divcend on 12 Jahiary 2078, waud be 52% fram

[he sued and pad up capdtal of 7144860 B mtl) shares af Bahl 1 per shiare

The reporting pericd of Year 2017/18 marked a new milestons for INGRS with s sucoessh ng on the SET
Again, we would fike to put on record  that this would not be possibie without the good co-operation and

yiders and our Board of Directors

gll our Dusiness parmners, ass0ciaias, cusiomers

support fro

And Sfmpe0yess Wa really appreciata all their efforis and kind SUpPpon and would like o take this opportunity to

R NESS OUr Sincera thankes and graliude ard ooking forwand 1O your contmoed Suppar n FY201E099

e Bosrd of LDirectors

" 1 1 | 1% ) k- o N rard
Ingress Industral [ Traiand) Pubdc Gompsany Limited

groos distnal [aitand) Public Coetipaiy Limiled

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

br, Muthawuth Chatlerdpipat
2 Datul BHamal Ban Musa
A Dato L, &b, Wanabh Bin Brma

1. M ADCw Hahim Bl Hah Hitam

"

hr
I
[

M

© 0 e o0 o

Abdul Ehudues Bn Mohd Masim

Apichal Suttisium

W]

Lo ! . Tk d e 1
Sien Farah Bintl Datuk Maesl

Surin ‘WuinocharossEn

SMPUIAL HEF
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LIdas

ciusbral | s

i) Public: Cosripanry Limiled

THAVUTH CHATLERTPIPAT

AN

HU

Mir. Mulhavath Chnti

of Law [LLKL) frorm Chotakor

or ol Bessiness G

and & Cerlificats in Engls!

iihirat U

A0 D T B

ot car

Fe startad iz

intmrmaticingl s rmes, npmay J Ko

Farley & Williams, during 20017-2012. He had ean ag

mamber Gl tha Risk & anl Co

1 1282, Hae had ever workad with

i | - i . i
T Lnivarsity.  Ha alss hohds

n {884} from F

e Specl Carssrs (Law) o

icangsed: aftomay, Muf

nrala and commarciml araEs

n & Co, DLA Piper and Wa

mmittas ol The Bolaneal Earoen

Crrfzanization, Ministry of MNalural Resourees and Envircomenl brom

Hi sarves as an indepancent Lirecior of Ingress inouesinagl

Puldic Cormparny Limited ("I wnil &

and 1he Lhalrman of tha MNormanaiion

Since Decenber 2097 up to de

ol 1T 5

DATUK RAMELI BIN MUSA

FLTY CHAF R

Datuk Fameli Bin Muss holds &
ENginanrngg a7
Linkvars "r ol She

Imafyurar in

o o
Linlwsrsity Tas il

mamber & §he Aest O
1 -ard Bemunaration Commiliee

Fe N assumead he chaemananip

ommai
He gtarted hls caraer as

M EC O LT nns &l

. x P '
iveld i 187 = gt Unlvers echinalogi

wilth HPamas MEL alacomrmonioatliong

HTLHETINg

e Exsculive Vice

ricirrgtd welh thieg tarmeant of tha

PRHTE LN

ar el the

Datuk Femsl s & me

L-ommitlas and 1he Ghamman of ihe

pelore i) SapuEa

waal ol Exacutive Vice Ghairmmies

Throuph She

S6n Hhd 19ER He s aurrmndiy

ol Ingress Coporatisn Berhad, He was

Honorary Dogtor of Enginssnng

sherdlongl Maley=in o 13 Ootobar 201

Meminanion

crEsuinm CoumeTeiten

DATO' DR. AB. WAHAB BIMN ISMAIL

Gato' Or, &b, Wahab = an enginear by professon He obkmined his

Coctar of Philesopinyg ieE Enginasring [PhD] Inm

of Laads, Linitad Kir Fits CLareser

¥ Kabangs B, Balandgar

leciurar 0 tha sama

in 1884, Datc® Dr. Ab. Wahab left he university and joined

5 g el i such as Parpsaidsn Clomi

Son. Bhd ra: Holdlingg S5dn. Bho. with fus

Saper i Motors Barhad (presently

oAb Wahan sanmib as

1 Darulaman Berhed Irom 21

A co-ioungar oF Igress Grmep of Gompanies

8 Corpoeaton Barisd

selp Execiudive Director of |

Padn' Dr, & Wahab i @ memibar of the Momination ond Remmnermtio

Cormmittes & = Exaciine Commithes,

ABDUL BAHIM BIMN HAJI HITAM

UHIEF EXECUTIVE UFFLAEHR JLEL

M. Abvdul Rahim holds & Bachaion of Scisnce

Wpnaaring

d Manegomani from the Loughbor

oy, United Kingpdam:. He starfed his copesar

Litomenhil Masiomnal Sen Bhd SHECTTEAR ] m SEplamber L4 il

. whaen he then jolied Alps Elscitic (M] 54 Bl as the

Production Managar until 1990 Schseguantry, he joined Sapura

¢ Fig e 1
iri 1evd VARIOUS IanAagenen posifiong De

Molors Barha

tha tasi bming tha Dag

et Director, In Oofobar 1829, e juined Inpress Group as the

Lid, Ha s&rvas as

Marnageng Direcior of Ingress Suiovenivres

an Eraculive Diractor ol |rgre: 10 gince UL Ll

s a mamBar ol fhie Execuires Lommitkes and Ehe
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Ljres

siral |1

Ehilandy

Hublis Cosri

W Limiled

ABDUL KHUDUS BIN MOHD NAAIM
INDEPEMDENT OIAECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF ALLHT COMMITTEE AMD

ROSARATICN AND FERMUBIEAATION COMMITTEE

T &1 T i el e
Kr. Abdul Khudus 8 s Chariss
Inslifubta o

P,

AEEbunsantis |

Hnnis. a Fall
d Hifgaom
Temmtion

Kelaysian nstib

His camar stardan] a5 an ool Jumnsor of &rib

Iy

Aganunt urepur from Janusry 1876

anior-al Remag
lan Frasm -July 1
Ha was an Accounianl @l Islamic Finpnoa §

and lalar sarverd &8s

Chartersd Accouniants
Landon irom
Janusry 10 Dacesmier 1885, He joined Syardaal Takalil Mataysie Batad
In January 1966 unid SAugust 1983 with ki 1381 position being The
Sanior Finmnce Manragar. From Sapiembar 12563 tn Gecembar 19495,

char of Corporate Alfaira at Emile W

AN ARzoaiales, Cheria

e @ Partner than with Al

b

tor and ast commifes lor inch Kaemnath ¥agEng

Lomsdan in 2001 to 20089, He |5

nf dirgctors and awdil commidtes o Cono

Kr, aAbdul Ehudus i 1ha Shairman o the Audil Committes and

s mernber of tha Monmation snd Bamunerafion Caommifss

APICHAT SUTTISILTUM
INDEPERDENT DIRECTUR ALID

REMILIBEAATION COMMITTEE

LCLUMMITTEE Al NOMIRATRIN ARD

Hizillum holds BSs in Chamizal Eng

Lnivarsity and MBA. from Thammsasat L

Mt Aplchal 1= an engineer by prolession and has served varlows
companies meoluding as the Depuly Managmg Director in Abico

Holding PLC 1862

BaT, the Maenaging Director ol Virlyah Food
Imdustry Soo Lid, in 20504 to 2007, Malas Sampran PLE as the

Agribusiness Vica Prasiden yaar J00T o 200

MMamitacturing Lereclor ol Tmpen Food (Thatlang) Pubdic Gompomny

Limied fram 2030 o 2001, In 2012, he |olned 31 Energy Commparyy

Limited ang serang the company &5 a dirschar until prasen

m == a-mamasr o the &gl Commetiss and tha

DATIM SERI FARAH BINTI DATUK RAMELI
EXECLUTIVE DIRECTOR

ars Farah Bintl Lkatuk Haml)

Elscirical Enginaaring lom Universlly Teknadogl Malaysis and (=

4 hanlcder ol MBS Iin Enninearinng Mananemant imm nivers

- B

dventry, Linitad irg

SURIN WUNGCHAROEM

EFECAMIVE DIRECTCH

R, SaErin W

warenn 5 the hoidar of B& of Enginaaring from

Kirng Monghkul Liniverssy

He startad his caras Sombon Group apsralion In 1983 1o 1998,

While In Sombon Group, e was appointed &5 a commitfes o drai

ré the Industrial Standand in Fart lor Automotivae 1nd

nglyaing el spring, siabdizer Dar, (orsson DAr, oraak lining and

Sponse Lo audsT The 558l manulaciung

and had audiled Tha steal manufactunng of Mitsubish Siee

He jolnad Inipraess furss Co. Lid In 1958

and later jnined Thai Avlo Tools (Eastarm) ¢

AT ag ha Mianaging Oire:

Head of Corporate Services in 20

o Bl dewdy W T

IS S=rHoE TeERL Faa g

ANMUAL REP




@ ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

Ime crgamEabon structurs of Ingress Industral (Thailland) Posie Company Limited a8 of 31

farnuary @01

yrass disbeal | Taitandy Publio Costipany Lsmiled

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Ingress Industrial {Thailand] Pubbe Company Limited comprss of eight (8] gualified

Directors. who have knowledge and esperience i

"

the Company’s opserations. As of 31 January 2018, there were sight (B) Directors, whose names ar

Mame

1 Mr. Muthavuth Chatlertpipat

1 the aufomotive indusiry or other areas which are beneficial to

Board of Avdit

Directors

Charman = &
Incependsnt

Nretoar

Committes

Mambar

as fallows

[i¢

Homination & Executive

Remumeration Committesa
Committes

Chaiman

‘e Batuk Rameh Bin Musa'

Dato’ Dr. Ab. Wahab Bs lemail

f

Exasulnng
WrEELof
Exscutive

Llirector

mMember ATl

Mambar Member

hir. Abdul Rahim Bin Haji Hitam®

a My Akl Bhiedws EHan Maohd Basim
A Liatm Sen Farah Birlh

Lyt Hamneh

7 M, Surin Wungcharoen!

g Mr. Apichat Suttisdtum

M. Nuthawvall Chaltlerloaal was

Exscuive Mamber Member
Dlirector
lnciepanddent Cihsalrngsn Member

LHresCfcar
ExaCUve
Wraohor
Exsoutiva
Director
Indeperdsant

Cliractor

Mambar

famber

Remark

eaal atlied

To mnkain e Deslancs of S0V50) on Thaaland Faes

as Exscutive Director of the Company effective

The Board of Directors are appointed by and

duties to appoint the Compa I'_-'.': nansgemer,

Authorized directors (any twa (2)) jointly signed together on behal

from 14 December 2017

of the Company with the Company's

appalnted as new Gharman on 14 Lecember 20700 meplacing the late Tan S

gt Director and Foregner, Mr, Altandi Bin Mokhtar resigned

approved at the shareholders meesting to have the power and

sgnior executives and directors, and to monitor the Sompany's

activities and performanoe Holes and respongelities batwean the HQoard of Directors and Bhe execolive

managemen! have bean clearly definaed and a

re cotfarmanl w0 laws

reguialions, code of conducts and
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Dwring the financial year ended 31 January 2018, fthe Company had organized meetings for Board of Directors;

Apdit Commities, Momination & Bemuneration Commities and Executive Committes as follows:

nination & Exacutive

Liresstods Lammaties Hamuserat jon AT e

1 pAr, Muthavuth Challertpspal 6T 444 | 444

f:' I.:I.:1'!l k .|.‘ii.l.'lu.!:.'. |-:..-|“ru .l..".. ] = T . | -:'I -'-"i 10510
3. Dato’ Or. Ab, Wahab Bin fsmail T 44 8710
1 bir. Abdul Rahim Bin Haji Hitam T 1010
5 hir. Abdul Khudes Bin Mobd Masim 47 3 4.4

B Datin Seri Farah Binti Dafuk Hamelh 58

[l MAr, Sarin Wiungehanaen H'h

H MAr, Aplchal Suttiaiiim T 454 444

1 Tan Sl Dr :":-lu-:'l Pitsunsan |1 46

10 fdr, Adfand) Mokhiar £ Tl 410

Mobe

Tan S D, Surin Filsunean passed oway on a0 Nosember 2070 and Me Mothavoth Chatlerpipat was appalinled
as nenw Chaimman on 14 December 2017.

“Mr. Affandi Bin Mokhtar resigned as Exscutive Director of the Company sffective from 14 December 2007,

MAMAGEMENT OF INGRESS INDUSTRIAL (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
The Managemaent of the Company socondng o the definition of Securty and Exchangs LComeression B Istad

I this 1-.III-.".'l.'I'|!$' FL RO EH

Mo, Position
1 Mr. Abdul Rshim Bi Haji Hitam President  Chief Executive Officer
2 Mr. Surin Wimpgcharoen Head Of Corporate Service
3 WIr. Eddie Dzurraimin Bin E.-Jll-.iph Group Chaef Fi'lﬂl'-l;i-ﬂﬁ Officer
4 MIF, Sarawon] Srwanavos Laorporale Secretary
M. Supachal Mesnerg Deepaity General Manager, Sales & Bisiness Development
(=] I W, funamad Aol Ban Muhamao MNos [ Gaaneral Manager, Human Hesauree
il [ Wr. Warsunatus Shaher Bin sonir | Laameral Manager, Corpocais Commeuinseation

Managemenl Council {"MC"}

Mansagement Gouncl was fommed 1o ansara thal he business of the companies within the Groug n T rawibandd
Madaysia, Indonesia and India Glow e Same direchion 11 2150 oflered the Group' s senior managermant afficoers
an opporiunity o mest &ed share deas and expanencs in busimess, mcludeg [ootly fnd Salutian F they faca
business challenges in business conduct. MC members comprize all high-ranking management of the
Company and affiliate in Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and Indie. CEO (Mr, Abdul Rahim Bin Haji Hitam)

serves as the Chaimman of the MG and the MG mesting gives high-ranking managemsnt of each comgpany under

“ Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed

the Group a chance to discuss and share opinions about the business conduct and the Group's investment
projects before proposing the izsues considersd and discussed in MC mesting fo the mesting of Exscutive

Commities andfor the Board of Directors Mesting for the approval.

A5 ol 31 January 2008, the Rl consists of 1he Folowing medmibsers,

Representing Which Company

Mame of Management Council

Member umder the Grougp

Mr, Abddul Halim' Bl Hafl Hdam Chairmman of Management Loundll ML membed represanting 1ha
LDmpany

hr. Eddie Dzurraimin Bin Zulkipli hMember of Management Council MZ member representing the

Company

fr. Muhamad Azmi Bin hMember of Management Council MC member representing the
Muhamad Mor Company
MAF, Sepacha Mesren] Member of Managemsnl Gounell ML member repressEniing e

0
Lam@anny

Mr, Shamsocddin Bin lea I Mambeaer of Mar ETHELE] ]S [ i =] I ML mamber represanting WIF
MrF, Mosn Bin Haemzah | Membaer of Managaiment CGoundi | ML membed repnisenting LAY
fir. Surin Wungcharosen Mambar of Management Council MC mamber representing FCT
hr. Hishamuddin Bin Lsh Mamber of Management Council MC member reprezanting FTIMY
fr, H.!ri'-Z-I:.;' Ié:w Maulod L bdember r_fr .Mar'.ag-ame".r I.jl'.:-.lr'c-ﬂ l rmt member 'epr-ﬁr:"m;.lr'.g f"aEi
Mr. Mohd Safri Bin Haji Sabiu Member of Management Council MZ member representing IFSH
b Mol Ideis Bin Ksrin Member of Management Counell MG member representing TS558
fr, Pamil Bin Janl Member of Manageiment Lol MC member represanting FTIT
M, Sesrmyut Messo Membar of Management Loanail ML memoed repressnting LY
M. E=zrifairur Bin Subaohi Member of Managerment Lol ML IR P e g kA

JOINT CORPORATE SECRETARIES

The Board of Directors has appodnted M. Sarawool Sriwanayos and br, Azhan Bin Ahmeaad as Jonl Conporate
Secretanes for the G IEENY, responSible lor organiz i the Board ol Deeclors and s Comeniitses meetnigs as
withl &% prapanng Tor noliea and manutes of meelings Tha Corporate Secrelary 1% also responsibie for the filhng

of documents as stipulated by laws, the S5ET and the SEC Guidelines

REMUMERATION

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Board of Directors ("BODT) was proposed by the Momination and Hamuneration
Comvmiftes (THRAC™ tEking Inlo sceount 1ha SoopE of duties, responsibdliDes, ang petormancs of diectors with
rpderencs 1o e comparsan of o tors renuneraton of other listed COMpansEs engaced I e sams Indestny
hawing simiar busmess size, performance and directors’ accouniability and the report from the Thai Institute
of Directors. Directors’ remuneration shall be considersd and approval at the Annual General Mesting of

Sharsholders on annual bas
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The remuneraticon of directors tor the nancial year anded 371 Jamnary 20146 FY201 ."-'IH":I Gompised annual
ramunaration and attendanoe allowanoe, There werng np other Denetits provided to directors other than
the alorementioned. Details of the annoal fsemuneralion and altendance allowanos are described in the

Tofldvstineg bl

Mominalion & Execiulve

Directors” Aemuneration Board ol Avdit

For FY201 /7118 Drector Committee  Hemuneration Caommittee Commitbes

Annual Remuneration {persondyear]

® Chairman 1,000,000
s plember (Independent Director] S0, 00
Attendance Fee [per pemon’ mesting) 15,000 15,000 15,000

Each director is remunerated according to his/her responsibilities and attendance to meestings. The directors’
remuneration was pald only to independent directors, as the remunerations for axegutive directore were ncluded

as part of the management's compensations.

For FY201718, the Company paid the dirgctors’ remunaration in a otab amount of Bath 3.070000,00. The

detaiis of the compensalon pasd Dy he Gompany o the Company areciors during F¥Y201 718 are &t lollows:

Marme List Hemuneration Allowaroe
AC "
Tan S Dr, Surn Pilsuwan . 1 G EHI0 G50.000 1,00 000
Mr. Abdul Khudus Mohd Masim . G000, 000 &0.000 45,004 . 20,000 E35.000
Mr. Apichai Sutfiziftum RO, 000 105000 60,000 30,000 G5 000
M. Muthavuth Chatlerpipat I 504,000 0,000 G000 . 30,000 GA0.000
Total 2,500,000 315,000 165,000 Q0,000 3,070,000

AL Aucht Gommitlaes

CIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT BEMEFITS
Cunng the financial year ended 31 January 2018 ("EY2M 7487} and 31 January 2017 ("FY2006/977), the Group

had esmployes benefit expenses payable fo thair directors and management as follows;

Lonsohdated Timancial statlements

FY20E AR Fy20ie Y
imtillson Bant) {illion Baht)
Shart-tarm employes benefits B34 &6l
Post-amployment benefis 31 28
Tatal B6.5 711

“ Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed

[+

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

Thi '.'.|_:|l'|,:-:|r|',r provicdes compensation and banalits o 1% amoloyeds mn the torm of salares, wages, Donuses,

contributicn to social security and prowvident fund, a=s well as welfares and other benefitz. which includad
post-employment and long-term employess benefits. The remuneration paid to employess during FY2017/18
in thie form of cash and cash edquivalent was noa total amoaunt of Baht B1H.5 million, as compared o

Baht 583.3 millicn in FY2016/17.

OTHER BEMEFITS

FPROVIDENT FUND
The Group has jointly established provident fund with ts employees, where the Group and employvess who are
meinber of the funds contribute 0 e funds on monthly beses at the mate of 0% - 13% of wage of Dass satary

The furd will be paid o employess in Bocordance with the respective fund riles
LOMG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
|"r:|_:r:|;_|r i r-.-1;|=;1-;,u.~;|.|-| ooeration, Thatland, Indonesia and India QpErEUon provites companastion and Saveranos

pay to employess upon refirement and resignation in compliance with the respsctive country Bbor faw,

EMPLOYEES

A5 of 31 January 2078 and 371 January 2017, the Group has in total 1,828 and 1,947 employees respectively,

which can be classified as folows

Location 1 January 2078 1 January 2017

Madanssia

Tk

Indonesia

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMEMT

e LOmpany pul greal emphases on homsan resounses devalopmeant and considers its amplovees as one ol
ke pnportant factors that drive the sisianabie :Jrcm-.r'. ol the Comiamy T hua Caompany, themtora, has established
the Group Training Deparment under Human Aesource Depariment to manage trainings and development
programs for employess of the Group in a systematic manner, The Company has targeted fo develop the skills
and abilities of employees at all levels To improse Turther the standard of guality and performance 1o e
next leval. The Company encourages its employess to show their full potential and able to guickly adapt and

respond to changes m technology and busmess needs and reguirenents of the industry.

The Company has sl up and arranges irainings and deveélopment programs for its employess, considenng the
standard operational procedures, the needs of each department, and the basic skills of the employess. It aims to

educate employ=es o have knowledge and understanding of their work to be able to perform ther duties safely

and affichenty ':'._||'|l'|!; Courses are arandged acoording 1o objectives and Joais and arm revieeved avery yaar,

aocording to the followng
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EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION
The employee orentation program (s amanged for new employees 10 understand and bacome accustomed and

conformant to the Comgpany’s palicies, T course provides information of the Company and s Businesses,

inoluding vision, poficies, rules and regulations, code of conduct, and standard working procedures, and

communicates details of welfares and bensfits that the Company has ayailable for s employeses.

TECHNICAL AND PROFESSIOMAL TRAININGS

The Company provides professional trainings in the areas relating to work and operations to develop and
inprove technical skills of emplovess o be abke o perform ther work efficlently, achieve standard of Guality
and under a safe envirenment. These technical skifls training courses covar trainings related to the use of
different types of machines, basic information relévant to work, working procedires and communkeation with

customers, etc.

QUALITY, SAFETY, AND EMVIROMMENTAL TRAININGS

The Company amanges training programs relating to gualty management, safety and enviroremental managemeant
within the organization to create awareness lo employees for the standard of quality work, the efficient use of
resources and the safe workplace and working ervironmaent, These courses cover salely rainings, laws and

regpulations refating - to sately and ermaronimeental manegement; the guaity manasgement svsiem IATF, elc

SUPERVISING SKILL TRAININGS
The Company prowides fraining courses to increase knowledge and dewvelop coaching skills for managers fo

supgort and prepare for leading roles at the management level

@ INGRS GROUP BUSINESS

Thi madn businesses of the Company and its subsidianes can be categonized: as folows

BUSINESS UNIT THAILAND MALAYSIA INDOMESLA INDHA
[ 1. DEM Auto Aoll Forming & assambly of Ingress Ingress FT ngrass Ingress
Parts MAE Moulding Auiloyeaiires Préciaiog Sdn Maliido Aaioweriiures
Manufseturing o, Lid Bhd {“IFE8") Ventunes {India) Private
VAT (“PTIMY™) Limiibaed
| I'lﬂ.lf'L"_I
| PRTPO Extrusion & LAY PS8 PTIMY IAIPL
| smasmbly
| Holl Forming Sash & A P58 FTEY
asssmbly
Stamping Fir Ingress FT ngrass
Componend Technologeas: | Technologies
[Thallmed) S5 Bhd Indonsss
Co,, Lid, {"TFE8"] ("FTITI")
I {“FCT™)
| Fine Blanking FCT
| Welding & Mockar FCT MSB
Assemby
| Acoustic Heat Managament ITS8 PTIMV
| o I-'hna;'sm e - T o
| Collspaible Pipe LAY
| impact Bapm TsE
| Partograph Jack Assembly IT5H PTRAY
2. Design & | Siwal and Iron Prass Dies FCT
Manufacture Fine Bianking Clias FCT
| of Dies
3. Design and “Cusbom mada" Systen Tefant
Manufactura miegration for mchestnal Synargy Sdn
of Industrial automation Bhd [TTSSE™)
Altomation
systam
4. Others Product Agency - Malaysis TS5E
agent for Fuji: Aobols from
| Japen
Locad represeniative - TS558
Yajima Mul Weld Feeder
irom Tha#and and Japan
| Produs hgenay for TS5E
Mr.ll-':'rlsi.'q = Mawnootes To,,
Lad of Korea for Welding
gun and BCoRSSONes
tremstmant Activdias Ingress Ingrass
Indusirial nciyrsirial
(Thalland) M akay=in)
Pulilic San Bhd
Company
Linmfed
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@ MAIN BUSINESS

INGRESS INDUSTRIAL (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED [INGRS]

Ingress Industnal (Thailand) Pubbc Company Limited or INGRS
was incorporated in March 2014 as an investment holding
company for the sutomotive component manufactring business

within the Ingress Group, The estahlishment of INGRS enable all

Irdonesi and inds 10 e groupes logetmer, Rence oonsohdaling

1% strenglh and resources in paddressing specilie coustomers

reeds and also focusing In edpandang 45 operstion sathin and

beyond the curment plant locabons

OEM AUTOMOTIVE PARTS MANUFACTURING

INGRESS AUTOVENTURES CO.. LTD, - &V

AN runs e Dusioess o the mandtaciinng and distnbuting e
co-exiruded mould garts, moubdings and door frames ano olhes
adomotive camponents wiich areé prodoced Dy he rol-Tarming
iechniques for the OEM customers in Thailand. 1AV is ranked
as Tier-1 supplier who manufactures and salis the producks
directly to the OEMs as well az mamnufactures and sells somea

products to similer Tier-1 suppliers. Having Katayama Kogyo

CouLid and Yoned Go Lid of Japan as its partnes, 1AV marsged
fo penetrate (o all the leacling OEM custonsers from Japan and Uniled States, for example, Mitsubishi, Hordda,
lmuzu. AAT. Ford, MNissan Suzukl and General Molors. 1AY ha=s 2 sutoasotive s .I:1|-'..|r--|§ factories wnich are
located at the Eastern Seaboard Indusirinl Estate n Hayong Frovince and tha Hi-Tech Indusinal Estate in

Phira Makhon Sn Ayutthaya

FINE COMPOMNENTS (THAILAND) CO., LTD. - FCT

FCT iz the joint wenture company with lwamoto Co;, Lid of
Japan, Operabing from 15 plant in Banchang Bayong, he
codmpany 15 manly Pwoheed 0 the manudactiunng and disirbiting
of autamotive metal pars, produced by the stamplng and fine

Blansing technokogy, FGT main cesdomers ane the Rading Teer

FCT aleo imvolved in design and fabrication of fine blanking

and stampng press die. Beside for in-house usage, FCOT also

supply dies fo local and overses automotive customers

“ Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed

the components manufactunmng busmess in Thaltand, Malaysa,

and Tier-2 OEM suppliers of the automotive mdustiry of Thailand,

INGRESS TECHNOLOGIES SDN, BHD, - ITSB

IT5H iz the company having an expertize i manufaciunng and
azsembling of medium to high fonnage press automoliive parts
for sales to the OEM customers in Malaysia. With technical
suppart from ACQI Kikai and Metal Tech of Japan, (TSB
st s postion as the leading ler-1 Supplier in Malawsia
ITSH customers incliude miajar aulomaotive manutaclurers n

Malavsa including Perodion, Frotan and Honda TSR Qe s

Ircdatr twe plants. i Bukin f‘ii'r.uil_llllg aelsngar and Kelemak,
kelaka The plants are egquipped with modermn technology, high speed press machines, automated assembly

fines with the latest manufacturing system.

INGRESS PRECISION SDN. BHD. - IP5B

IPSE was estabdished in 1895 invalved in the manutactun 103
and sabes of aar Sealing sysiem and door trameas tor all the
I 1+ CIER i Malaysin, nchuchng Proton, Bersdian, Ronda and
Tovota, IPSE runs fs ooeration in Mitsl Mabaysia, in parrErshig
and technical support from Katayama Kogyo So., Lid of dapan.
Being ranked as a Tier-1, IPSB manufactures and salls the

products directly fo the OEMs and to other Tier-1 supplisrs

Being the pionesr in roll forming technology i Malaysia, IPSB
memintaing as the market! leader for roll fanming pearts | sl

Aoditionadly, IFSE provicdes Dechnical assistance (STA™) fo AR

PT. INGRESS MALINDD VEMTURES - PTIMV.

FTiMV was established in 2004 and operates from its factory
in Jababeka Indonesia. PTIMY, in partnarship with a local
company PT Tidar Adyagiri Sakti, Katayama Kogyo Co., Lid
and Yonei Co, Lid of Japan, s the busmess in mamufactunng
and distributing car sealing system and door frames for the
e OEM cissiommers [N Indonesis, b ecuiching aiitsin, btitaubisehi,

Honda, Toyata, Suzukl and Hieo, BT IMY 5 mnked as Ter-1

suppier which manofactunes and sels the prodioects directly o

the OEMs as well as to similar Tier-1 suppliers,
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PT INGRESS TECHNOLOGIES INDOMNESIA.

PTITI

PTITI logated in Jababeks Indonesia 1= 8 wholly owned
subsidiary of ITSE. PTITI iz mainly involved in small parts
stamping and hkeat shield production. PTITI manufacture and
zafl its products as tier-2 to tier-1 suppliers namely PTIMY

and Mokl indonesa

INGRESS AUTOVENTURES (INDIA} PRIVATE LIMITED. - IAIPL

4

manutaciures and sells the products to Tier-1

Iocated at IZ:':.ul'-;||';:||||_ Haraana, Inda

IAIPL iz the company established n India in 2010, Prior to the
full taweover by INGES 0 Movember 20717, IAPL was tonmerty
Ko as Ingress Mayur Agto Venlores Frivale Limdied or
IMAPL The malr paarts. produced and sold by 1AIPL are roll
TCrmir W prodiaols under he- Soaling Syslim e, I |uchineg
Weatherstrip Moulding, Roof Drip Mouolding and Windshield
Moulding. 1AIPL's main QEM customers in India ars Marut

Suzuki India Limited, Mahindra & Mahindra and Fiat, |AIPL

and Tier-2 suppdiers in India, WIPL's manufacturing plant &=

DESIGN AND MAMUFACTURING OF INDUSTRIAL AUTOMATION

TALENT SYMERGY SDM. BHD. - TS558

.

TS5E was astablished in Malaysa in 19895 and s mamly invohved

in the automation solufion system provider for the automotive

and food mdustry. TS5B focuses on the services of design,

tabrication and mstalation of industoal aulomation sysiem,

oustiEmised o specibo fechnical reguirements al the gushomers

TESE customers ncluda INGHRS Qroup Companias, OFEM =

atner Her-1 and food manufactees Some of TSSE products

are aleo being used by leaming instiutions and testing bodiss,

After the delivery of works, TSEB would provide after-sales sernce for the customers for the mutually agreed

peniod of time

“ Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed
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@ INGRS MILESTONES

Incorporation of Ingrese Group

(Establishment of Ingress Enginssring Sdn Bhd (“IESE7 in Malaysin B on 71 May 1991)

f'}b
Y

IESE antared inio a Technical Assistance Agresmant ("TAA™} with Katayama Kogyo Co, Lid ("KE™}
i Katayama from Jepsn on manufastwng of moulding pars

¢ “‘.\>
2
u

First debvery by IESB to PROTON ’ [Meubding relaled parts)

)

L

oy |
e,

Establishment of Ingress Precision Sdn Bhd ("IPS87) in Malaysia BEE on 5§ MJanuary 1994, Joint

Vanhwa (“JV7) with KK X Katayama for manfachring of door sash and related actomoties
Codnponenis

( H>
2|
&

Reloeation of IESE and PSBto Mils, Negen Sembilan

First duivery by IPSB to PROTON NG (Sash related parts)

Establishment of Talent Synargy Sdn Bhd {“TS5B") in Malaysia B 13 gy 1995

U

L

Establishment of ingress Altoventures Co Lid ("1 in Thadand S o {7 Seplember 1996, Y
with KK 0 Natayama and Yonel Co. Lid <8 vouer for manufactuning of automotive components

First cdefivery by [ESB to PERODUA %8 (Moulding related parts)

Y

{

1AV stared to operate s automolve paris plant o Rayong, Thailand

Establishment of Ingress Technologies Sdn Bhd (“ITS87) in Malaysis BE= on 3 ™ Seplember 1997,
JV with PERCDOUA ._E.. for manutectuering and assembly of medium 1o high lonnage press
adomotive parls

First defivery by ITSB to PERODUA o iStamping related parts)

D

L

£
iy

First defivary by 1AV to AAT 2855 (Sash related parts)
First defivery by 1AV to MITSUBISHI -'*,.; {Moulding refated parts)

v

L1

Establishmant of Ingress Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (*ICB”) in Malaysia T80 on 8" August 1999

)

.\,
1

¢

¢

ITSE started {0 operate its autemofive parts plant located n Bukit Berundung, Malaysia to produce
toors-in-white for Pamdus,

ICB was converted o a public eompany (change ite name to lngress Corporation Berhad) on 27
Marsh 2000,

3
p

¢
L

8

ICB was ksted on Bursa Malaysia Stock Exchange & ees (2™ Board)

First defwvery by ITSBE to PROTON v (Stamping related paris)

First desivery by 18V to HONDA ([ [Sash and moulding related parts)
First defvery by 18V to 120020 esudle {Moulding refated parts)

)| )

{LE

i

Establshment of FT Ingress Magndo Ventures (PTIMYT in Indoness on 19" Mareh 2003,

with PT Tickar Adyagii Sokti i

Y

(
I:

ICE was fransferred to Main Board of Bursa Malsysia Stock Exchange o

First delivery by PTIMY to MITSUBISHI &% (Moulding related parts)
First defivary by FTIMV to SUZUKI ¥ (Sash related parts)
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First deleeery by 18 to MITELIBISHI # iSash related paris)
e o
/T POOS First- dalremry by IPSE o PERDTILIA P {Sash ralated paris)
i | Eist delivery by IPSB 10 TOYOTA "™ (Moulding retated parts)
First delivery by PTIMV to TOYOTA 22 [Sash retated parts)
18y astablshed an automotive parts plant i Hi-Tech Indusirial Esiate. Phra Makhon S0 Ayutihaya,
Thasland, with the main purpose o mancfacture and distribute automotive components to Honda,
- —
s ot Acquistion of 100% shares in Fine Comporenis (Thaland) Co, Lt ["FCT7) i Thailond == o
Sagaporean sharsholders,
First dalary by [AV bo NISEAN '!’} [Gash related parts)
First delivery by ITSE to haZs Qe (Stamping related parts)
=5 | First detivery by PTIMY to SUZUKI ¥ (Moulding related parts)
ST m0aF B | :
il First calivery by PTIMY to DAIHATSL B2 (Moulding refated paris)
I_T.F"::\"'— Establishemant of Ingress Auloventures (India) Pyt Lid [CIAFPLT) i Indfe s ©N 24 th July 2008
i 5008
—.'-\_d _"ll:.,
=N First delsvery by IAIPL 1o MARUT) SUZUKH M% B350 (Moulding retated parts)
LT20m0
PFTIMY v with KK & Katayama and Yonel Co, Lid =8 vOME for manufeeiuring of aulomodive
componants
e, T
s": a1 First- delreary by 1AV to GENERAL MOTOR ! {5ash relaied parts)
First delscery by IPSE 1o SLZLUKI E (Moubding related parts)
First delsery by PTIMY to DAIHATSU {Sash relaled parts)
— Establishenent of FT Ingrese Techoobogies bndonesia ("PTITIY) in indonesia 3™ October
= EEI.'E = a2,
-t -_-:.
- - First delwery by LAV b SUZLIK] i (Moubding related parte)
ICE was defsted from Malaysia' Bursa Siock Exchange o= on 22 '"jJi-iy 2013
j;;;‘* First clalivery by PTIMV to HONDA (L] (Sash related parts)
o —A Firet delwery by FTIMY to GEMNERAL MOTOR E= (Sash ralated paris)
First dalmeary by PTITI (through PTIMY] to  TOWOTA -'?F-3 [Btamgping relaled parts)
Ingress Group's Rastructuring starfed o ba listed on Stock Exchange of Thailand (“5ET) -k
Establishrment of the Company, Ingress ndustrial (Thefand)] Co,, Lid (“INGRS®) in Thallandg
on 13™ Mareh 2014 with ils aimed to operate as a holding company. offer shares, and be listed on
the SET
Establishmant of Ingress Indistrial (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (1IN in Malaysia B on 21™ February
T_AE'&—-;:‘H 14 as a hodding company of an automaotive parts company in Malaysa o ensure that [TS8's and
o i pmeala IFER's permi for mandacturing operations complied with Malaysian Law
FCT anfered mnio JJV Agreamant with Iwamoio Co,, Lid [“lwamoio™) ™S iwamoio
First dalwary by [PSB bo HOMNDW I'[';_-l'- {Moulding and sash related parts)
First dalaeary by PTIMY fo HIND ﬁ iSash related parts)
First clalivery by PTIMV to HOnDA (] (Moukding related parts)
First dalivery by PTIT] {through PTIMV) to HORDA sl (Stamping related parts)
First clalivery by ITSB to HOMDA ! (Stamping related parts)

m Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed

YEAR MILESTOMNES

Ingress Group's Aestruchuning complated on 30™ January 2045

"'!“:‘"-— INGRS was conwerted into public sompany {change its name to Ingress industral (Thadand] Public

{257 | ompany Limitad) on 5™ December 2015
ITSB entered into a TAA with Metaltech Limited & Filiirss from Japan for the devslopment of
mrey project
ITSE slarted to operate itz aulcmolive parts plant in Mataccs Malaysia for HONDA

f_f;i;}_ TE58 entared into & TAS with Tas Sung Tech Co., Lid @08 =S from Korea for automation

= - solution
First defvery by ITSE to BOMNDA rﬁ (Stamping related parts) from Malacea Plant
Aequisition of 100% shares o TS58 and 408 shares in LAIPL by BM from 1S

= | INGRS was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (“SET") %57 on 8™ August 2017

~..= E?E-'"J ITSE mnterad info a TAMA with ADI Kikai Co., Lid @ from Japan for the development of new model

Aequisition of the remalning 60% shares @ LAIPL from Maywr industries Pyt Lid by 1IM resulied in
IAIPL become a wholly owned subsidiary of I which was completed on 13™M Novernber 2017

First defivery by 1AIPL to MAHINDRA a2 {Moulding related paris)
[
First chufivery by PTBV to MITSUBISHI %% (Sash related parts)

#
First defvery by FTITI {through PTIMY] to MITSUZIEH] &% (Stamping related parts)
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@ BUSINESS OPERATION

IMGRS business is mainly linked to automolive industry, Having operations in main ASEAN countries and also
Incdian with & operating factones, INGRS has elevated its position to become one of the "prefermed Tier-1 supplier”
in the region.

Thailand being the Automotive Hub of the region emerged as one of INGRS main revenue contributor. Since
the start of Thailand Automotive Indusiry of more than 50 vears ago, Thailand's automotive sector has developsd
to be the biggest in Southeast Asia and one of the largest in the world, Thalland emerged as the key automolhe
base in ASEAM are mainly due o s geographically strategie location, reliable supplier base, expenenced indusiry
experise, larger production capacity and good infrastructure,

1. INGRESS AUTOVENTURES C0O., LTD. ("IAV")

1.1 1AV Business Strategy

Riding on the continued growth of automotive sector in Thailand, 1AV will put emphasis in improving its
manufactuning efficiencies whilst securing more business, Efforts in enhansing the “Lean™ policy across the
organization is in line with INGRS guest for continuous improvement and maniufacturing excellence,

In 1AY, best manufactuning practices has always been its main management policy. A good example s the

SMPOCD managemsent system, consisting of:

= 5 - Safety - Safety mind at all times

= M - Morale - An essence fo becomes a dynamic and conducive organization
¢ P - Productivity - Improvement through automation concept

« 1 - Quality - Build Guality in Process 1o achieve O ppm

o O - Cost - Managing cost and elimination of waste

# 0 - Delivery - 100% On Time Delivery o customers

1&%'s quest for excellence is also testament to the 1AV's efforts in the implementation of Ingress Lean System
or ILS. The latest ILS initiative includes “Just-In-Time" approach in maintaining reasonable stock level and eliminate
waste at each stages of production. 1AV is also committed to transform the manual operations into automation
processes, hence creating a multh skill working envirohment which result in improving productivity, consistent
product quality and higher degree of safety,

In line with the Intelligent Technology and as part of our initiative towards “Thalland Industry 4.07, 1AV has
established a model line to record real time production information. The “Ingress Production On-Line System”
or I-POS will be further extended to cowver other production lines progressively. It is aimed that the I-POS will

assist the management to make fast and accuwrate decision.

E Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

1AV will also continue with its Cost Awareness and Cost Reduction Program in identifying areas in the

organization that can confribute to reduction in the gross margin.

2017 has been an active year for AV, The continuous efforts in giving added value has been well recognized
by the customers. Some of the prestigious awards received by 1AV in the year are:

1. MMTh = Qusality Award

2 AAT = 0 Award (represents both achievement in Quality and Delivery)

1A alzo gualify in customers audits for new supplier from Toyota Thalland and Missan

1.2 1AV Future Project

Major automakers are constantly lining-up new modsls for domestic consumption and export market. Cver the
next few years, many new models are expected to be released by the major automakers in Thailand ranges
fromn Plekup, Passenger Car and Sport LNty Vehicle [(SUV]. While the new models are expected to come with
better performance and fuel economy, there s also heavy competition in new technologies being introduced in
new cars, such as safety as well as infotainment and intelligent drive systems,

The Eco-car program in Thailand has smoothly progressed based on the guidelines set by Board of
Investment (BOI). Owt of the 10 manufacturers, five companies have already invested in the first phase. Upon full
implementation of Eco-car programs phase 1 and phase 2, BOIl hopes to achieve a combined production

capacity of 530,000 units in 20149,

The DEM: are expected o introduce new models commensing 2018 onwards, These models are expected
to continue 1o recelve favorable market acceplance with totally new design and technologies with better fuel
efficlencies

Despite of Eco-car program, official policy = shifting its emphasis toward the development of Electric Vehicle (EV)
techinology with the hope that Thailand will become the regional BV production center. This will encourage Thai
wehicle manufacturers to expedite the EV production plans and increasing investment in EV-battery development
in Thailand,

2. INGRESS PRECISION SDN. BHD. ("IPSB")

2.1, IPSB Business Strategy
IPSE is a joint venture betwesn Ingress and Katayama Kogyo Co. Lid of Japan.
IPSE, established im 19894 with the core expertise is in the mamufacturing and supply of:

& Roll-formed metal automolive door sash and related components
* Roll-formed plastic co-extruded mouldings and weather-strips,
# Extrusion moulding and weather-stnps,
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& Heat Management system
& Door Impact systems.

IPSE utilises the high-tech and high-precision manufacturing techniques which ensures the superior quality
required in the production of those products for the complete assembly of car door module and sealing system.
IPEE major products are belthine moulding, weather-strip inner moulding, roof moulding and windshield moulding
under the sealing system, As for door module category, IPEB's products are door sash, rail assembly or
inmer sash and glass guide, Currently, IPSE s a sole supplier for door sash in Malaysia,

In enswring its position &= the intemationally recognized manufacturing, IPSB had been certified with 1S00TS 169449,

OHSAS 18001 and MS IS0 14001, IPSE is also adopting best manufacturing practices in the work place with
the implementation of Lean management system, 35, Moming market, Kaizen and Management shop floor audits.
Since 2017, IPSE embarked on process automation starting with the glass guide assembly for process stability

and consistency,

IPEE major customers are the key assemblers in Malaysia namely Proton, Perodua and Honda, as well as
second tler supplier to door trim manufacturers namely APM Plastic Sdn Bhd De-Lioyd Industries Sdn Bhd,

IPSE has completed the development of two new models in 2017 for Perodua Myvi and Honda BR-V.
The Malaysian Best-Selling Car and the third generation of Perodua Myvi was successfully launched in
October 2017 whilst the Honda BR-V in Januwary 2017.

Capitalizing from INGRS Group of having operations in Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailland, the components for
Honda BR-V model was developed by PTIMY Indonesia which is then commaonly supply for use in Honda
Malaysia and Thalland, This approach managed to shorten the development leadtime and cost, which eventusally
benefits the customsars.

2.2, IPSB Future Project

IPS5B had participated in supplying parts for almost all modsels launched by Proton, Perodua and Honda.

Generally, IPSE will be adopting the following strategies for future projects,

& Mew products for existing customers
& Existing products for new customers.

Upon successful development of Perodua Myvi and Honda BR-V, both customers awarded IPSE with anothar
new future models. Currently the development of Perodua's new model that been carried out and expected
to be launched in 2018, Similarly, Honda also awarded the Company with new Letter of Intent {LOI) for
Honda new model that is expected to be launched in 2019,

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited

IPSE aims to penefrate two potential customers in 2008 for the supply of heatshield, beside targeting new BFC
(Request for Guotation) for Honda and Perodua new models that are expected 1o be lunched in 2020 and 2021
respectively,

Intemal process improvement |5 always a major emphasis by IPSB. 3AP computenzation system for Procurement,
Manufasturing and Logistie which started development in 2017 had successfully been commissioned in
February 2018. Besides continuous efforts on operational improvement and automation program, IPSE will also
embark on the introduction of Industry 4.0, mainly on the integration between 5AP system and manufacturing

processat.

Through Perodua’s vendor development initiative, IPSE has been identified as one of the local Malaysian
companies to participate in the research and vendor commercialization grant by the Malaysian Government.

The project s scheduled to commence in OF 2018

3. PT. INGRESS MALINDO VENTURES (“PTIMV")

3.1. PTIMVY Business Strategy

The automotive industry in Indonesia has become an important pillar of the country's manufacturing sector as
many of the world's well-known car assemblers have opened manufacturing plants or expanded production
capacity in Southeast Asia's largest economy. Moreover, Indonesia experienced a remarkable fransition as it
evolves from being a merely export oriented car production center (especially for the Southeast Asian region)
into & major [domestic) car sales market due to rising per capital GOP.

In terms of market size, Indonesia is the biggest car market in Southeast Asia and ASEAMN. Indonesia accounts
for about cne-third of total annual car sales in ASEAN, followed by Thailand in the second position. Indonesia
not only has a large population bt is alse charactenzed by having a rapidly expanding middle class, Together,
these two factors created a powerful consumer foroe,

The yvear 2017 was an interesting vear for PTIMY as it managed o maintain a consistent growth of revenue
from 2016, PTIMY had alzo put focus on maintaining all the existing customers and striving 1o secure
new project through aggressive paricipation in customers’ new project bidding.

Currently, PTIMY had managed to supply its product to all major key car assemblers in Indonesia and is
still making effort to penstrate into new potential customer. PTIMY s commitment in gearing up its production
capacity together with the right marketing and pricing strategy are the key factors fo enhance and ensure the

syccessfulness of the customer engagement process.

Based on the supply volume and sales revenue in the yvear 2007, Toyola, Dahatsu, Honda, Suzuki and Mitsubishi
continue to be the majer customer for PTIMY, Mitsubishi s forecasted to be PTIMY's main revenue contributor
in the year 2018 and beyond, especially after the successful launching of its new model MPY Xpander info the
market in September 2007

ANMUAL REPORT 20172018 m



Besides working on the new projects, PTIMY will confinue its efforts in ensuring replacement of the phased-out

models, This would ensure the constant revenue stream for the futune,

3.2 PTIMV Future Project
PTIMY enter the vear of 2018 with a number of new projects under development of which the LOIE had been
awarded. Among the projects in hand are Honda weather sirip ocuter and inner moulding, Suzuki fuel tank

protector and jack assembly and Missan sash assembly for their new model.

PTIMVY iz making a concerted effort to introduce more products for a wider range of customers in the country.

4, INGRESS TECHNOLOGIES SDN. BHD. (“ITSB")

4.1 ITSE Business Strabegy

Since its inception in September 1997, ITSE is one of the fastest growing companies and major player for
medium stamping business in Malaysia. With more than two decades of manufacturing experiences, ITSB
has embarked into the business of body assembly and functional parts such as Jack Assembly, Door Hinges
and Brake/Clutch Pedal Assembly. ITSE's state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities coupled with modernization
of automation assembly line has positioned ITEB ahead of its competitor. Meanwhile, stringent guality control
and total implementation of manufacturing best practices such as Lean Production System, Poka-voke,

Jugt-In-Time (JT) and 55 has enabled ITSE to meet the customer's reguirement especially in Quality {01,

Delivery (D) and Cost (), ITSE major customers are Percdua, Honda, Proton and as the Tier-2 supplier to
PHM Industry Sdn. Bhd that supply to OEM.

In 2015, ITSE signed Technical Assistance Agreement (“TAA") with Metaltech Ltd, a Japanese base company
to strengthen its position as Tier 1 to DEMs in Malaysia. ITSBE's technical capability is further being enhanced
with the signing of ancther TAA with AD Kikal Co, Ltd, Japan in August 2017,

Under this collaboration, ITEB will acquire and access to technology transfer especially in production using
high tensile material and higher tonnage press machine,

Realizing the imporfance of industry evolution, IT5B has actively parficipated in seminars and conference related
to Industrial Revolution 4.0 (IR4.0). This has led ITSE to use the real-time monitoring production data base.
The Malaysian Government through its agency — Malaysia International Trade and Industry [MITI) with Malaysia
Automotive Institute (MAI) has selected ITSE o recelve a grant amounting o BM 1 million under Industry 4.0
initiatives, By 2018, ITEEB will be using real-time production monitoring system known as Delmia Apriso
developed by Dassault System, At the same time, ITSE s exploring any opportunity 1o fully ulilize government
grant under Industry 4.0 initiatives
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4.2 ITSB Future Project

As Malaysia is one of important automotive market in ASEAN, global QEMs are continuously introducing
mew models into the market, Currently, Malaysia market are being dominated by Passenger Car segment and
Sports Uity Vehicle (SLV) segment |5 increasingly becoming customers preference

In responss to market demand, Perodua has started the development of new modsl for its model lineup.
IT5E has received the Letter of Imtent (LOI) from Perodua in Movember 2017, This model is expected o have
a design and features that will be attractive to the market. Perodua is also preparing for future model
development with the introduction of Daihatsy Global Mew Architecture (DGMA) which utilize common platform
throughout 1o all s new models

Honda has successfully remained its Mo market position for Malaysian non-national category in 2017,
In order to retain its position, Honda will introduce replacement models for their existing models in the
next few years. Attractive design, mobility connectivity and safety features are the key selling points of

Honda cars.

IT5B aggressively exploring potential project with other OEMs in Malaysia. Missan, Mitsubishi, lsuzu and Mazda
are among the new customer base targeted by ITSE, Expanding customers base s very important to ITSB as
part of company's strategy o be less dependent only a few existing customers,

5. PT INGRESS TECHNOLOGIES INDONESIA (“PTITI"}

51 PTITI Business Strategy

FTITI i= a wholly owned subsidiary of ITSB and was established on & October 2012 based on Indonesian
industry law and regulations. It started its operation in November 2012 by supplying small bracksts of
Suzuki APY model to PT Ingress Malinde Ventures, Currently the core experise is in the manufastuning and
supply of:

# Small stamping prodiscts
= Stamping of Heat Shield products

FTITI major products are small stamping parts {below 200 tonnes) and car heatshield products. In order to
achieve the imternational standard manufacturing company, PTITI had developed the quality system and
had been certified with 120 8001:2015 in October 2017, PTITI has also adopting best manufacsturing culture in
the work place like lean management system, 53, and kalzen, Ingress Lean System was implemented since 2016

FTITI major customers are PT Ingress Malinde Ventures and PT Miyuki Indonesia that supply direct to
the OEMs=.
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5.2 PTITI Future Project
FTITI had secured the supply of stamping child parts for Jack Assembly with PTIMY for new Suzuki
replacement model,

Moving forward, a team was set up 1o ook in the business expansion into medium stamping in Indonesia,

6. FINE COMPOMENTS (THAILAND) CO., LTD. ("FCT")

6.1 FCT Business Strategy

FOT is a jeint wenture company belween Ingress and Iwamote Co, Ltd of Japan, Established in 1280, FOT s
the pioneer in Fine Blanking parts manufacturing in South East Asia, Since then, FOT had progresshely evolved
into a complete stamping manufacturer with various related core businesses:

& Fine Blanking stampers for precision automotive parts
& Mormal Stamping for automotive brackets and accessories
& Die Making Services

& Die Maintenance Services

FOT utilizes 15 expertisze in precision fing blanking technology to supply components to various automotive
Tier 1 and Tier 2 companies in Thalland, With the expertise, FOT alse able to supply high precision nommal
stamping pars to s customers, To complement its stamping business, FOT had also embarked on die making

and maintenance with support from its partner, lwamoto Co., Lid.

FCT major products are brake pad plates, cam camber, seat recliner gears, latches as well as normal stamping
parts such as compressor flanges, door brackets and others. FCT major customers for its stamping business

are Thal Asakawa, Valeo Group, Bridgestone, Slam Sera and Adient,

As for the die making, FCT had supplied stamping dies for both fine blanking and normal stamping, s curment
expertize and facilities enable FOCT to produce dies ranging from small 1o large dies for both progressive and
tandem die types. Currently, FCT supplying its dies to companies in Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and Japan
which includes Topre, Hiruta, Ingress group, Valeo group and others.

Az part of its commitment to achieve the international standard in manufacturing management, FCT had applied
and been certified with IATF16248 and 150 14001, For its die making & maintenance, FOT was certified with
120900, As part of our continuous improvement efforts, FCT is alse adopting best manufacturing practices in
the work place like lean management system, 55, morning market, kaizen and management shop floor visit
In 217, FCT had also initiated various initiatives in process stability and consistensy for high volume modeks
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In 2017, the stamping business benefited from various new products launched in Thailand and abroad, for
Complete Knock Down (CED) parts, FOT has completed the development of 5 projects in 2007 for namely
Topre, Valeo and Thal Asakawa,

Az for die making business, FCT had completed several developments for customers in Thailand, Malaysia and
Indonesia. Among the projects are Perocdua's MyVi for Perodua and ITSE in Malaysia and Hiruta in Indonesia.
Other projects are dies and checking fixtures for Valeo, Thai Asakaws. Bridgestone and others for Thailand
market.

6.2 FCT Future Project

The wolume cutlook for Thailand automotive this year i forecasted o grow by 5%, compared o 2017, There
are also various new models to be launched in the next few years, Honda will launch replacement models for
its current models in the next few vears, Missan, Mazda, Tovola, Isuzu, Mitsubishi, Suzukl, Ford and General
Motors will also actively adding new models in the next few years. This positive development bodes well with

stampers a=s well as die makers and makes 2018 a busy year for tooling development.

For 2018, FCT forecasted to start mass production for both Topre and Minamida which both are now under
final stage of development. As a continuous efforts, our marketing focuses this vear is 1o get Reguest for
Qusatations ("RFQT) from more customens

For die making, FOT are currently undertaking developments of new project for ITSE, Minamida, BEW, Valeo,

Siam’s Heater Header and several retooling projects.

To ensure that our business stay compstitive, FCT will continuously upgrade its compstitive advantage. In 2018,
FCT will further upgrade the die making capability with additional double column machine and Coordinate
Measunng Machine (CMM) Laser scanner, As per stamping business, on top of implementing best practices,
mere autemation will be introduced o improve FCT productivity and gquality,

7. INGRESS AUTOVENTURES (INDIA) PVT LTD. (“IAIPL") (formerly known as Ingress Mayur
Auto Ventures Pyt Lid)

7.1 lAIPL Business Strategy

The Indian automotive industry is one of the largest in the world. The industry accounts for 7.1% of the
country's GDP, It is poised to become fourth largest manufacturer of automobiles globally by 2020 after
China, US and Japan, Mot to mention, India is currently world's largest manufacturer of tractors, 2nd
largest two-wheeler manufacturer, Sth largest in Heavy Truck Manifacturing and Sth largest manufacturer of
Commercial Vehicles,

ANMUAL REPORT 20172018 “



The Government of India's Automotive Mission Plan (AMP) 2026 has set stringent targets for Indian automotive
indugstry {including DEMs and Component Manufacturers), T envisages that industry will grow 3.5 1o 4.0 tmes
in value from its current output,

Digruptive landscape triggered by eleciric vehicles, digitization and connectivity are the trends that are hard 1o
ignore. This coupled with fast migration to stricter safety and emission norms are realities that offer challenges

and opportunities to the automotive industry.
COn 13 Movember 2017, Ingress Mayur Auto Ventures Pwvi Ltd ("IMAPL™) became a 100% owned subsidiary
of Ingress Industrial Malaysia Sdn Bhd ("IIM") and subsequently change the Company name on 19 March 2018

to 1AIPL,

IAIPL s engaged in the business of manufacturing of automotive sealing svstem and cperates facilities

for plastic extrusions, roll forming and bending of plastic parts. AIPL's product range includes mouldings,

trim door openings, seat catches and PVC beading.

Key OEM customers of IAIPL includes Maruti Suzuki Industries Limited (“MSIL"), Mahindra & Mahindra
{“Mahindra™ and Fiat India Automobile Limited ("Fiat™), Others are Tier 1 & 2 customers (which in um supply
o QEM s).

IAIPL has been steadily progressing on its Growth Strategy sel forth in 2016 as summanzed below:

Crganic Growth Through Related Expansion
= Tapping imto its competencies of existing products for getting new customears.
& Leveraging INGRS Group's compstencies for new products to existing and new customers.

# Leveraging INGRS Group customer relations for incubating business relation in India

Organie Growth Through Linked Related Expansion
* Leveraging IAIPL's credentials of strong Tier-1 collaborative association with Global Sealing System
hManufacturing Company for access to Other OEMs.

Crganic Growth Through Related Diversification
& Expand into Commercial Vehicle Segment with related products.
# Expand into Two-Whesler Segment through new product using [AIPL existing technokgies

MSIL with almost 51% market share and more than 1.8 million vehicles annual production continues to be

WAIPL's main customer, Going forward, IAIPL aims o further strengthen its presence in MEIL supply chain through
new products in new projects.

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

IAIPL aims fo consolidate business with FCA Group brands ie. Fiat and Jeep. IAIPL is already supplier to
Fiat platforms and aims to supply for Jeep platforms

Mahindra is the biggest LRty Vehicle player in India, WAJIPL stars supplies to Mahindra from this financial vear
and would focus on furtherng s product portfolic on new Mahindra Platforms.

In ensuring compliance with OEM system requirements TAIPL will transform from 1500TS 18849 certification to
IATF 16849, JAIPL has also been certified with OH5AS 18001 and 150 14001,

IAIPL alse plans to adopt Lean Manufacturing Svstem to compliment best practices in the work place
such as 53, Kalzen and morning market, IAIPL plans o implement SAP Management Information Platform to
optimize processes and reporting

T.2 IAIPL Future Project
India is expected to become third largest Passenger Vehicle market by year 2020 with a total volume expected
to reach 4.2 million passenger vehicles per year. A growth rate of 9.4% is expected to sustain fill year 2025,

MEIL and Suzuki Motors Gujarat are well on track to achieving targeted volume of 2.0 million vehicles by
wear 2020, MSIL is lkely 1o increase capacity at Suzukl Gujarat plant by 0.75 million wehicles by vear 2025
taking combined capacity to 30 million vehicles per vear

MSIL confinues as main customer for IAIPL while at the same time developing more projects for existing and

new Ccustomers.

8. TALENT SYMERGY SDN. BHD. ("TSSB")

8.1 TSSB Business Strategy
TEEE was established in 1995 and has been incorporated inte Ingress Group in 1997, TSEB main activities
are design, prototype development, fabrcation, control system, assembly, testing, integration, installation’

commissioning and after sale service.

TS5B core competencies are:

& Robotic and Programmable Logic Coniroller (PLC)
o System Integrator [S1)

» Simulation

& [Design

e Engineering Services

& |ndustry 4.0
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Their main products are: Az the government now embarks on Industry 4.0 implementation in all indusfries, TS5B has been assigned to
1. Automated cell ype lines for automotive and food indusiries initiate and coordinate the implementation of the system in the Group, TSSB also has been shortlisted as one
2. Specialized machineres of the reciplent for Industry 4.0 grant via Malaysia Automotive Institute (MAI) from MITL This grant will further
3. Testing equipments enhance TSEE core competencies o support TSEE and INGRS business vision

4, Jigs and fixtures

5. Palletizing Robot Currently TSSB is studying on establishing a complete Industry 4.0 pilot projects at IPSE and 1AV, With these
. Emgineering services projects, TSSE will offer customer with a “complete automated line” with linkages to SAP system and
Production Monitoring System (PMS) whereby information will be in real-time connected to computers and
Since 2015, TS5B had initiated in-housse self-development program and had finally supplied fully automated maobiles.

system for Inner Sash assembly lines for IPSE and 1AV, TSEE also had successfully supplied and installed the
Press Tending Automation line for ITSE utilizing the TAA with Korean Engineenng Comparny,

To fulfill the Ingress Group ambition to increase automation level for productivity, guality and engineering
capahility, TESE has signed a TAA with Tae Sung Tech Co., Lid, Korea on 16 May 2016. The objective of the
TAA with Tae Sung Tech Co., Ltd is to enhance TSSE capability to be full-fledge machineries and automation
systam integrator.

TEEB alzo has signed the agency agreement with various renowned companies to be the authonzed dealer for
the following products in Malaysia:

& Yajima Giken, ING Japan = Authorized dealer for vanous kinds of feeder system
& Fuji Yusoki Kogyo Co., Lid, Japan — Authorized dealer for pallefizing robot
= MNawootec Co., Lid, Korea — Authorized dealer for welding equipment

In enhancing INGRS competitiveness, TS5B has helped the Group gradually transforming the manual to fully
automated cell type production line using the above technology,

8.2 TSSB Future Project
TEEB had mostly participated in automotive automation projects in INGRS companies such as 1AV, ITSE, IPSB
and PTIMV.

Moving forward, TS5E will explore a vast potential automation projects which also includes outside automotive
industry. In December 2017, TS558 received a letter of imtent {LO) to supply and develop a high-speed filling
maching and robotized packaging lines from losal company [Organie Galn Sdn Bhd - OGESB). The project s
categonzed under food industry,

TSEE also now working to enter furniture and beverages industry. Furthermore, initial discussion towards

a win-win collaboration with renowned design housse and robot integration companies is already being held.
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@ COMPET'T'ON AND |N DUSTHY TREND The Federation of Thai Industries (“FT1") forecasts that Thai domestic vehicle sales are expected to rise 3.3%

to 200,000 units in 2018.

1. THAILAND

FTI estimates that vehicle expors will decrease 3.5% to 1.1 million units in 2018, and Thai vehicle production
1.1 Overview of Thailand Market in 2017

will grow 0.6% to 2 million units. Forecasts on vehicle sales and production were revised upward due to the

Thailand Total Production Vil positive sentiment at the end of 2017,
on me
3000, 000
2453717 2 457 06T In conclusion, it is forecasted the wehicle market in Thailand in 2018 is expected to grow, helped by a number
2 500, 00 —_— : : . 1944417 1,88R 523 of factors such as Government imvestment in infrastructure projects which shall improve the domestic economy.
2,000,000 1,026,671 1,128,162 Further to that, a large number of people who took advantage of a government tax-break scheme for first-
1,500,000 11281002 1,204,885 1 ABB515 1,430,606 car buyers after completion of five years term are also now eligible to transfer ownership. and many will be
1,000,000 considenng replacing those vehicles with newer models, In the period 2017 to 2019, this process will gather
S0 . . . strength and should add demand worth 0.4 to 0.5 million units {or 40 to 45% of sales under the scheme)
017 However, there are still numercus uncerainties underying factors both domestically and globally which will
— . — evantually represent Thailand automotive scenario in the years to come.
Source: Federation of Thoi Indusiries 2. MALAYSIA
The Malaysian automotive market had remained subdued much of last year. For the second consecutive year,
the TV had contracted reflecting a down cyele of the market which started in 2016, Despite the country's
Thailand Total Industry Volume economie recovery and the aggressive effort by car makers, the car sales remained flat in 2017
1,500,000 =
:ﬁ‘ﬂ The TV of new motor vehicles registered in 2017 reached 5TEBIS units against SE00BS units registered in 2016
I Thizs was a marginal decline of 3,450 units or 0.6%.
1,000,000 il 151 iy Wi TR

871,850
R —_ - —

EO0LO00 Chart 1 : Malaysia TIV Trend From 2012 To 2017
l 3110
. Malaysia Total Industry Volume

2ma 2014 BO0.000
. Passenger Pickup B FPY B Commencial =TI 700,000 R55.793 GEG48T GEGET4

HO0,000 79,136 78,138

Source : Federafion of Thol lndusiries 500,000
400,000

While year 2016 can be considered a tough year for Thalland's aute industry because of several negative 300,000

factors, year 2017 promises an interesting mix of new product launches and technological innovations, 200,000

Domestic market in year 2017 has shown some positive improvement while export market still relatively lower 100,000

as compared 1o previous year achievement, .

Total Industry Volume (“TIV") in year 2017 recorded B71.650 vehicles which 13.4% increase from year 2016 SENEN CY 0T

contributed from improvement of consumer buying power from Thai economic growth whilst for exports is yet

to have a positive cullook due to global economis conditions and instability of ol prices,
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Overall sales of new Passenger vehicles had been flat, The total registration of Passenger Vehicles in 2017 was
214,679 units compared 1o 514,594 units achieved in 2016, thus recording a very small increase of only 85 units
of 0.02%, However, the total registration for Commercial Vehicles decline to 61,956 units In 2097 as comparned
to 65481 units in 2006, This means Commercial Vehicles sales had declined by 3,535 units or 54%, As a matter
of fact, the decline in TIV 2017 was mainly due to drop in sales for Commercial vehicles. The comparison

between 2017 and 2016 TIV is shown in Table 1.

Table 1 : TIV for 2017 and 2016

Market Segment 27 20186 Varance
Units Y
Passenger Vehickes 514679 214,504 85 002
Commercial Vehicles 61,956 55,491 (3.535) (5.4}
Total Vehicles 576,635 580,085 (3,450) (0.6}

4) Continuation of the strict lending guidelines including for hire purchase loans by the financial institutions
fallowing the implemantation of MFRS 9 and the prevailing high household debts level.

21 Ride-hailing services leg Uber and Grab) and rall services are becoming more and more popular as a mode
of land tramsport especially in the urban areas.

) Aggressive promotional campaigns by car companiss.

Bas=d on the abowve factors, the TIV forecast for 2018 is as in Table 3 below :

Table 3 : TIW 2017 Versus 2016

Total Imdustry Production ("TIP®) of new wehicles in 2017 recorded a decline of 45614 units or B.4% to reach
a total of 499,639 units compared to 545253 units in 2016, This 8.4% drop in TIP was much higher than
the 0.6% drop in sales as adjustments in production was promplly taken to avedd an over stock position
particularly during the last four months of 2017, The TIP perdformance for 2007 as compared to 2016 is
illstrated in Table 2,

Table 2 : TIP for 2017 and 2016

Market Segment 2017 2016 Variance
Units Y
Passenger Vehiclkes 459,558 £03,691 [44,133) {B.8)
Commercial Vehicles 40,081 41,562 (1.481) (3.6}
Total Vehicles 454,638 545,253 45,614) (8.4}

Malaysian Automotive Association [MAA) have taken the following economic and emvironmental factors into
account in TIV forecast for 2018.

1) The Malaysian economy iz forecasted to grow between 5% and 5.5% in 2018, driven by mainty by domestic
demand and export performance.

21 Implementation of big tickel projects such as the Tun Razak Exchange, Light Rall Transit (LET3), Mass Rapéd
Transit (MATZ), and East Cost Rail Link [ECEL) would add to the growth momentum of the local econonmy,

3) As for consumers, the rising cost of living remains a key concern. Coupled with the high housshold debt
level, these are expected to continue as the restraining factors hampering consumers’ appetite for spending

especialy on big ticket items.

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

Market Segment 2018 2017 Variance
(Forecast) (Actual) Units %
Passenger Vehicles 226,500 4679 11,821 23
Commercial Vehicles 63,500 61,956 1,544 25
Total Vehicles 590,000 576,635 13.365 23
3. INDONESIA

The Indonesian government |5 eager to tum Indonesia inte a global production base for car manufactuning and
would like to =ee all major car producers establishing factories in Indonesia as it aims to overtake Thailand as
the largest car production hub in Scutheast Asia and the ASEAN region, On the long-term, the government
wants 1o tum Indonesia inte an independent car maniufactunng country thal delivers completely buillt units (CBLI
of which all components are locally-manufactured in Indonesia.

The TV for 2007 was 1,079,534 units, increased by 1.6% or 16,805 units as compared to the same period
last year of 1,062,729 units, Indonesia is the only ASEAN countries thal surpass the 1 million mark in 2017 for

the TIV.

Chart 1 : Indonesia TIV Trend From 2012 To 2007

Indonesia Total Industry Volume
L s 1,220,811 1208,028
—— L —— S qomaste 1,082,720 1,079,534
1,000,000 . . 200,742 235310
AO0.000 276,
BO0.000
400,000
200,000
2013 2014 2015 2018 2017
—FV OV e TV
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Market Segment 2m7 2016 Variance (%)
Passanger Vehicls B44,224 BE1,287 (2.1}
Commercial Vehicle 235310 200,742 172
Total 1.078.534 1,062,729 1.6

Total passenger vehicle from January to December 2017 registered at 844,244 units decreased by 2.1% as
compared to the same period last yvear while commercial vehicle increased by 17.2% o 235310 units in 2017
as compared o same period last year,

The increass in TIV from last year is an indicator that the automotive market in Indonesia has shown
a consistent tremd of purchasing with the signal to further growth in the near future. This was supported by the
steady and convincing economic growth with rapid and massive development of infrastructure projects

implemented by the govemment,

Looking at the TIP in 217, it also showed an increasing pattern parallel with the steady growth of TIV, Oherall,

TIF from January 1o December 2007 were recorded at 1,216615 units, an increased by 3.3% or 38818 unils as
compared to the same period last year.

T TiIP
Category 2m7 2016 Variance 2017 2016 Variance

(%) (%)
Sedan 8,138 13,832 [33.4) 20670 29,644 3.5
452 596,893 GOA,054 (1.8) BE1.942 G, 794 27
4] 17,305 14,274 22 18.910 19,378 27
Bus 3,851 3,269 (2.7} 2580 4,769 {4B.5]
Pick Up 128422 120,666 6.4 145,183 140,269 a5
Truck 82,370 66,773 338 86,526 64,283 246
LOGE 4x2 234,554 235,171 {0.3) 249,834 255,650 (2.3
Total 1,079,634 1,062,729 1.6 1,216,615 1177787 3.3

The slight decrease in passenger vehicle is mainly from sedan category, while the encouraging increase in
commersial vehicle is coming from truck, The rising need for the commercial vehicle was resulted from the
positive impact generated by the raplid and massive development of infrastructure projects iImplemented by the

government of Indonesia.

Although the relatively new low-cost green car (LCGC) has gained popularity in Indonesia, most Indonesians
still prefer to buy the multipurpose vehicle (MPY). Indonesians love the MPY, known as "people carriers”, as
these vehicles are bigger and taller than most other car vpes. Indonesians need a big car because they enjoy
taking trips with the family (andfor invite some friends). The MPY can typically carry up 1o Seven passengers

“ Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

Car manufacturers are aware of high MPY demand in Indonesia and therefore continue to launsh new
(and better) models, With functionality in check, manufacturers now particulary focus on improving the design
of the MPY to entice Indoneslan consumers,

Indonesia’s automotive industry is centered around Bekasi, Karswang and Purwakarta in West Java, comenienthy
located mear Indonesia’s capital city of Jakarta where car demand = highest and an area where infrastructure i=
ralativaly weall developed {including access to the port of Tanjung Prick in Morth Jakarta, the busiest and most
advanced Indonesian seaport that handles more than 50% of Indonesia's trans-shipment cargo fraffic, as well as
the new Patimban seaport that s being developed in West Java), Good available infrastructure reduces logistics
costs, In this area in West Java various big global car-makers invested in industrial estates as well as car and
component manufactunng plants, Therefore, it has become the production base of Indonesia’s automolive sector
including motoreyeles)

There are a few other factors that support car sales in Indonesia. Firstly, Indonesia still has a very low per capita
car ownership ratio implying there is enormous scope for growth as there will be many first-time car buyers
among Indonesia's rapidly rising middle class. Secondly, the popular and affordable low-cost gresn car (LCGC)
I% expected to boost sales, Thirdly, the Indonesian govemment is eagerly trying to speed up infrastructure
development across the Indonesian nation

EXPORT MARKET

The CBU export market for Indonesia looks encouraging im 2017 as its registered higher than year 2006, Cverall,
the CEU export market for passenger car from January to December 2017 recorded sales of 231,189 units an
increase by 18.8% a=s compared to the same period last year of 194,357 units.

The Indonesian government alse has high hopes for the country's car exports (thus generating additional forelgn
exchange revenues), particularly since the implementation of the ASEAN Economis Community [AEC), which
trns the ASEAM region into one single market and production area, The AEC should unlock more opportunites
for exporters as it intensifies reglonal trade

Indonesian-made cars that are already exported include the Toyota Avanza and Toyota Fortuner, the Missan
Grand Livina, the Honda Freed, Chevorelet Spin and Suzuki APY. The most important export markets are
Thailand, Saudi Arabia, Philippines, Japan, and Malaysia.

However, it s difficult for Indonesia to boost 15 car exports because the nation's automotive Industry is still
at the Eure 2 level, while other nations are already at Euro 5 (Euro is a standard that reduces the limit for
carbon monoxide emissions), Mher issues that limit car exports are concerns about safety standards and

techmology.
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@ HISK FACT.OHS the financial results from its forelgn subsidiaries, Unfavourable changes in the exchange rate between Thal Baht

and the relevant foreign currencies could result in adverse financial impact to the Company. To mitigate this,
the Managemsnt ha temn in pl to closel ito h at ents betw its ba d
Ingress Industrial (Thailand} Public Company Limited remains committed in meeting its vision and strategic . . : A R e i
Thal Baht against all other currencies transacted,
cbhjectives, In order to achleve our commitment, it 15 critical for the Company to possess the capability of - e

managing risks to an acceptable level for the achievement of strategic objectives in line with itz vision.
The Group protects itsell from the risk by keeping up closely with the movement of raw matenal prices

and by using cenfral purchasing systems or (“CPS") to source the primary production materials. Under CPS, OEMs
determinge the type of steel to be used as primary raw matenals for automotive components manufactunng,

The Board has a stewardship responsibility o understand these risks, provide guidance on dealing with

these risks and to ensure risks are managed proactively, in a structured and consistent manner.

i terial li d tradi i f th i terials. The duty of the G is t
The Group Risk Management unit has been assigned to embark into Enterprise Risk Management {(“ERM") RARTEEEIEE SIS SRS SRS ) Bl S R S e S See S

h als b ! 1
framenwork where it will be used as a ool o manage Ingress’s key risks on a continucus basis, ERM risk policy USSRl PERECION ATIMSCRES DEASE, of Hia:nroee ) [esemmereno o M Smmeaul potshs

ith OEMs for th ibility t iately adjust th i f aut ti ta t d
was developed, which has besn communicated and implemented throughout the organization. ERM process ! il e A i s i

ith t and price fluctuation of pri ducti terials. That t . at certain level, red
covers all activities in a systematic and productive way to reduce the magnitude of impact and likelihood of b Rt Sl e e ik b e

the impact of price flustuation of the pelma roduction materlals that can have on the Group's business
oocurmence of an event that causes a company 1o not achieve s objectives and goals SIg P - PERIESGE B ' Pl S

performance.

For the financial vear ended 31 January 2018, together with the management, the Group Risk Management unit

2.2 Risks of interest rate fluctuati
has reviewed and assessed IIT's key risk factors which can be categorized and described as follows: = ErEst He e

A significant portion of the Group's overall cutstanding leans are conditioned with floating interest rates
The flzating rates pose a risk to the Group as when the reference rate fluctuates upward, the financing cost of

the Group will be affected

1. STRATEGIC RISKS

1.1 Changes in government’s policies & regulations
The Group has a risk mitigation measures by tracking closely the interest rate movements, The Group also

Az a result of political or socio-economic instability of any forelgn country, where Thalland had experienced
projects that there will not be a significant rate change from the current level in the near future based on the

several upheavals in the past, any changes to the govemment's policies or regulations would have an impact

eta lici d d im Thailand, Malaysia. Ind i d India, th j ketz of the G . Bei
to the growth of domestic economy and automotive industry in terms of product demand and production monetary palicies adopted in Thailan i e hr ah =

a public listed company, there will be more fund raising options for the Group, The Group will consider man
volume, This will generally affect the automotive components manufacturing business and directly 1o the P ' ey ' e a e el

It fi ther tha mmercial banks that offe table fi i &t.
Company's business strategy and direction. Management's key strategy to address this risk is by building SIERTES mher i e reE s T e e T

closer relationship with the local authonties,
2.3 Risks of insufficient insurance coverage for the Group

Although the Group attempls to mitigate the sk of losses andfor damage to the major assets as well as its
1.2 Investment-related risk g P F mitig e a W

loyees b haszing i in the amount believed to be sufficient and at the same standard oth
Irmvestment model failure could have significant financial impact towards the Company on the investment amount PR SRR, STENes =i i i LR = =

. operators in the same industry, However, there s still a risk 1o the Group as the coverage of losses and’ oF
spent and finance cost incurred from bank borrowings, it may alse affect the Company’s long-term sustainability P neusiry. Row ' P rad

d i i d by the d ot be leteal fed, the actual d t
Therefore, the Company has managed this by enhancing its investment evaluation and monitonng processes, SHCERSSES U S Sk LSRRI S, S = e

exceseds the sum insured, such as insurance against flooding im Thailand. This may have an effect the financial

condiion and operating results of the Com . The Group alse faces a nsk of not gelting coverage, partiall
Continueus monitering 15 important in ensuring the performance and guality of the investment s able o meet peraling pany P getiing age. p Y

in whaola. for the | d ded f lusions. The G ) licy is to foll th
the expected return of investment. Ineffective investment monitoring where current investment performance s il ki o mRREs T sREEEE RESEERAR . & b

s ractice of the Group in buying the insurance that can cover the sufficlent and acceptable amount
data is not generated may affect decision making processes and lead to possible investment failures ' iy p s A : ' ' ' ' 2 .

f potential | lting from the busi fi
Key strategy in addressing this risk is by improving the procedures of investment monitoring within the Growp. R L e

The Group has taken a preventive action for the risk of damages causing to its operating assets due to

2. FINANCIAL RISKS
controllable or preventive accidents or events, All companies under the Group continuously follow the best
practice and safety standards im running the plant in accordance with related laws of all the countries the

2.1 Forex risk

G i ting in. Thi trol the risk f t ident that terial d t
The Company is exposed to forex risk in itz overseas business operations and procurement dealings, PHER IS s 5 AT ST TS ISR TSI SwEris wr Anelner EL Ay SAnss MEens; fanags e

the operating assets of the Grou
especially in raw material purchases. Moreover, the Company also faces exchange rale nsks in consalidating perating P
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3. COMPLIANCE RISKS

3.1 Non-compliance with regulatory reguirements
Failure to comply with regulatory andfor statutory provisions or reguirements (such as Stock Exchange

of Thailand, Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand, Thailand Civil and Commercial Code

BE 2468 (18925}, Public Limited Compary Act BE. 2535 (1992, Securities and Exchange Act BE. 2535 (1992),

Thailand's Factory &Act, B.E. 2535 {1992) and Enhancement and Conservation of Mational Environmental
Cruality Act, B.E. 2535 (1982), Malaysia's Envirenmental Quality Act 1974, and Indonesia’s Law Mo, 32 of 2009
on Environmental Protection and Management) may cause regulatory bodies to initiate legal actions towards

the Company, which in tum could affect the Company's reputation

Among the key strategies to address this risk is to allocate specific resources to ensure that any regulatory
requirements are well monitored and submitted on a timely manner, Enhancement to the procedures of
compliance management was also deployed on top of providing more fraining and education to the relevant

personnel in the Comparny,

4. OPERATIONAL RISKS

4.1 Customer-related risk

Dependence on & handful of customers for a significant porfion of revenue may impair the company’s business
profitability. The Company’s vulnerability in losing any of these customers within the group would pose
a negative impast towards its growth strategies, Poor customer relationship management or inability to meet
customers’ expectations may result in customers discontinuing their supply-relationship with any of the

Company’s subsidiarkes,

Among the established action plans o mitigate this risk revolve around applying customer retention sirategies

and internal rescurces management in the areas of close monitoring of customer's satisfaction survey resulis.

Continuously securing new business or customears is crucial for the long-term sustainability of a company apart
as an avenue to fund its new investment or project. The inability to secure new business would disrupt the
Company to achieve its targeted revenue and possibly loss of market share and its brand recognition.

The management’s action plans in order 1o minimize the probability of this risk occurring was o
carry outf situational analysis and response planning by performing a detailed benchmarking against
customers” reguirements and technological gap analysis between existing capabilities and fulure demands
In addition to that, it was deemed that the marketing and customer relationship management should also be
Improved,

4.2 Quality issues
Product guality is the key success factor for automotive industry because the defects or low guality product is
unaccepiable; they can cause serous accident and consequent effects. The Group is at risk of losing customers

and s reputation and may be sued by the end consumers for the damages caused by below-standard product

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

The Group aims at contrelling produst guality through a continucus improvement on production process and
procedures as well as product’s guality control. Such measures give an assurance to a certain level that
there is low risk for product gquality. The Group and its partmers from Japan have taken necessary actions

to controd and Improve the product guality continuously in order to eam acceplance from varous OEMs

4.3 Management risks
Loss of key management staff and inability to fill the vacancy via a proper succession planning may disrupt
the Company to achieve its desired results, In lleu of this, the Company has taken risk measures by adopting

A succession planning framework for critical positions across the companies within the Group.
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@ SH AHEHGLD|NG STHUCTU HE DIVIDEND POLICY FOR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

It B nE sohsidonas’ podiey 0 pay dividend 1o the shareholders al the minimam rate ol A% of net prodit atter

As at 31 January 28, Ingress Industnal [Thalland) Public Gompany Limited (“the Company™} has a regstersd ineoe tax of seporate Tnarcial statement and after fund has Deen reserved as required by law, The dividend

and piiid'llj.l l.':-=.:|.:liti.i| ol Baht 1446942600, all of which e ﬂfﬂlllaf}' Shares at st viiliie of Bant 1 each, As &t |_-..rr'|||1.1||l wrill |1t:|'.||':|'||"| [=]}] |:-|.-|:r'.'t|:|1|u eSS, linancial condillons, Ilq“i-!'h[','_ need lar WI.:er|||!_| capital, adgdibonal

to date. the Company does not have any other securities with terms and conditions different from Ordinary Shares investment, busmess expansion, conditions amd restrictions by the loan agreement and other related management

fzctors that the Board and shareholders of subsidiaries deemed appropriate which need to follw the policy of

TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY e Compsky,

Mame Wumber of Shares Halding %

1 Ingress Corporation Berhusd BEE 499,770 50,023
2 pAr. Mathapong Phanrattanamongkol a7, 250000 25674
d b, Viehan Losirpaiboon &4,000,000 1.659
4 Bdr, Khariti Kesratinamavattana 23,130,200 1588
5 Thai NVDR Co., Lid 16,807,300 1382
i Btr. Vasin Phatikitsst 14,080,004 0.980
7 Atr. Wutthiphol Panyahkanok 14,000,000 0.568
H br, Kiattlsak Tritruengliassana 14,781,500 (.814
o hr, Pecrajet Suswannagaan 11000000 0,760
10 bbrs, Oraphin Chupenhensakol & 250000 .57
Cithisrs 418,143,820 268

TOTAL 1,446.5942.690 00,000

Souree [ Thallond Depository (Thoilland) Co., Lid. (Information ol the slosing of shore regisfer book on
17 Apell 2018)

Remark : The shoreholders of 108 were Daluk Ramall bin Muso and Dato” O, Ab Wahab bin ismol, both are
currantly the Exscutive Direciors of the Compony ond Direciors of some subsidiory companies: undsr

tire Groug,

DIVIDEND POLICY FOR THE COMPAMNY

N is thes Campany’'s polloy 1o pay dividend at the minimom rate of 40% of net profit atiributable 1o Eguily
nolders of the {“‘.-:_||11|.'|.‘°|||',' an consahidated financial statemant and after Tung has been resérved as reguirad
i‘l':,l Law, The dividend pa:,'11'|r:||1 will depand on imeestmeant plﬂrl conditions and restrictions by the loan
agrecmant or related agresments [I1 anyy, loancial conditkon and operaling results and other relaled facbors of
the Group, The Board may occasionally review and revige the dividend polioy to afign with the future growth

pian of the Group, demand for capital fund and working capital as well as other {actors deemed appropriate.
Az the Company s 8 holding company, its major asset is the invesiment in the subsidiaries. The dividend

:|_.ur!,-'||'|-e':||| ability ol thi {‘A}*.'llp:i-:'l',' theiis, depends mainly on the operating results and the recepl of ehelclend

IFar s Subsarkiarnes
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0 CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

Principles of Good Corporate Governance of Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Ingress Industrial {Thailand) Public Company Limited (“the Company”) endeavors to manage its business

by adhering to principles of good corporate govermance, as it recognizes the bensfits and importance of good
cofporate govemanoe, which contributes to the management of work and business operalions in a transparent

mannar and takes into consideration the best interests of all interested parties in all respects, as well as

maintaiming werifiability. In order to increase its competitiveness and the shareholders” eguity in the long term,

the Company has, therefore, established a corporate govemance poliey in wiiting, the details of which are set
it below:

SECTION 1: RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has given importance to equal rights of all shareholders in obtaining accurate, sufficient and
timely information concerning its operation so that they can make sound investment decisions. The Board of

Directors thus has formulated the following policies:

1.1 Corporate govemnance policy with respect to basic rights of shareholders
The Company has the duly to protect and respect basic rights of shareholders, which include the rght to

purchase, sell or ransfer shares, the right to be allocated profits derived from business operations, the nght to

adequately receive news and information with respect to the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries,

the right to attend and cast their votes in shareholders” meeting in order to appoint or to remove directors,

to appoint an auditor, o alocate dividends, to make amendments o the articles of association or memorandum
of association, to reduce or increase capital and to approve special transactions which relevant laws reguire

them to be considered and approved by meeting of shareholders.

The Company also encourages 15 shareholders to exercise their basic nghts in the annual general meeting
of shareholders, such as the right to propose meeting agendas to be included in the shareholders’ meetings
in advance, the right to nominate personi{s} for election as directoris) in advance, the right to send
questions prior to the shareholders’ meeting and the right o express their opinions and to ralse guestions
in the shareholders’ mesting, amongst others.

The Company refraing iiself from undertaking any acts deemed to be a violation or limitation or deprivation of
rights of shareholders o review and study information which the Company s reguired to disclose in compliance
with regulatory requirements prior to shareholders’ mesting and rights to attend shareholders’ mesting; for
example, additional documents containing matenal information shall not be presented unannounced and
meeting agenda items shall not be added or material information shall not be changed without prior notice

b=ing given to shareholders.

The Company has a duly o facilitate all shareholders in altending shareholders’ meeting and exercising their
basic Aghts in terms of appropriate meeting place and time

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

1.2 Corporate Governance Policy with respect to Rights of Shareholders to Attend Meeting of Shareholders
The Company has a policy fo provide all shareholders in advance with details regarding date, time, venus and
agendas o be considered and approved in the meeting of shareholders, The Company will provide shareholders
with vital and sufficient data which would allew shareholders o cast their votes in each agenda reascnably and
appropriately, The Company will send all data and documents which is reqguired by law to s shareholders prior
to the shareholders” meefing so that they have sufficient time to review and study such data and documents.

Minutes of shareholders’ meeting shall be prepared with completeness, accuracy and transparency. They shall
include detalls regarding ssues and questions ralsed by shareholders as well as opinion they expressed dunng
the: meeting for fulure reference o verification, The Company shall post minutes of shareholders” meeting on its
wiebsite and send them to the Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days from the date of meseting.

1.3 Corporate Governance Policy with respect to Conducting Meetings of Shareholders

The Company has a policy to facilitate, to the fullest extent as possible, s shareholders in attending and
casting their votes in the shareholders’ meeting, The Company will not undertake any acts that would deprive
shareholders’ opporiunities to attend and to cast thelr voles in such meeting,

The Company will notify its shareholders of the rules, regulations, steps and procedures with respect to
conducting shareholders’ meeting in invitation to shareholders” meeting as well as at the meeting. The person
chairing the meeting shall notify shareholders attending the meeting of the rules, regulations, steps and
procedures for conducting the meeting as well as voling procedures for each agenda, Such details shall be
recorded in minutes of shareholders’ meeting. In addition, the Company has a policy to give its shareholders
opportunity to submit guestions relevant to the matters to be discussed and voted at shareholders” mesting
prior to the date of meseting.

The Company ensures that all shareholders will be given an opporiunity 1o ralse gquestions or Issues relevant
to meeting's agenda items and to express their opinion during the meeting. All questions and comments of
shareholders as well as clarfications given by directors and/or executives shall be recorded in all minutes of
shareholders’ mesting for future reference and verification.

The Company gives importance to convening of shareholders’ meetings and encourages all shareholders
o attend them, Shareholders would not be able to cast their voles in any agenda in which they have interest,

The Company and its subsidiaries convens their shareholders’ mesting to consider, acknowledge or approve
Important matters in relation 1o thelr operations, Quorum and procedures in convening their respective
shareholders’ meetings are subject to secunties rules and regulations, public and private company law of
egach country the company cperates in as well as provisions under their respective articles of association

as well as joint wvenfure agreements.

Shareholders” meetings of the Company and its Thai subsidiaries shall be physically convened.
Shareholders’ meetings of Malaysian, Indonesian and Indian subsidiaries may be either physically held or
held using circular resolution, subject to relevant regulatory reguirements of Malavsia or Indonesia or India

as the case may bs.
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For every mesting of shareholders of all subsidiaries that is physically held, the Company will send its director

or executive which is appointed by the mesting of Bosrd of Directors to attend and cast its votes in the meeting.

Cuorum and procedures in comvening their respective shareholders’ mestings are subject to securities rules and
regulations, public and private company law of each country they have operated in as well as provisions under
their respective articles of assoclation as well as joint venture agresments

For every meeting of shareholders of all subsidianes that is held using circular resolution, the Company will
exarcize its voling right fo ensure its votes reflect its actual stake and imterest in each subsidiary.

Quorum and procedures in convening their respective shareholders’ mestings are subject to securities rules
and regulations, public and private company law of each country they have operated in as well as provisions

under their respective articles of association as well as joint venlure agresments

For meeting of shareholders of Malaysian subsidianes, that of Indenesian subsidianes as well as Indian subsidiary

and that of subsidianes in amy other jursdictions §f any in the fulure) in which local laws allow voling by hands,

the Company, as the major shareholder of each subsidiary, will exercise its right (via its director or executive
who iz appointed by its meeting of Board of Directors to afternd and cast its wotes in the mesting of sharsholders
of each subsidiary} to arrange such that voting by poll applies in the meeting.

In the meetings of shareholders of the Company and its subsidiaries, one-share-one-vole rule applies,

Unless otherwise required under relevant rules and regulations, articles of association of the Company and

its subsidianes or joint venture agreements the Group of Companies entered inte with i1 business partners,

a majonty of voles of the shareholders present and voting al the meeting Is required, provided that in the case
of an eguality of votes, the person presiding owver the meeting shall have an additional vote as a casting wote.

In casting its wvotes in the meeting of shareholders of =ach subsidiary, the Board of Directors of the Company
shall take into account relevant factors in deciding whether to wote for, to vote against or to abstain from
vole casting in each agenda item, In this regard, the Board of Directors shall monitor to ensure that its director
of execulive who s appointed to attend the meeting will cast its voles in each agenda item in accordance with
reschution of the meeting of the Board of Directors

SECTION 2= EQUITABLE TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that all shareholders must be treated equally and has thus established the following
important policies:

2.1 Proposing additional matters to be discussed and approved at the shareholders’ meeting
The Company™s policy s o facilitate minor shareholders in proposing additional meeting agenda items pror to

the date of the shareholders’ meeting. In this regard, all additional agenda items to be proposed for discussion
at the meesting by the shareholders and consideration thereof shall be in accordance with relevant rules and

regulations.
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The major shareholders who hold executivesdirector positions shall not add additional meeting agenda items
without giving advance mofice thereof unless in the case of necessity, particularly important agenda items which
require the shareholders to take time to study the information before making a decision.

In the meeting of the Board of Directors, interested directors could not cast their votes in the meeting, In the
meeting of shareholders, interested shareholders would not be able to cast their voles in the meeting,

2.2 Nomination of candidates for directorship
The Company's policy is to facilitate its minor shareholders in nominating candidates for the position of directors.
In this regard, all nominations by the shareholders and consideration thereof shall be in compliance with relevant

rules and regulations.

2.3 Encouraging shareholders bo use proxy form in the case that they are unable to attend the meeting

in_pErson
The Company encourages the shareholders to use proxy form which allows the shareholders to indicate

their vote. At least 1 independent director shall be nominated as their proxy, and the Company will attach the
aforementionad proxy form to the invitation to the mesting.

24 Ennuuraﬂ shareholders to use 'miinE ballot

The Company encourages the use of voling balleds for important meeting agenda items, such as the entering
into connected transactions, acquisition or disposal of material assets, ele, to maintain ransparency and
verfiability in the event of disagreement at a later date,

oint individual directors

The Company encourages the shareholders to exercise their right to appoint directors on an individual basis.

2.6 Preventive measures against the use of inside information to seek unlawiful benefits

The Company has established measures in its Code of Conduct to prevent its directors, executives and
emplovees and those of their subsidiaries from unlawfully using Inside information or any confidential
information of the Company and s subsidianes for thelr own benefits or those of others, for securities trading
of for undertaking any acts that may give fse o conflict of interest, Such measures are stipulated in the Code
of Conduct.

Furthermore, the Corporate Secretary has alsoc besn assigned as the person responsible for conveying the
regulations with respect to disclosure of information and monitoring and ensuring that the Board of Directors
and the executives report their securities holding in compliance with the law, including disclosing information
regarding the interests of and related transactions and requiring that all directors and executives who have the
duly to report their interests, as provided by the law, notify the Company thereof,
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SECTION 3: ROLES OF INTERESTED PARTIES / STAKEHOLDERS

The Compsany recognizes and gives importancs to the righis of all groups of interested parties, and not only
those whioh If is reguired to take Inlo consideration in compliance with the law. The Compary has identified
groups desmed as nterested parties and establshed policles and measoures for acting in the interests of the
nterested parties. The interested parties of the Company can be categorized as follows!

3.1 Employees and their families
The Company trests sl employeses politely ard pay respect to their mdhndualism. The Company will compensate
amployess based on the consideration of their works in a8 fair manner and 0 a way that is guantifisble under

relevant laws: It alzo aims to confinuoisly promots and develop knowladge end working skifls of its personne|,

such as by means of organizing training sessions and seminars for its executhes and employees, The Company

ensures that i treats all of Hs employess fairy and equally, for example, with respect o emploves evaluations,

confidentlality regarding smployment history and the exercise of the various rights of the employeées
The Company emplaces paramount consderation In pseeraning the amployment énvironment ks sale, healthy
and effectvely faciliiates work. Hencetorth, the Compamy will make sure that it strictly complies with all relevant
abar laws

3.2 Shareholders

The Company has long realized thal shareholders are s owners, I thus has duly to create long-temm
value added 1o all shareholders, The Company thiss requires &l directors, execulives and emplovees to adhese
with the following guibelines:

3.21 They shall act based on principles of fiduciary duties with professionalism to ensure all shareholders are
fairly treated and their best interests are wall protected;

3.22 They shall preseat accurate and sufficient data regerding the Company's financial status and perfommancs

oswell a5 its other Important information on a timely bases

F23 They shall inform - all shareholders the Company’s future frends ising aceurate and sufficient data;

3.2.4 They shall not sbuse the Company's confidential information that has yet to be publicly released in
the way that may give rise o conflict of interest. whether for their own or others’ benefits; and

325 They have duty not to act m the ways that may deprive or violate righis of shareholders such as failre
to send shareholders important docaments of Ifonmation prior 10 shareholders” rgating or substantial changs
of inforreation withoul providing them prior nolios,

3.3 Customers

The Company has 3 duty to maintein good relations and to cooperate with customers in the long term,

based on the principles of honesty, reliability and mutual trest. It has a duly to satisfy its customears io the
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extant possible by means of taking responsibifity for, ecting in the inferests of and considering the |ssues and
needs of the customers as its priority, whereby all executives and emplovees shall comply with the measures
pursuant to this policy. The Company will perform work based on the principles of sthica and will not zobcit,
recelve of pay dishonest benefits (o the customers and creditors. Furthermore, the Company 15 not only
committed o present and deliver products and services of high standard which meet the needs of the
customers bul atso siriving to adhere 1o the various conditions a5 agreed upon with the customers to the
best of its abililies

3.4 Creditors

The Company treafs itz credifors based on the principles of mutual bensfits and fair rewards by avoiding
potential conflict of interest. Problem solving is based on the prinociple of long-term business redation, Accordingly,
the Company will not soliclt, recen'e or pay any [Hegal benefits (o s customers and creditors and will always
Tully comply with all conditions as agreed with B8 creditors, Should the Company unable o comply
with any of such conditions, iU will inform ks creditors in advance o thal they can kak for proper sdlutions,

3.5 Competitors

The Company has a policy 1o treat its competitors on a fair and eppropriate basis. It will not use any
inappropriate or iHegal ways to solicit competitors’ data: To make sure that this is observed. the Company
will act based on the principle of fair competition, will not use any inappropriaie or iliegal ways to solioit
compebiors’ data and will not defame its compelitons using inappropriate ways., Currently, the Company has
a policy bo proacte and encourage T and res compebiison

3.6 Suppliers
The Company will make certain that i will create and maintain good long-term melation with all of iz supplars

and provide equal opporiunities to all suppliers in presenting and proposing their goods and services. In deciding
whather fo select or not fo select any supplisrs, the Company will taks info account their products gquality
as wall as proposed frading terms and caonditions so that its best interests are teken care of.

3.7 Regulatory Agencies
The Company wll fully eanform o all applicable nules and regulations, Therefore, the Company has-a poley

10 provide necessary supporl to state activities,

3.8 Communities local to each company’s place of business

The Company and its employees are committed fo behave and conduct themselves as good citizens and
in ways that benefit society and community. The Company has a duty to treat the communities locsl to
gach company's place of business anvicably and o give assistance to and promole the livelihooed of the
communites as well as (¢ be responsible for remedying any situation arising o% a conseguence o the
Campany's busingss opérations, noa fale and equitable maner

The Company also has a duly fo oversee and support activities which are beneficial 1o society and to willingly
coopsrais with govemmental and non-govemmental organizations and to maks ssonfices for the better good

ANRUAL REPORT 204 7/3018



3.9 Surrounding Envircnment
The Company and its employess are committed to behave and conduct themselves as good citizens and

I ways that benehl society and commaunity

SECTION 4: DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION AND TRAMNSPAREMNCY

The Company has a policy to disclose information regarding the Company, including financial information
and other information im relation to its operations, in an accurate, complete, timely, and tramsparent manner,

via egmly-accesmble channels, and in a far and relable mannes

4.1 Internal control and entering into transactions with potential conflicts of interest

At all times, the Compamny will use its best endeavor to prevent and eliminate any potential conflicts of interest
by prescribing that asset acquisition/disposition transactions, connected transactions and transactions with
potential conthets of interest are n compliance with relevant regulations/guidelnes as prescrbed by the SEC
and the SET. To acheve this, the Company will underake necessary acts o ensure that 11s direclors andsor
executives andior maor shareholders, as the case may e, o nol operate or engage N any businesses that ane
similar to or compete with that of the Company and its subsidianes, or that may cause an adverss impact to the
Company's and its subsidiaries’ competitiveness, or enter into related transactions whereby the other benefits

resilting thersol may be n conthet with the best inferests of the Company or 1S subsidianes

The directors anddor execullves and/or major shareholders of the Company, as the case may e, shall inform
the Company if they hold shares in companies whose business operations are similar fo or compete with that
of the Company or its subsidiaries in order for the Company and the Audit Committee to consider whether or

not such shareholding i in conflict with the best interests of the Company and its subsidiarss.

4.2 Disclosure al Information

The Company warrants that preparation and disclosures of Company’s information are in compliance with
relevant laws or regulations via the SET's and the Company’s websites. The Company will proceed as necessary
to ensure disclosed information is accurate, not misleading in nature and sufficient. In addition to the discloswre
of annual registration statement form (S6-1 form), anmual regort I"'n ?:I and other data that are reguired o
disclose via SET channel, the Company prepares and dissemanates s important data in both Tha and Enghsh
wid its website, Iinformation disclosore wall be continuously made and updated so that investors would get
access to up-to-date data. The report of changes in the holding of Company's shares of directors and executives

have been disclosed and reported to the SEC in a timaly manner.

The Board of Directors has given importance 1o acourate, rebable, sufficient and reasonable hinancial reports
Thus, the Company’s flnancial reports are prepared based on generally accepted acocounting principles
Management has adopted proper accounting policies and they will continuously, strictly and appropriately be
applied. The Company s financial reports are prepared with due care, with sufficient and accurate data being
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. The Board of Directors has also arranged for effective and
etficient Internal control System 1O reasonably ensure that the IZ.'LJ||||;_|:|'|'|.".-: and s subsidianes’ acoounting and
financial data are appropnately recorded, ther assel custody & o good shape and potential fraudulent actnalies

are timely detected.
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The chamges in the holding of the Company's securities by directors and executives are summarized as follows:

Mumber o shares

Ag at B Increase’ At book clos

MName Position August |decrease) on 17 April

200 Fasn 2018

1. | KMr. Nuthawuth Chartletpipat * Chalemnan® 1,447 000 {547 (0] 00,000
2. | Datuk Rameli Bin Musa Dhepaity 1,447 0140 1.447 010
Chairman®*
3. | Mr. Abdul Rahim Bin Haji Hitam President’ 750,000 {750,000)
CEQhn
4 Dato” Dr. A Wahab Bin ksmall Director™® 1,447,010 1,447,010

=l M Abdul Ehudus Bin Mohd Naaem Lhrecior

4] M. Apechat Suthilsitum Lhrector® 1,44 ¢ AWK (1,000,000) a4 ¢ K]
T. | Tan Sri Dr. Surin Pitsuwan * Duractor® 1,447,000 1.447 000
& | Mr. Affandi Bin Mokhtar ** Dwrector™®

9. | Datin Seri Farah Binti Datuk Rameli | Director®® 814,000 214,000
10, | M Surin Wungehanoen Director™®

11 Wr. Eddie Dzuralmin Bin Zulkipli Group CFO 514,000 {914,000)

12 M. Sarawool Srwanayos Lonporale ol ) fal), L)

ecrelary
13. | Mr. Supachai kMeerarg Depaty G,

Sales and 14 00 {914,000)

Business

Development

Ml

A indepandant & Now=Executive Direciors
Ron-independent & Execitive Linsciong

Ah Tel Troding Day of INGRS

Appainted as new Choirmon on 14 December 2017 raplacing the iole Tan Sn O Surin Pitsuwon

Resigmed a5 Nom=Independent ond Executive Direcior of the Company effechive from 14 Decamibar 2077,

4.3 Heport on the responsibilities of the Board of Directors with respect to the financial reports

The Company requires thal there be a repont on the responsieliiies of the Board of Lirectors with réespect 10 the
timancial reports, which shall be presented along with the auditos's report 0 s annusl report,. The atorementiomned

report shall besr the signatures of the Chalmman and the GeEQ
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4.4 Disclosure of the roles and duties of the Board of Directors and sub-committees
The Company prepares and discloses the roles and dutfies of the Board of Directors and sub-committess, the
numbsr of meetings of the Board of Directors held and the number of mestings each board member attends in

the previous vear, as well as comments in relation o the performance of thelr duties in the annual report

SECTION 5: RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company recognizes the importance of selecting directors who demonstrate leadership, are visionaries, and
who have experience, knowledge and ability and demonstrate independence in making decisions in the best
interests of the Company and the shareholders overall. The Company also recognizes the importance of clearly
saparating the roles and duties of the Board of Directors and the Management and owverseesing the work
system to ensure thal its vanous activities are in compliance with the laws and ethical standards, The Company
has established its corporate govemance policy while taking inte consideration various factors including the
responsbilites of the directors, whereby the important policies relevant o this matter are as follows:

8.1 Structure of the Board of Directors

The Company values transparency and verifiability in its work operations, and, therefore, the Chairman is not
the person holding the position of the Chief Executive Officer or the President. With the sudden demise of the
previous Chairman, the Company now has three {3) independent directors which exceed one-third of its total
directors. All of them are also members of the Audit Committee and Momination & Remuneration Commiltee
Al independent directors possess qualifications in line with reguirements as prescibed by relevant alignment

regulatory agencies

The Company has a policy to appoint at least two (2) persons with Thai nationalities who are Thai residents
who have possessed knowledge, capabilities, experience and qualifications in line with SEC reguirements
to act as the Company's directors. At least one (1) of them must also act as audit member. At present,

two [2) of the Company's directors are Thai nationals and Thai residents are also audit membsers.

For Malaysian, Indonesian and Indian subsidiaries as well as those o be incorporated in any other countries
in the future (f any), the Company has a policy to send al least one (1) of its director who s a Thal resident
to hodd directorship in such subsidianes, For Indonesian subsidiaries, the Company's director () who is a Thai
resident which represemnts the Company shall be appointed to be a director in the Board of Commissionsars.
At presant, the Company has representative director who is a8 Thai resident to hold directorships in Balaysian
and Indian subsidiaries including I, ITSE, IPSB, TSSE and IAIPL and to hold directorship in the Board of
Commissioners of Indonesian subsidianes including PT MV and PT ITL

The Company has specified clear policies and procedures which are in accordance with applicable laws to
recruit and select persons to be nominated as its directors and executives as well as those to be nominated
as directors and executives of the subsidiaries which represent it In recruiting and selecting persons to be
nominated as directors and executives of the Company and those of the subsidiaries which represent it,

the Company, through its Momination and Remuneration Commitiee, will take into account relevant factors

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited

such as thelr work expenence, educational background, professional capabilities and skills and ete. Persons
to be nominated as directors and executives of the Company as well as those of the subsidiaries thal represent
it shall possess required charactenstics and gualifications and not have any prohibited characteristics as

prescribed under relevant SEC regulations as well as those under other relevant regulatory reguirements.

At present, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of eight (B} members, three (3) of whom are
Independent and Mon-Executive Directors and the remaining five (53) are Mon-Independent & Executive Directors.
This composition complies with the reguirement that at least one-third of the total number of directors ane
independant & non-executive directors,

5.2 Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
Roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are clearly distinguished from that of the Management.
These include (but not limited) to the following:-

521 to consider and approve material issuss with respect to operations of the Company, as well as to overses
that Management has run business in line with the prescribed policles and plans, including the annual budget
and business plan, in an efficient and effective manner

5.2.2 to exercise due prudence in considering conflicts of interest, as well as connected transactions with
potential conflicts of interest with those of the Company whereby the interests of the shareholders are deemed
as the priority.

5.2.3 to jointly consider the annual and quarterly financial statements and financial information in the

annual report and (o jeintly evaluate the adeguacy of the internal control system of the Company

5.3 Board of Directors” Meeting
The Board of Directors will meet at least four (4) times annually, Additional meetings may be convened

as deemed appropriate. Such meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Company's articles of
association and relevant laws. After each meeting, the company secretary will prepare minutes of meseting for

future reference and verification.

The Company reguires that the Management to prepare and submit a report on the operating results to
the Board of Directors for acknowledgment on a quartery basiz as this will enable the Board members
to continuously and promptly supervise, control and oversee the Management’s performance, The Board of
Directors may alse provide recommendations to the Management so that the overall business activities of the
Company and its subsidiaries can be improved.

The Board of Directors may invite executives or employeses of the Company to attend the Board of
Directors’ meeting to give additional information on the matters discussed. In convening each Board meefing, the
Corporate Secretary will send meeting invitations to all directors for consideration in advance as well as
supporting documents and information, Al directors will be given egual opportunity 1o disciss the materal issues
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and the Corporate Secretary will record the minutes thereof including vanous guestions and suggestions of the
directors to ensure that the matters discussed can be monitored and verified by directors and executives,

All Board meetings of the Company and its Thai subsidiaries will be physically convened. Mestings of board of
directors of Malaysian, Indonesian and Indian subsidiaries may be convened using circular resolution, subject

to regulatory requirements of Malaysia, Indonesia and India as the case may be.

54 Remuneration of directors and executives

Remuneration of directors is clearly determined, it mist be considered and approved by the Compamny's annisal
general meeting of shareholders, For any directors who are assigned for additional tasks and have additional
responsibilities, they will earn additional compensation in commensurate with their higher responsibilities
Management compensation is subject to the Company's annual performance and work performance of

each executive.
The Company established the Momination and Remuneration Committes which is responsible for formulating
both monetary and non-monetary compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and top executives, Their

compensation will be proposed for consideration and approval by the Board of Directors,

5.5 Continuous development of directors and executives

The Company encourages its directors, top executives and Corporate Secretary to confinuous leam about good
corporate governance practices. Mecessary in-house trainings are provided to them. They are also encouraged

to take relevant classes as arranged by Instiute of Thai Directors (1O0).

5.6 Corporate Secretary
The Corporate Secretary acts as the central source of guidance and advice 1o the Board on good corporate

governanse and its duties and responsibilities, The Corporate Secretary also assists in aranging the annual
Board meeting plan, agenda and other Board related matters, The Board also has unrestricted access 1o the
advice and services of the Company Secretary on Board related matters as well as on new statutory and
regulatory reguirements or any amendments or changes to the statutory and regulatory requirements relating

to their duties and responsibilities.

Currently, the legal and secretarial matters of IT Group of Companies are managed by the Corporate Secretary
and Joint Corporate Secretary, This is to ensure that the regulatory reguirements different junsdictions namsely
Thailand, Malaysa, Indonesia and India are complied with

SECTION 6: COMMITTEES

To ensure that duties and responsibilities are properly and efficiently discharged, the Board has delegated
some of its functions andfor authorties to the Commitiees. These Committees operate within their clearly defined

Terms of Aeferences and consist of selected Board members who are empowered 10 deliberate and examine

issues, Updates will then be tabled in the Board meeting with appropriate recommendations (if amy), Currently,
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the Company has established Audit Committes, Momination & Bemuneration Committes and Executive
Committes (EXCO)

6.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committes of the Company was formed on 28 October 2014 and comprizes of three (3) qualified

Independent & Mon-Executive Directors according to the definition and reguirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The particulars of the Audit Committee meambers

are as follows:

M Desigration

1 Mr. Abdul Ehudus Bin Mohd Maalm Chealrmmean
2 Kr. Muthavuth Chatlerpipat hember
3 Mr. Apichat Suttilsituem Member

The Audit Committes is tasked to assist the Board of Directors (“the Board™) and the owverall duties and

responsibilities are as follows:

1. 1o review the financial statements, the significant accounting and reporting issues including complex or
unusual transactions and highly judgmental areas including to discuss with the Company's Management and
external auditor regarding audit results, relevant nsks and management action to decrease the identified nsks

and to review the effectiveness of internal control over the financial reporting process.

2. to review the effectiveness and adeguacy of intermnal control system including control over the information
techinology system and the implementation of the recommendations on internal control from internal and

extermal auditors,

3. to review and approve the intemal audit charter, annual ausdit plan, staffing and resources reguired for the
intermal audit and o review the effectivensss of the intemal audit that complies with the Professional Practices

of Internal Auditing.

A to review and approve the compliance charter, annual plan, staffing and resources reguired of compliance
and control function including to review the non-compliance issues raized by regulatory agencies and the

rectiflcation of those isspes,

2. to review the adegquacy of the Company's fsk management process and policies and the effectiveness of
the implementation of the Company’s risk management systems; and

. to ensure that the code of conduct and conflict of interest policy is in writing and arrangements are mads
for all management and employees to be aware of it and promote the compliance with the code of conduct

and conflicts of interest policy.

ANMUAL REPORT 20172014 “



6.2 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Momination and RBemuneration Committes ("NRC") was established on 28 October 2014, Currently, the

MRC comprses five (3} members, three (3) of whom are Independent & Mon-Executive Directors and the

remaining two (2} are Mon-Independent & Executive Directors, The particulars of the NRC members are as follows:

Mame Designation
“1. Wr. Muthavuth Chatlerpipat Chairman
2 Datuk Ramell Bin Musa Deputy Chairman
3 Wr. Abdul Khudus Bin Mohd Naaim Menibser
4 M. Apdchat Suttilsitum Mennbser
A5 Dato” Dr. Ab Wahab Bin lsmail Menibser

“Independent & Non-Executive Directors
Ahon-indspendent & Executive Directors

Similar to the formation of the Audit Committee and the Executive Committes ["EXCOT), the Board has approved
specific Terms of Reference for the MRC whereby it outlines the scope of duties, responsibilities and limits

of authonty

Overall Duties and Responsibilities

Generally, the MR iz tasked to:-
1. assist the Board in respect of the recruitment and sslection process of the momination of directors and

SEnior management;

2, recommend ullallflr;:-:j candicdates (o the Board for consideration prior to nomination proposal at the
Shareholders’ Meeting for further approval and appointment; and

3. resview the compensation package of directors including the Chief Executive Officer ("the CEOT) for further

recommendation to the Board.

Specifically, the NRC is entrusted to:-

1. review the Company's business organization, the reguired mix of skills, experience and gqualifications of
its directors and CEQ in accordance with the Company’s business requirements as directed or necessitated by
the decision of the Board,

2. propose and recommend candidates o be member of the Board with proper gualifications for the Board to

submit for appointmeant in the Shareholders’ mesting of the Company;

3. make recommendations to the Board for the successor of the CEOy;

4, ensure that the Company™s remuneration packages are compelitive in wview of industry practices: and
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5. perform any other activities, roles and responsibilities as approved, assigned and directed by the Board

Authority
In discharging the roles and responsibilities, the NRC shall have the dght -

1. full and unrestricted access to information and consult any employes of the Company in order to condwct

any inmvestigation and to obtain any information pertaining to the Group;

2. invite any employes or other individual 1o attend the NRC meeting: and

3. abtain independent professional or other advice 1o assist the NRC in the performance of its responsibdlities
and dutes

6.3 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company formed an Executive Committes ("EXCO™) comprises five (5) Non-Independent and

Exscutive Directors. The membsers of the EXCO are as follows:

Designation

1. Datuk Aameli Bin Musa Chairman
2 Dato” Dr. Ab Wahab Bin lsmail Deputy Chairman
3 fr, Abdul Bahim Bin Hajl Hitam Mennbser
4 Mr, Affandi Bin Makhtar * hlennbser
& Datin Seri Farah Bintl Datuk Ramel =~ Menibser

Motes

* To mainfair e bolonce of J050 on Thatand Resident Dirgclor and Foreigner on the demvse of the lote Ton 54 O, Surin
Pitstrweary, Mr. Affandi Bin Mokhtar hos resigned a5 Non-Independent and Executive Director of the Company effective
trom 14 December 2017, He wos howsever remained oz o member of the EXCO.

** Dotin Serd Forah Bl Dotk Raomell wos oppointed 0s the EXCO Member effactive from 1 Februory 2008

The EXCO was sst up on 28 October 2014 by the Board with clear and well-defined objectives namely to
support the Board's roles and dutfies by providing organizational directions on behalf of the Board, ensure that
business decisions or directions can be made in timely manner and most importantly, to provide advice to
the Board on decisions and business matters ranging from strategy planning, policy. investment and risk
In determining that the EXCO meets its objectives. the Board further approved a definite Terms of Reference
goveming the process and conduct of the EXCO
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@ INGRS SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Ineanparating CSHA inta our annual programs has always bean an on-going praciice within the Eroup
The INGRS Group believes the improvernent in the conditions surounding our staksholdars, employess, sooety
and the environment is vital to the growth of the Group. Our corporate social responsibility covers the

following key areas!

EDUCATION AND TRAIMNING

Thie Group scneculas irmin i and development programs for employees, T alims o educale ils employvess,

i have knowladge, prolicienoy and expenisa 1o eflectively parform all the necessary (asks Tratning and
daevelopmeant program strociune was Sat up such as Onentation Coursa, Parsonal Charactanstic Develapmen]
Course, General Knowledge Dewvslopment Coursa, Speciaiized Learning Development Course and Management
Courss. The Group also participates in providing industrial and practical treining for under gradueatas
from lzcal Institutes of higher learmeng a5 a part of s corporate contributions fowards educaton, in Bne with s

balisf that education ahways a key role in nation buiding,

Brreey

""" il =
Al e PTH A i A

AL, T e e TR

Groug npreas Laovt Syatam (LS
Samnor & Anncal Tenm Excalencs Convertion of FCT, Thdalond - 8oy 2017

OCCUPATIOMAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
Written policies, including any updates as well as fraining on occcupational safety and health, safety weeks,
health check-up are provided to employees. Safety and health activities are also carried out periodically

to creale awareness and to educaie employess on occupational safety and health relaied matiers

5T BOMAONES

T5H Momsw - Safery Wonm Exwiinion ot Perodug Maolkmsa - Mowambar 5017

“ Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed

soad donghon af IFSE Mohysio — Septambar 207 70

ENVIRONMENT PRESERVATION

The Group emphasizes compliancs with envirenmental laws governing plant operations, malntenance and
inproyement inoarears reating to environmen] and emissicon standards, energy consenalions, Rousalasping and
storage methids, nodse ivel managemsnt - and tréatment of pant efluents and waste waler al all our factones

aperationg in Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and India.

LAY Thalkmd - Mlakhnyy activily willh B-Tach dusdnal Esfenle — Decambar 077

EMPLOYEE WELFARE AND DEVELOPMENT

As gt 31 January 2018, The Group has 1,928 employess spread throughowut Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and
India, Tramang and development & provided o the emplovess based on the tranming need analyss carmead
aul &t end of each year comprises both echncal and solf-skills Employveas are aiso provided with medscal
ang eaithcane nsurancs and adegunle eave and campensation program wheh commensurata walhy thesr rank

ad el of employiments
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Further, the Group acknowledoes the need o provide 8 healthy and balancead (ifesiyle (o ds amployees
In this aspect, the Group encourages and supports the activities orgamnized oy Ingress St Club such as

tmmdy davs soci| event anc Sports achiviles

IPEHE siafl Oufing ot Bongd Wondeniond, Moloysie - Moy 2017

FOT sdafl aarn gy of Barchonyd, Ao Thenlvid - Dacaaier 207

COMMUNITY WELFARE

The Group is also active and concems for the welfare of the community by suppording =social objective in the
commurities. Dunng the financial year, donations contributions were given to the under privileged commaunities
In ThatEnd, Malaysia and Indonesa &5 wall as the donations ahanneled 1o vardaus nan profitabde nstilutions,

crearlly orgamniabons and wellars socislies

“ Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed

e AU

Doration fa community by PTIY Indomesia - Augost 2077

ITSH - C5R qotvily al Primasy Schodl in Ssinnper, Waleysa - November S0TT
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@ INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Dircetors emphasizes on the effective and adeguate internal control and risk management
in compliance with good corporate governance principle, and thereby assign the Executive Committes
CEXCO™) o consider and assess the adegquancy of the Group's internal control system. The Group employs
independent intermal auditors to manags, plan, audit and review internal control systems of its operations and
work processes in key risk areas according to the annual ausdit plan, Internal Auditor discusses thelr findings
and recommendations with Management and reporis to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

The Audit Committee considers the report from the Internal Auditors, which summarize the compliance of
key activities according to establshed control and relevant laws and regulations and the follow up of comective
actions, The Audit Commitite reviews and concludes that the Group’s internal control system s sufficlent and
adequate, as follows:

1. CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
The Board of Directors and the Company's Management set policies for the Group according to good

corporate govermance principles to provide guidelines for effective, ethical and transparent working processes.

The Company clearly communicates o emplovess of the Group on the Company's policles and business etchics
at employee orientation. Employees shall comply with the rules and regulations, any offense or viclation of

amy regulations will be penalized according to the severity of such actions,

The Company sets up its organization structure in 8 way that allows the Board of Directors to indspendently
supervize management performance for the best benefits of shareholders, The segregation of duties and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors, the sub-committees, the Management and employees are clearly

defined, Working procedures are reviewed by extemnal auditors 1o ensure the effectiveness of its operations,

The Company believes in a good internal controd system which includes control of operations, skills, and
discipline of employees. The Group's manufacturing processes have been accredited with gualtiy Management
Systemn Standard (IS0 T316248) and environmental Management Standard (1I2014001). The Group continously
provides and manage fraining activities for emplovess' continous development.

2. RISK ASSESSMENT

The Board of Directors assigns the Group Risk Management Depariment to assess risk factors that may affect
the Company's performance and evaluate opporunities for that risk and impact on operations and financials
from that risk. The assessment has been made based on past events and their impacts in order to put in
place approprate nsk management measures to reduce the impact to an acceptable level. In ariving at the
identified rizk, the Management of each of the Company's subsidiries also actively involves in gathering the

best possible counter measure 1o ensure the nsks are satisfactorly mitigated

The Group Risk Management s required to perform an assessment on each of the identified nsks factors
ohce every 18 months, The department also reviews the adequancy of nsk Management policy and other
relevant policies fo ensure effective internal control throughout the Growp.

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited

3. CONTROL ACTIVITIES

The Company has sel clear Group Policles and Procedures, Group Limit of Authonty, Quality Waork Procesunes,
Work Insutructions for every key functional area. The widely established standard such as [S014000 and
TS16849 quality Management standard also embeded to current operational procedures and work instruction
and used by all employess as a guideline for to perform their work correctly and effectively. Proper controls

that established in each process are capable to deter errors and any possible unintentional wrong doings.

The Company formulates work instructions for all key funtions, which are Production, Purchasing, Sales And
Marketing, Engineering And Design, Finance And Accounting and Human Resources, Appropriate conbrols are
embedded in the procedure are likely o prevent any possible misconduct or corruplion ssues, The Company
assigns the Group Intemal Audit to moniters its operations o ensure that employees operate acocording o
Group Policies and Procedures, Group Limit of Authority, Cuality Work Procesures, Work Insutructions. The Group
Internal Audit Department to perform audit according to the approved annual audit plan and report to the
Audit Committes on a quaterly basis.

The Company defines the scope of dutles, responsibilities and approval authonty of executives In each level
Detalls Organization Chart established able to facilitate better segregeation over duties and responsibilities
of staffs, emplovees, supervisors, managers and execulives are clearly defined In each job descriptions
Access o the database and the operating system is systematically organized and monitored on regular basis,
particularly thoss responsible for authorization, record transaction and custody of assets

The Group has strict control over the use of assets. Transactions that may lead to a conflict of interest are
carsfully considered and approved at arm's length basis based on normal business practices. Major contracts
and agreements with the Group including these invelving majer shareholders, executives, and related parties
miust be duly considered and approved with consideration of independent directors who have no vested interest
in the matter, These type transactions have been regularly informed during the Audit Committes Meeting
in details on a guartery basis

4. INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION

The Company organizes systematic communication within the organization and uses information technology
to enhance effective communication with emplovees, Emplovees recelve news and information via internal
department meetings, the Company's bulletin board, intranet, and email, The Board of Directors receives nolices
of meeting and related documents via emall at least 7 davs prior to the meeting day 5o that the directors
have sufficient time to study the agenda before the board meeting. Afier the mesting. the Company Ssacretary
pregares a minute of meeting and discloses important resolutions to the public according to the disclosure

requirements of SET.

The Company discloses information o the public and its stakeholders via vanous channels, being the Company’s
website at wwwingress.coth, SET portal and other media channel on a guarterly basis, The Company emphasizes
the role of Investor Relations as a primary contact for inguines and information distribution and welcomes
Company visit and meeting reguest from shareholders, Investors and analysts,
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With the establizshment of Whistle Blower Policy, the Company provides a clear communication channel for
complaints or reports of suspicion of wrongdoings which may lead to coruplions, misconducts, or viclation
of laws that affect the Company's operations, Emplovees or any third party can ralse thelr genuing concems
and report o the Audit Committee directly via emall at auditcomm@ingress.coth, The Company 15 fully
committed to fight cormuption and commits for the protection of any whistleblower that no one would suffer

from detrimental treatments as a result of reporting their suspicion of wrongdoings.

5, MONITORING ACTIVITIES

The Company moniters the performance of its operations and subsidianes on a regular basis, Each operating
unit s scheduled to report its operating perdormance 1o the Company’s Management on on a guarterly basis
The Board of Directors jeins the Management to review each subsidies” performance to supenvise and monitor

the Management's performance.

In respect of continous assessment over the internal control system, the Group Intemal Audit Department

sats up annual audit plan covering each of key functional areas across the Group which covers Production,

Purchasing, Sales and Marketing, Engineering and Design, Finance and Accounting and Human Resources
Intermal Auditer performs audits whether operations are in compliance with work instructions, policies and
procedures, local rules and regulations and report their findings and follow up of cormective actions Lo
Audit Committes dunng guartery board meetings. For issues reqguiring immediate attention, Intemal Auditors
quickly reverts their concermns and guestions to the Management to discuss and confirm the issues of which

Audit Committee will be informed.

Internally, each of the subsidiries set up its own compliance unit which objectives to evaluate and follow up the
compliance with policies, regulations and work instructions, The Group alse employvs extemnal certified agents o
audit and certifies that each subsidiaires are operating in accordance with the standards, In additions, each of
the subsidianes also passes the muliple customers” audit where thelr operations are carred out according to
agreed procedures and that no changes are made in the process without pror notification

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
The Company recognizes the importance of an effective internal control system. In this regard, extensive intemal
controls and procedures, including those set out in the Group Policies and Procedures, are fully established at

all levels in the crganization

The intemal control system, including compliance with policies and procedures, is formally assessed by the

Group Intemal Auditer in every financial vear. This includes a review of the effectiveness of all financial,

operational and related controls.

INTERMAL AUDIT FUNMCTION

The internal audit staff independently assesses compliance with policies and procedures and evaluates the
effectiveness of all control systems throughout the Group, In arfiving at the scope of the audit, all identified
risks to the key funtional areas have been considered 1o ensure optimum audit coverage,

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Management of each subsidiary is obligated to consider all intermal audit findings and recommendations, and
immediate remedies are expected to ensure non recurrance of a similar isswe. Current practices, all business
units under the Group will be audited at least once in each of the financial year to ensure the highest leveal of

transparenay and sound Internal Control practices among the emplovees,

The plan and results of intemal audits are reviewed by the Audit Comanities,
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@ RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Lnng the Ninancial yvear endad 31 January 2018 MEY AT A8™ and 31 Jdan ary 2017 (*F¥2016/17"), 1he

Company and its subskdiares (“the Group”] had significant tramsactions with related parties. Soch transactions

aro=e in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and agreed upon bstween

the Group and related parfies

Persans who may Mave a confhct of inferests

Caorpargte shareholders of subsidanes

Related party and natwre of business

i Katayama Kogyo Co., Lid ["KK")

Established m Japan and emgaging in the
pBusiness of manulaciising and sales al varsous
sutomotive paris, agnculiural machinery and

constrecton retated parts.

Relationship with the Group

& KOs palding 31 a3 percent of shares in Ay and
has designated two delegates to act as directors
m AN, consisting of 11] Mr ftsuro Maesno and

[ Mz Michike Adamals

KK is holding 10.00 percent of shares in [PSE and
nas designaled one delegate 1o aot as a directon n

IPSE, who iz Ms. Michiko Akamats

o KK 5 holding 500 percant of shanes in PTinAY
antd hes cesgnated two osiegaies to act as
directors in FTIMY consisting of {1} Ms. Michiko
Akamatan (Board of Cammissionera) and

2} Mr. Telsup Tamura (Board of Directors).

Yonel & Co., Lid ["Yonei®)

Pl

Established i Japan and engaging in general
Il:1:'l"|;_| Baisinngs wily ovier 200 Bases of
operations N spproximately B0 couniries

workdwide.

Yone 13 hodding 8,07 pgercent al shases in WY ann

has designated one delegate 1o act 2= a direcior in

8%, who = Mr. Hiroshi Miyezeki

Yonet is holding 10,00 percent of shares m FTIMY
and has demignated one delegate fo act as 8
girgctor in PTINY, who & NMe Hirash) r-,-1|:|.':1;-:|1h|

[in the Board of Commessionars).

a lwamoto Ce., Lid [“lwamota™)

Established m Japan and emgaging in desagn.
desvelaprment, Tabncaton and sakes ol oaling

for stamping.

lwasmnto = hodding 30 peercind of all voling shiares

of FCT.

“ Ingress kdustnal (Thalland) Public Coimpasy Limbed

Subsidiones of o corporate shorefiolder of o subsidiony

Related party and nature of business

i Percdua Manufacturing Sdn Bhd (“PMSB")

EstabiEhen in Malaysia and engaging in the
business of manufactunng and assembly of

Perodua vehicles,

Relationship with the Group

PMEB iz a subsidiary of Perusahaan Ctomobil Kedua
Sdn Bhad ["Peroduwa™), which is holding 3000 percend
of shares i ITSE Perodus has dessgrated two
defegates to act as directors, consisting of

(1) Datuk Aminar Rashid Ban Sallsh and

(2 Data’ fainal Abidin Bin Ahmad

2 Perodua Sales Sdn Bhd (“PS5B™)

Established n Malgysiz and engaging 10 the
business of saies, markeing and distribution
al #l Permdua vehicles as well g% alter sales

and spare parts operaticns

PS5B is 8 =subsidiary of Perodua, which is holding
3000 percenl of shares 0 ITSE, Perodug has
designated two delegates to-act as directors n ITSE,

consisting of {1) Datuk Amanar Hashid Bim Sallsh and

1) Dabte” Salrad Sopdin Ban Ahmad

! Perodua Global lul:::1uf:|:111|'i::g Sdn Bhd
["PESB")

Estabdished in Malaysia and engsging in the
Business of manutaciunng and assembly of

Perodua vehicles.

PGSR B a subsidiary of Pemdua, which ts hiolding
3000 percent of shares i ITSB. Perodiea has
designated two delsgates to ect &3 directors in ITSEB
oorsisting af 1) Datak demmar Hashied Bir Balleh and

12 Dato’ Zainal Abidin Bin Ahmad.

Pararit conmmpany

Hedated party and nature of business

1 Ingress Corporation Berhad (“ICB")
Establizhed i Malbysis and engaging in the
pDusingss of an investment hokding company
Currenily, 108 has subsidiaries engagsd in ACM
DUSINeSS, aulcmatbe deakesnip, &5 well as
engirssaring services for enangy and radway

UG es

Helationship with the Group

ICB was the sole major shemreholder and the

oordralling persan of [he Coampany

Medolad COrTRDoTessS

Hedated party and nature of business

1 Ingress Katayama Technical Centre Sdn Bhd
[“IKTC")

estabhished o Malivesia and gngaging i the
business of design and manufacture of roil
farming &nd extrusion ook, pos and digs for

ihie automotive camponants manufachuning

Helationship with the Group

IKTC = a subsidiary of IS8 which is holding
ol percend of shares n K] and ihe femaining

g} pe=rcind of shares of K] = baing hald By KK
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Relgted companies

Related party and nature of business

]

Organic Gain Sdn Bhd ("0OGSB")
Establizhed in Malaysia and engaging in
manutacturmg and trading Agro-based product

and Halal food product

Relationship with the Group

0OGSE s 93.9% owned by the Company director,
Crato’ Dr. Ab. Wahab bin Ismail of which he is also

a directar In DGESE

The significant business transactions with related parties for FY2017M18 and FY201617 are as follows:

Iransachions with parent company

Dividend paid
Interest expense

Iransachons with corporate shareholders of

subsidiaries

=ale ol gooas

Purchase of raw matenals and supplies
Purchase of machinery and eduipisent
Royalty fee

Technical assistance fes

Dividend paid

Iransachons with subsidanes of a corporate
shareholder of a subsidiary

=ale ol goods

Transactions with related companies

=ale ol goos

Hental moome

Purchase of machinery and eguipment
Purchase of supplies

m Ingress Industral (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

Transaction Value

(Milllon Baht) Transler pricing poalicy

FY2017/18  FY201617

132 45 7586 | As announcement
11.78 | At rates of COF plus 1.25
percent per annum

{131 408 | A% agreed
A0 2479 | As agreed
H.11 988 | As agreed
19.85 17.72 | Contract price
7.90 622 | Contract price
7149 41.37 | As announcement
T, 48 1,122 8 s AnnoURCeTent
2 4,38 | AS agreed
2,04 180 | Contract price
33.98 7B29 | As agre=d
0.249 A= agreed

as followes:

Trade and other recevables = related parties

Trade receivables - related parties
Subsidlanes of 8 corporate shareholder of a subsiciary
Related companies

Total trade receivables — related parties

Orther receivables - related parties
Farent company
Awporate shareholders of subsidianes
Subsilanes of 8 corporate shareholder of a subsiciary
Helatesd companies
Total other receivables - related parties

Total trade and other receivables - related parties

Trade and other payables — related parties
Trade payables - related parties
Corporate shareholders of subsidianes
Helatesd companies

Total trade payables - related parties

Orther payables - related parties
Parant company
;orporate shareholders of subsidiarss
Subsidlanes of 8 corporate shareholder of a subsiciany
Associale company
Helatesd companies
Total other recevables - related parties

Total trade and other receivables - related parties

For F¥2017/18 and FY20168/17, the balance of accounts between the Group and those related parties are

Transaction Yalue
{Million Baht)

FY200 78

FYy2008M 7

106.37 A5.TT
1.18 3.26
107.55 49.03
S H. G4
)

9786 14523
15.34 10.91
2817 164598
136.72 214.00
1.58 1.6
1.37 .25
205 1.1
16,23 4.0
2.9 11.949
84,74

3a

9.98 26.25
20850 13231
31.85 133.62
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Mecessity and reasonableness of related party transactions

B
B
B

The Auwdit Committes considered that the Group's related party transaction entered into with the related parties

C
y ICB

during the financial year ended 31 January 2018 and 31 January 2017 were normal business fransactions and

Wy e

i
u
.
L

(o
LE

withim the normal pracbce in the aufomaotive industry and were conducted farly and at the arnm’s length basas

and did not cawse the Group o lose any benelits entenng into the ransachons

Policies or trends relating to fulure related party transactions

Description of asset for
Morale guaranies
rarata guarantes by I
warate guarantes

Corporate guarantes

=:’_' ;:. f: The connected transactions or related party tramsactions of the Group with parties that may have a conflict of
O (]

interests, may hold a stake, or may have a conflict of interests in the future will comply with effective rules

&

provided by the relevant rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) andfor the Stock Exchangs

ntee; RC = Revolving credit; TL = Term koan
which were historical transactions. Far such

e 3 [T o e - . r 1 - s :
a2 2 o o @ o of Thailand {SET). If the Group wishes to conduct connected transactions or related party tramsactions with
o -:; r [T R Fa o] [ ]

R A A~ = ] a party that may have a conflict of interests, may hold a stake, or may have a conthet of interests in the future,

Amaount
ions,

Million Baht)

the GEroug will stinctly comply with the poboies and procedures, The Audit Committes has provided the guicelines

18 and 31 January 201 7are as follows:

far the consideration, which nclude the consideration of the necessity of ransactions for the {'Jr'-.-|||;_|':1 DS | s

anefit from such transactions

an
-
"_:_'___ .:.E 4 operatons, companson of poces with those offersd by the third parties I:Ir any), and consideration of the essence
& = . .
S = A i frn o
= } T & BT L = I & of the transaction size.
= F Fd o oo ko

If the related party transactions exist, the Company will designate the Audit Committes to provide opinion

E B 3+ 0 W about the approgriateness of these transactions. In the event that the Audit Committee has no expertise
Lo T T - < R = T o
= g T ot mE o R
s @ ] h ':‘l' E = ﬁ = in consicdenng the related party transactions, the Company will provide an expert, suah as an auditor o
o = F::I [t} i 5
]

an independent appraser, 0 provide opincn about these related party transactions, The opimons from the

B

Audit Committes or the edpert will be used for assisting the decision-making of the Board of Directors or

ghareholders, as the case may e [Thes aim s o ensure that such transactions takes into account the utmost

benefitz of all sharsholdars.

o2
=
&
g
=
et
=5
=
n
o
=
3

1
TL
BA
RC
Tl

B4
R
TL
RC

dn Bhd

Ingrass Indusirial (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Ingress Technologies Sdn Bhd

PT Ingress Malinda Venturas

Ingress Precision

uaranteas, ICB did not charge any compensation from the Group, so the Group did not lose any

Remarks: OD = Cwardraft; PM = Promissory note; LC = Letter of cradit; BA = Banker's acceptancs; BG = Bank guar.

The Group's borrowing with financial ingtitution which ICB as corporate guarantees as at 31
The corporate quarantess provided by ICB were conducted on the bomrowing secured from financial insti

The Group's borrowing guarantee by ICB
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@ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. Basis for analysis of the operating results and financial position of the Group

Ingress Industrial {Thailand) Public Compamy Limited ("the Company”) is a8 public company incorporated and
domiciled in Thailand. The Company is an investment holding company whose subsidiaries are principally
engaged i the manutaciunng and distnbuton of automotive components. The registensd ofice of the Company

5 95141, 14th Floor, Unit &7, UM Tower Buillding, Bamkhamhaeng Hoad, Suanluang, Bangkok, Thalland

The Group's factories and facilities are located in four countries, namely Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and India.

The analysis for the Group's business performance, financial position and cash flow iz based on the Company's

consobdated financial statements for the fmancial vear ended 31 January 2018

2, Overall operating results

For the financial year ended 31 January 2018 ("F¥Y2017/187) and 31 Januwary 20017 (FY2016177), the
{lrl:-llp'-: registersd] sales revenoe of Baht 22729 mallon and Baht 2.215.9 mallion respectively whech represents
A marginal decrease of Baht 30 million or 0U1%, Despite the newly inclusion Ingress Autoventures :||l.'I|:|:I =l Lid
[' |ALFPL") I:r::"||||:r1-.- Emowsn as Iingress Mayur Aulo Ventures Bt | I_-:1:I a5 a whally owned subsidiary eflectve from
13 Movember 2017 which contributed sales revenue of Baht 27.8 million during FY2017/18, the Group =ales
revenue decrease mainly due to lower sales revenue recorded by Thailand and Indonesia operation by
Baht 23.9 millicn and Baht 34.3 millicn respectively. Malaysian operation registered higher zales revenue by

Bant 19.5 mallon N comparnson o FY20100 7

Despite lower sakes revenue recorded for FY20M 718, the Group's recorded higher gross profit margin of 22.2%
as compared to 22.1% recorded in FY2016M17.

The Group registered profit after taxation and minority interest ("FATMI™) of Baht 978 million in FY2017M8
&% compared to Baht 1896 millon in FY20181 0 which represents a decrease of Baht 1.5 mallion or 22,3%
I'he decrease was mamnly due o the recognition of & signiicant foreign exchange gain amounting o
Baht 77.7 million in FY2016/17 as compared to the recognition of foreign exchamge loss amounting fo
Baht 1.4 million in FY2017/18. The foreign exchange gainfiloss) was mainly due to the gainfloss) recorded
an the ehiminaton of Intercompany Dalances within the Group on the exchange rate fluctuation between looa

and forelgn cumency at the end of the fimancial yvear as compared 1o the transacton date

For FY2010 78, the Group PATMI margin was 3.4% as compared to 5.8% in FY2016/17.

4. Analysis of the operating resulls

4.1 Sales revenue

The Group was principally engaged in the sales of two major types of automotive componants namely

roll forming products and stamping products. Most of the subsidiaries in each country manufactured

Ingress Industral (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

and sald their products to lecal Criginal Eguipment Manufacturers ("0OEM=") in local currencies (unless advised

by the OEM)

Ihe sales revenoe structure of the Group by countnes and products ane as follows;

Financial Year Ended
A1 January 2018 1 January 2017

Million Baht Percent Million Baht Parcent

Sales Revenue by Country

Thaikand 1,137.6 9.0 11633 200
Malaysia 15483 53.2 15224 522
Indonesia 1881 6.5 230.2 7.8
India J6.8 1.3

Tolal Sales Hevenue 29129 100,00 28159 100,00

Sales Revenue by Products

Hall Forming Prodects 1.27¢.3 = | 1. 5H0) 3 o
Stamping Products 1,383.0 475 13262 455
Automation Solution Provider 128 0.4 9.4 03
Tolal Sales Hevenue 29129 100,00 28159 100,00

Based on the above table, Malaysia was the main contributor for the sales revenue for FY2017/18, accounted
for 52.8% from the total Group's sales revenue followsd by Thailand and Indonesia operation. The newly

mnclusion of WIPL contnbuted sales revenue of 1.2% Irom the atal ':Ell:-.lp'-: Sales frevenue

The rall forming products were the man conbributor of the sales revenus 1o the Groog for FYS01 0018, accounted
for 52.0% from the total Group's sales revenue while stamping products and avtomation solution provider

contributes sales revenue by AT 6% and 0.4% respectively.

4.2 Other inconme
Lther income compnse of forewgn exchange gain, mtersst income, gan on dsposal, ete, The detalls of other

income are follows:

Financial Year Ended

3 January 2018 3 January 2017
Millicr Bakt Percent Million Baht Percent
Exchange gain Ta.Y 56.0
Scrap sales 387 &5 333 241
Faur value adjustment on inberest free oan 13,6 g9

Gamn from acgiestion of share from

non-controlling intenest 14.3 215
Miscelaneous incoms 11.6 177 151 11.0
Total other income 65,6 100,00 137.7 1000
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For FY2017/18 and FY2016/17, the total other income of the Group were Baht 65.6 milhon and
Baht 137.7 million respectively accounted for 2.2% and 4.5% respectively of the Group's total revenues. From
the above table, it can be seen thal some of the other income of the Groug's were non-nofmal bugsiness
transactions such as foregn exchange gains, tar value adjustment on interest free loan and gain from

apquisition of share from non-controling interest.

I'he Group recognized the foreign exchange gain of Baht 7507 mallon 0 FY20068070 mainly due 1o the
gain recorded omn the elimination of intercompany balances within the Group on the exchange rate fluctuation
between local and foreign currency at the end of the financial year as compared to the franzaction date.
In addition o foregn edchange gaimns, the Group also recognized other revenues related to the busimess
wuch as the revenues from scrap from the producbion of automotive parts, interest income that the Group
obtained from short-term imvestment, income from IP5B's investment property in BMalaysia, and gain on sale of

eguipment and tools, etc.

For FY2017A8, the Group recognised gain from acguisition of share from non-controlling interest in relation fo
the acquisition of the additional 60% shares in LAIPL. The amount recognized in FY2017/18 amounting to
Bant 14,3 milion was denved from the difference of the camying amount of meestment 0 associated company
A% at the date of acquisition of shares incompansan 1o 40% of the value determmined by the independeant

valuer upon the acguisition of the additional 0% shares in LAIPL.

For FY20761 7, the Group ecognized income Trom long-term loans with no omierest of Baht 156 milion as the
ong-term non-interest income derived from the fact that ITSB and IPSE, Malaysian subsidiaries, received
a Malaysian Industrial Development Finance ("MIDF™) loans under the Malaysian Government {via MIDF) from
wilh the intention 1o assisl and support the business of manufaciunng and selthng auto pans o Froton Yendors,
the natonal car manufactorer of Malaysia, who were atfected by the unmatched volume of Froton Vendors
orders which ITSB and IP5SB had advantage of said soft loans subsidied by the government in accordance
with TAS 2, accounting Tor govermment grants and disclosure of govemment assistance, A% a resull, the
subsidiaries 0 Malaysia recognized income trom the acguisiion of long-term loans with no interest of
Baht 13.62 million in the statement of comprehensive income for FY20018417. In addition, the long-term loan
nterest income of Baht 13.62 million was based on the difference between the long-term loan as specified
n the loan agresment and the Tar value of the loan, which based on the som of the currents that the loanes
musi repay to the lender's financial institution in accordance with the period specified in the discounted loan

agreement with the discount rate based on the market rate.

a4 Cost ol sales
The cost of sales comprises mainly the following:
1. Dhrecl varnable costs materials, purchase parts, indirect materials, sub-contractor costs, consumables,

factory sales amnd disfribution, royalty fees, direct labour and factory ufility expenses;

2. Fixed overhead cosls indirect abour factory, factory mantenance, taciory rental, insurance and faclory

Lek A e | e and
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4. Depreciabon and amorbsation for tactory, plant and meschinery

The compomnents of The {'Jr'-..-|||;_|'-: cosh ol sales are as 1ollows

Direct wariable costs

Fimancial Year Ended

31 January 2018

Milllan Baht

1,728.1

i

Parcent

3 January 20107

Million Baht

Percent

e |
(4]

1]
[ Q-

The cost of sales of the Group classified by countries iz as follows:

Fized overhead costs 2688 11.8 a7a.r 1
Depreciation and amortisation 2589 11. 2856 124
Total Cost of Sales 2.266.8 1000 2271 1000, (0

Fimancial Year Ended

31 January 2018

1 January 2017

Millon Baht Percent Milhon Baht Percent
Cost of Sales by Country
Thailand Ba4.1 ar.2 a5a.8 g2
Malaysia 1,254.0 55.3 12375 5.5
Indonesia 45,4 5.5 164,48 [
Incia prpt 1.0
Total Cost of Sales 2.260.8 1000 2271 1000

Ciwer the years, the Group contmued (o have a stnet cost and operating expenses contral policy 1o acheve the
eaming targel as well 8% to adapt with a challenging business emroniment and the demand by the Oelas 10 be
competitive, In terms of the production cost management, the Group negotiated with the manulaciurers and
distributors of raw materials ncleding some COEMS to change the type of raw materials bul mamtaned the
same product qualities in accordance with Value Added Value Engineering ("VAVE™) which resulted in the
reduction on the production costs benefiting the group and the customers obtained the automotive components
in more reasonable price. The Group also managed to increase the efficient production processes and reduced

ogverall production costs.
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3.4 Gross prolit and gross prolit margin

The gross profit and gross protit margin of the Group classhed by countnes are as lollows |

Financial Year Ended
S1 January 2018 S1 January 2007

Gross Profit  Profit Margin Gross Profit = Profit Margin
Million Baht Percent Million Baht Percent

Gross ProfitMargin by Country

| hiaaland dHA S 2o 2945 ot

—r
w
=

blalaysia 2053 191 2849
ndonesia 2286 5.4
ndia 14.6 39.6

G461 222 G44.8 221

%]
o
-

B
fa
= |

Group Gross ProfitMargin

For FY2017/18 and FY20168M17, the Group's gross profits were Baht 6461 million and Baht 644.8 million

respectively, which represented a margin of 22.2% and 22.1% respectivaly.
3.0 Selling Expenses
Selling expenses of the Group consisied of distrnbution, stafl and other expenses which can be classified

as 1ollows

Financial Year Ended

31 January 2018 31 January 2017

Million Baht Percent Mulion Baht Pt

283 61.3
11.4 247

1 11.5 B4 14.0

(1]
]
i
(%]
£}
(4]

Distribution costs

.
L
=
na
]
P

Staff costs

Other expenses

5
Total Selling Expenses 445 1000 46.1 1000

3.6 Share of Profit from Associate Company

Cn 30 January 2017, the Group via IIM acquired 40% shares in LAIPL from IESB with the purpose of expanding
the Group's business in India. With the completion of the acquisition, |AIPL became a 40%: associate of the
Growp as at 31 Janoary 20070, The acguistion of such investment was part of the IZ'jl'-.-|||_-'-: Business resiruciuning
and was considerad as the acgusibion under common control and therefore has assumed |AIPL was in the
Group since the nception, On 13 November 2007, the Groug via [IM has completed the acgusition of the

additional G0% shares from the existiing shareholder, Mayuor Industries Pyl Lid, The complebion resulted in

a chamge of status from associate company to a8 wholly owned subsidiany of [1M.

Dwrimg FY2017/18 (up to 13 November 2017) and FY20168/17, the Group recognized the amount of

Baht 4.0 million and Baht 5.1 million respectively as share of profit from associate company.

“ ngress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Linited

.0 Adminstrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses consisted of staff, depreciation and amortization of office assets,
management fees and general admimnstrative expenses, such as consulbing fees, office exdpenses,. olce rental
and office maintenance fees. Most of the administrative expenses ane personnel expenses, The fable below

shows the Group's administrative expenses classified by type of expensss.

Financial Year Ended
31 January 2018 3 January 20107

Million Baht Parcent Million Baht Percent

Staff costs 274.0 606 2678 56.5
General administrative expenses 1371 J0.3 168.8 35.6
Liegreciaton and amoreEaton of

ohice assels 41,2 a1 ard) i.H

Management Tees [ LR

Total Administrative Expenses 4523 1000 474.0 1000

3.8 Fmance cost
the Group's Tinanoal espenses consisl of interests trom overdrafts and short-term loans trom financial
institutions, imterest from hire purchass and financial leass agreements and long-term loans. For FY2017/18 and

FY20165 7, the Group's Tinancial expensss were Baht 2.9 mellon and Baht 747 million respectnvely

3.8 Income Tax Expenses!|Iincome)

For FY2017/18 and FY2016/17, the income tax expense’(income) of the Group were Baht (3.2) million and
Bant (1500 rlbon respectively, The Income tax expenss shown n the statement of comprehensive INoome Was
difterent trom the profit betore tax multipled by the applicable tas rate due o the improvements related o the

tax calculation, which comprised of the following:

a) Adjustment of corporale income tax expense of the previous year

b} WHilization of business tas losses and tax allowances in the current year;

c) Difference in income tax rate which was not equal in the Group;

d) AV was granted promobonal privileges by the Board of Imsesiment I:H'Z Ay tor the manutaciure of auto parts
under the promotional cerificates with the exemption from corporate income tax for promoted businesses for
a pericd of 8 years commencing from the first earning opsrating income and obtained a 50% reduction in
corporate inoome tax tor the promoted business of 5 years rom the exemplion date;

g) Adjustment on the non-allowable experses and tax exempt income;

fi Deferred fax recognition on unabsorbed business tax lossses and unused reinvesiment allowances and capita
allowances;

gl Deferred tax adjustment item of the previous year;

hi Deferred tax effects on tax rale change; and

1 CHher items
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e ICOaTe Tax -.-:-:;_;-.-'|::|::-:-"I:|||-::-:||"-e::l of thee Group tor FY2010008 and FY2659 ¢ are as tollows:

Financial Year Ended

31 January 2018 31 January 2017

Million Baht Percent Mulion Baht Pt

Current income tax
Current income tax charge 18.7 10a.7 2545 451
Adjustment in respect of tawincome)

BEDENSES O Drevious yean L) (3.7 3140 244

Tatal current income tax 18,0 100,00 6.5 100,00

Dalerred tax

Adjustment In respect of tax expense’

{income) of previous year {(2.1) a5 {(58.1) 84,10
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax of
previous year (20.1) 805 (4.4) 6.0

=]
=
[=]

Total deferred tax [22.2) 1 |7T3.5) 100.0

Tax expense/(income) reported in the

statement of comprehensive income (3.2) 100,0 (17.00 1000

MNie:

- ffeme constdered Tov [ox purposes of the Group were mainly reloted fo Copdtal Alowanece [TCA7) and Aanvesimeant
Taox Alowance [“RA") which ore fox deductions relmhed fo copita expendilire in ooccordance with Moloysian Low
Companias in Maoloysio that used the CGA deduchions would nesd fo invest in capdtal expendiluras for Bursiness purposes

Ihe lype of Ixed desels ol O Woloyeon compdy mad vestad i whveh would recaive o CA lox bensll must De o propedy

"

thal comped willt the gualfang copeldd expendifure occonding o MoldysanT Luavhyng Low by which lox deduchion from
CA was subiect fo the relevart lows of Moloysio. The unutiiced CA wouwld be recognized os deferred daox ossefs on e
statemant of financiel position and such the unulilized CA could reduce the fufure fox lobilities of the subrssidiary in

Malaysio. This was in accordance wilh the temme and condifions of usimg the CA of Moloysian tox jow

HA woe an ocddibiona tox reved fo ine GA Tor o Maloysion company invesiing & gualiynmg capelal expanddure with the
purposes af axpanding the exisling production copocity, diverificolion of busimess into relahed products or incragse Hhe

capacity of modemizotion or auiamahon of Hhe production fociities. The pamaony obyective in providing A4 waos fo promode

fhe Dusnmess of the mondfocivang esciors n Madys, e eomculobon and veage of fax dediechoms from A 2hall e in

aceordance #wath the relevant dws of Mooy and RA ot hod mod bean used wolld be recogimzed of Oefemad oy desals

on stotemeant of finoncic! posiion o5 wall o5 unuiilized CA
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.10 Met Profit and Net Prolit Margin

Financial Year Ended

- — Increase/|decreasa)
Unmnit: Million Baht .

31 January 2008 31 Januwary 2017

Million Baht Percent

Met profit for the financial year 147.8 2104 (B2.5) {28.7]
Man-controlling Interests 201 415 .3 b
Met profit attnbutable to eguity holders

ol the Company © U 196 1.8 (423

Earning per share ™ (Bahit) 07 014 (00N S00

* Inclusive of profit altribudable o shaoretolders of subsidiories ond ossorioted company baefore combination of business

LTS SN Saviirod

For FYS00 0718 and FY 2008481 7, the Group regstersd net profit tor the fimancial year of Bant 1279 mulbon amnd
Baht 2102 million respectively, decreased by Baht 2.9 mullion oF 29./%. The decrease n the net prohil was
mamby due (o the recogmition of foregn exchange 0ss amounting 10 Baht 1,38 millon during FY2017718 as

comipared o the recognition of foregn exchangs gain amounting o Bant 507 milllon durnng FY 20068577

4. Financial position analysis
Ag Al 31 January Q018 the Group has total assets of Bant 4,481.2 mililon, total labdibes of Baht 1,2G62.8 and

todal shareholders” equity of Baht 25483 rmilion

4.1 Assels

Financial Year Ended

- — Increase/|decreasa)
Unmnit: Million Baht .

31 January 2008 31 Januwary 2017

Million Baht Percent

Trade and other receivables 851.1 2 2 141.1) 15.9)
nventories 2722 2343 are 162

Lash and cash equivalents s 4185 I:'I:i-:: A 311

Froperty. plant and eguipiment 2. 0358 20811 [y I:I Hi
Jederred] tax assels o L i, Zhb. [al=T=] ;|

Cither assels 186 1125 (a1l LS

Total assets 4,481.2 45253 (44.1) (1.0]

As at 31 January 2018, the total assets decreased by Baht 44.1 million or 1.0% in comparson fo total assets as

at A1 Jdanuary A1 S
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4 2 Liabahities

Financial Year Ended Increase/|decrease]
Unit: Millicn Baht

1 January 2008 31 January 2007 | Million Bahd Percent

cn
i
o
=1
[=]
W3
[ ]
—

Trade and other payables d55. T

fank overdrafts and short-term loans

i
i
-
-
£n
i
—k
—
i
-

from financial instiution 1456

L] -Lefimn loans f5d.0 1.0 A1aa) |2HH]
Llerred Tax bl e 1hio2 114, % R a7.b
Chesr labllnies LR F B 44,5 aeh

Total llabilides 1.8328 22601 [327.3) (14.5]

fesoal 31 Jdanuary 2015 the total Hahbdities decreased by Baht 3273 million o 14 5% in coemiparisan o (ol
labdities & at A1 January 2017 malnly diie (o he deceass in ong eem leans amoenting o Baht 3198 millior

of which tha amoumnt of Baht 1005 milkon was ufilizing the listing procesds

4.3 Shareholders’ eguity

Total sharebolders’ equity increased by Baht 283.1 million, from Baht 22652 milion 85 at 31 Janeary 2017 fo

Baht 2.548.2 million a=s at 31 Jdanuary 2018, The increass was mamly due to the issuance of 261.8 million
nmevw ordmary shares with 2 par value of Baht 1, at an offering pnoe of Baht 1.33 per share to Baht 342.3 milion

imat of expenses relating to the share offering amounting to approcimately Baht 5.6 mibion).

5. Key financial performance

5.1 Profitability ratio

FY201718 FY201617 IncreaseS

Idecrease)

Retum on assats [CROAT) (9)

Refurn an eguity ("ROE™) (%] 38% 7.5 [ T9%)

Due to lower profits recorded for FY2017A8, the ROA and ROE decreased by 1.5% and 3.7% respactively in

companson to FY2016M7.

5.2 Liguidity ratio

FY2017M1& FY2018/17 Increasa’

Acoounts reocevable davs

Invenilary days

; 2 T aer: I5

Apcolunts payable days B £8.3 s
o qE

Cashy converson oyele [days) 19.4 258 23.5

Even though the average collection period and invertory holding penod was detonrte in PYS0071H as
campared to FY201617, the Group monitored and controlled the accounis receivable, inventories and

accounts payable throughout the FY2077/18 which resulted the cash conversion cycle recorded at 48.4 days

Ingrass Fndustnal | Thaitang) Public Coeerpainy Limiled

a.d Leverage ratio

201718 FY2016M17T Increased

[decreass)

Debt to Bguity ratio {imes) Ay 1.04 1033

Current ratio {times) 1.08 105 {104

Thie inferest-bearing debit fo equity ratio had continuously decreased toe 0.77 times as at 31 January 2018 from
104 Hhimes as al 31 January 2070, achseving thie (S |.-'-: bargpeEt o Wong-tesrm funding strociure Delosy 1,0 times
e current ratko had also improved 1o 102 tmes, ndsating ihat the Group's lguldity und was suffolent (o

mateh currant chbgalrns

6, Cash flow analysis

Financial Year Ended ,, !
Increase/idecrease)

Unit: Million Baht

I January 2008 31 January 2007

Million Baht  Percent

Met cash flows from operating activities 2748 35848 1437} (40.1]
Mt caeEn flows imed ;) ineshing activities 1 e B 14188 1970 a4

Metl cash fovws Broan (used m) firanaing

actalies A nkeyl 1271 [l w ] g 1)
Iransation adiustments 16.9 {2368 09 1ES 9
1 ||

Met merease (decrease) 0 cash angd cash
soufvaans M2y A68.3 (1710 (avem
ash and cash egquivalents al Degimnmng

of the financial year 3884 3521 453 | 1341

Cash and cash egquivalents at end of

the finamcial year 2T0.6 3984 112

b} 132.1)

e Dadance of cash and cash sguivalents a5 at 31 Jdargary 018 decnsased by Bant 12708 mallion as compansd

to FYS01ET to Baht 2706 million

7. Major factors and Influsnce potentially affecting future operations or financlal position
The Group's perforrmance was greatly dependent on the developmant of the automotive indistry and economy
in {he country where we opsrafe namety Thailand. Malaysia, Indonesia and India. The vehicle production wolume
is an important driver for the manufacture of artomotive parls busimess in Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and
India, as the Group's revenue tends to move in the same trend as the indusiry's performance. Apart from the

|||l.'||--:l"-,-": perormance, the other Tactors thal would aflect the petormance of The Groop are as olows:

.1 Exchange rabe

Alihaagh the Group™= policy for subsidiares in Thailand Mataysia, INdonesa and Indin was 1o menulpciure and

gistnbole W0 local OEMS 0 local curmency, subsiliaries i the Groop almo had intergompany Transact
goourred duning (e penod. The Group’s Ineoms staternenl over The pas] yesrs had Desn recognized on [oresg
oo ey g and loss malindy dude o the elimination of intercampany ansachoms o local currenoy and Torgsgn
currency at the end of the period as compared to the fransaction daete in the future. If the sxchange rate

fluciuated, net profit of the Group was affected by the recognition of foreign exchange gains or
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%% es arsing fram the {-e!-._’:har':g& Fale wWhen {-ellr'r'llr'nﬁtll'lg af ||'|1|3r'|:_‘:-:_'||1'||;‘;|;'|.|'|':,l Iransaction. In some cases, the
Group would need 1o buy raw materials and eguipment for manufactunng from other country which would have

affected the Group by the changes of the exchange rate

7.2 Rate of interest

Az at 31 Januwary 2018, the Group had long-term loans from financial institutions amounting to
Baht 753.7 million. Some loan agreements included floating interest rates of MLR - 1.50, COF + 1.25% and
COF + 1.75. %%, Then if interest rates in financial markets had changed significantly, it would also significantly

affect business performance of the Group

In view of the volatility and increase of uncertainties in the econcony globally, the Group would continue its close
|1'||:u"||[|_‘:-|'||'|g Of T chevehopimeent of the aulomalive ||'||_'I|,.|$[r‘:,' I kl&':,l ] (e markets, |n preparalion al the :_‘:hall&ng{-ef:
ahead, the Group would contfinue to focus on controlling cost activities and cost reduction measwres, as well as
improving efficiency and eficient use of resources across the organization. At the same time, the Group would
explore new opportunities and new markets to grow. The Group would also continue to emphasis on guality,
cost, delivery, morale and safety to meet customears” high standard requirements and continuous improvement

#Cross the onganizaton

Ingress Industral (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

@ REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committes of the Company was formed on 28th October 2014 and is comprised of thres (3) gualified
Independent & Mon-Ezecutive Directors according fo the definition and requirements of the Securities and

Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, The particulars of the Audit Committes members

are as follows:

Mame Designation

1 k. Abdul Khudus Bin Mohd Maaim Chalrman
Mr. Nuthavuth Chatlertpipat Member
Mr. Apichat Suftilsiltum Member

The Audit Committes is tasked 1o assist the Board of Directors ("the Board™) and the overall duties and

responsibilities are as follows:

1, to review the financial statements, the ._‘:lgr'nfu::.']n[ ;‘LC:_‘:Dl_ll'ltu'lg and r'{-epl:j:rilr'ng 1SELes ||'|-._’:Iu|::|||'|g complex or
unugsisal ransactions and highly judgmental areas including 1o discuss with the Company’s Management and
external auditor regarding audit results, relevant risks and managemsant action to decreass the identified risks

and to review the effectiveness of intemal control over the financial reporting process

2. to review the effectiveness and adequacy of internal control system including control over the information
technology system and the implementation of the recommendations on internal control from intermal and

extemal asditors

3. to review and approve the imternal audit charter, annual audit plan, staffing and resources required for the
internal audit and to review the effectiveness of the internal audit that complies with the Professional Practices

of Intermal Auditing

4. to review and approve the compliamce charter, annual plam, staffing and resources required of compliance
and contral function |r'||3I|_|-:_1||'|g to reviesy the non-compliance 1ssues rased by regulal::::rg,r A ENCEs and the

rectification of thoss issues.

5. to review the adequacy of the Company’s risk management process and policies and the effectiveness of

the implementation of the Company's nsk management systems, and

6. to ensure that the code of conduct and conflict of interest policy is in writing and arrangements are made
for all management and employees to be aware of it and promote the compliance with the code of conduct

and conflicts of interest policy.

The Audit Committes meets four (4) times annually, of more, whenever necessary, Meetings will nomally be
attended by the Group Chief Financial Officer, the Head of the Internal Audit Department and a representative
of the external auditor (if required). Heads of operation units or other Board members may also be called upon

1o atlend meetings
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For the financial year ended 31st January 2018, the Audit Committes convened four (4) meetings and had
expressed thelr opinion, which can be summarized as follows

1. The review of guarterly and annual financial statements

The financial reports, disclosure of notes to financial statements, the accounting policy and significant provisions
and compliance with financial reporting standards and regulatory requirements were reviewed by the Audit
Committes and material matters were highlighted to the Management. The Audit Committes also held
a mesting with esternal auditor in absence of the Management to discuss the auditors’ independence and
their comments, as well as the avditor's report and concerned issues of the audit and review of financial
statements. After the review, the Audit Committee considered that the financial statements in the year 2017-2018
were prepared in accordance with the Thal Financial Beporting Standards (TFRS) and contained sufficient
disclosure in the notes to financial statements, and thereby approved the financial statements which external

auditor reviewed and audited without reservation,

2. The review of the effectiveness and adequacy of intemal control system and intemal asdit

The Auwudit Committee conducted guarterly meeting with internal auditor and the Management to review and
assess internal control system and performance of each subsidiary. The Audit Committee considered the
report from internal auditor to ensure the appropriate and sufficlent adeguate internal control system
Upon reviewing, the Audit Committee has concluded that the Company’s intermal control system is at

good level without amny significant deficlencies,

4. The review of risk management

The Audit Committes identified that the Company has in place the risk management executives who assess
the Company’s sk factors and evaluate sk management measures 1o reduce impact to an acceptable level
and report fo the Audit Committee on quarterly basis. The Auwdit Committee also noted that the Company has the
annual revieny of risk factors with consideration of the business nature and changes of business environment
Ipcally and globally and has appropriate and adegquate sk management measures where impast s mitigated
within acceptable level.

A. The appointment of external auditor

The Audit Committes noted that the appointment of external auditor s based on knowledge, expenence, ability,

adequacy of resources, as well as level of independence and gquality of their services. The remuneration of
auditor s considered based on the scope of duties and responsibiliies, Based on the satisfactory results and
their widely recognized audit standard and experience, the Audit Committes recommended the reappointment
of EY Office Limited as the Company’'s external auditor for the year ended 315t January 218 for another term

which was concurred by the Board for submission to the Annual General Meeting of shareholders for approval,

3. The review of the compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Audit Committes presented that the Company’s operations and reporting are in compliance with the SEC
and SET reguirements and regulations relating to the Company's business, The Company has conducted its
business according to good governance practices, business ethics, the anti-cormuption policy and other policies
according to the guidance of the Board, There was no reporting of any misconduct in FY201718,

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

6. The revienw of related transactions and transactions of potential conflict of interest

The Audit Committes satisfied that these Fansactions arose in the ordinary course of business for the benefit
of the Company and were reasonable, transparent, and had been properly disclosed in compliance with

regulatory requirements and good corporale governance principles.

The Audit Committes has performed its duties prudently and independently and issued its opinion for the
benefit of the Company without any restriction in obtaining information, resources, and with cooperation from
the management. The Audit Committee also assessed its performance of duties and responsibilities in the

past year as effective, efficient and achieve the objectives assigned by the Board,

On behalfl of the Committes

/%—sﬂ\. :-?.:}. \

Mr, Abdul Khudus Bin Mohd Maalm
Chairman of Audit Committes
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H E P D HT D F N O MI NATI O N & 1.5 propose and recommend candidates to be member of the Board with proper gualifications for the Board to
HEM UN EHATION GOMMIWEE gubmit for appointment in the Shareholders’ meeting of the Company:

1.6 make recommendations to the Board for the successor of the CECY
The Momination and Remuneration Committes ("NECT) was established on 28th Ootober 2014, Currently,

the MRC comprises five (5) members, three {3) of whom are Independant & Mon-Executive Directors and the .
1.7 ensure that the Company™s remuneration packages are compelitive in view of industry practices; and
remaining two (2] are Non-Independent & Executive Directors. The particulars of the NRC members are

follows:
= - 1.8 perform amy other activities, roles and responsibilities as approved, assigned and directed by the Board.

Desigration

*1. Wr. Muthavuth Chatlerpipat Chairman 2. Authority

A Datuk Ramell Bin Busa Deputy Chalrman

. g Mr. Abdul Khudus Bin Mohd Maaim Membsar Im dizcharging the roles and responsibilities, the NRC shall have the right to:-

| M. Apdchat Suttilsiiem Mlennbser

3 Dato’ Or. &b Wahab Bin lsmail Membsr 2.1 full and unresfricted access to information and consult any emplovee of the Company in order to conduct

any |r.uest|gat|¢n and to abtain any infarmaticn ;’_lF_.r‘I_au'lu'lg o the IZ3|'|:||_J|_‘:-;
" Independent & Non-Executive Directors

A Non-independent & Executive Directars
SN g . = 2.2 invite any employes or other individual fo attend the NRC meeting: and

Far th iod ended 31st J 2018, the MRC d f 4) i d ried it ti d R i i ; A i
of A penod enda SRRy - convened four (1) meetings and reported fts meatings an 2.3 obtain independent professional or other advice to assist the NRC in the performance of its responsibilities

srformances 1o the Board
e T and dulies

Similar to the formation of the Audit Committee and the Execufive Committes (EXCO), the Board has approved
The MRC has performed its duties prudently for the benefit of the Company, The committes is assured that its
specific Terms of Reference for the NRC whereby it cutlines the scope of dutles, responsibilities and limits of
s = : = B Tais S St PRfEmE e performance in the past year was effective, efficient, and achieves the objectives assigned by the Board of
authority.
! Directors. The commities alse has disclosed the remunerations and benefits of directors of the Company In the

Annual Regort and Form 56-1 for transparency purpose.
1. Owerall Duties and Responsibilities

Generally, the MRC is tasked to:-
On behalf of the Committes

1.1 assist the Board of Directors of the Company {“the Board™) in respect of the recruitment and selection

process of the nomination of directors and senior managemseni; \M{W C| |

1.2 recommend gualified candidates to the Board for consideration prior to nomination proposal at the
Shareholders’ Meeting for further approval and appointment; and Br. Muthawvuth Chatlertpipsat

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes
1.3 review the compensation package of directors including the Chief Executive Officer ("the CEQ™) for further

recommendation to the Board.
Specifically, the NRC is entrusted to:-
1.4 review the I:.‘-|2||1||_‘:-a|'|':,l'$_; BUSInNess :j:r‘gar’nzatl-:_'u'l_ thee resguired mix aof skills, experience and gualications of s

directors and CED in accordance with the Company's business requirements as directed or necessitated by the

decision of the Board,
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@ REPORT OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE @ COMPANY CONTACT INFORMATION

The Company formed an Executive Committes PEXCO") comprises five (3] Mon-Independent and Executive

Directors. The membsrs of the EXCO are as follows:

M INGRESS INDUSTRIAL (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Designation Mo, 3141 UM Tower Floor 14th Unit A1, Ramkhamhasng Aoad,
i Datuk Ramell Bin Musa Chalrman Suanluang Banghok 10250, Thailand
2 Dato’ Or. Ab Wahab Bin lsmail Deputy Chairman t' [+662} 719 9844-46
3 Mr. Abdul Rahim Bin Haji Hitam . Member & (662) 719 9647
Mr. Affandi Bin Mokhtar * Member nvestar Relations
5 Mr. Datin Serd Farah Bintl Datuk Ramsel ** Member B ir@ingress.coth
e M FINE COMPONENTS (THAILAND) CO., LTD.

- r r i [T r r e ; . I i a i ] -
To mamtaly the balonse of 5050 on Tholland Resident Dhrector ond Forelgner on the demise of the lote Tan Sd D, Surin 800 Moo 4, Tambol Makhamkhy, King-Am-Pur Nikhompatians,

Fitswwan, Mr Affandl Bin Mokhiar resigned o= Non-Independent and Executive Director of the Company effective from
) . Rayong 21180, Thadand

14ih December 2077, He was however ramained o5 o mamber of the EXCO R, +[65-38) 8037468 / D1T0A5-T

** Diin Sen Foraly Binli Doiuk Romell waos appoinied os the EXCO Membar effactive from 1 Febraony 2018 E +(B5-38) 893 750

M fetBfnecomocoth
The EXCO was set up on 28th October 2014 by the Board with clear and well-defined objectives namely 1o

support the Board's roles and duties by providing organizational directions on behalf of the Board, ensure that

M INGRESS AUTOVENTURES CO., LTD.

Rayong Plant

Esstern Seabosrd Industrial Estate (Rayong) 6446 Moo 4,
F'Illakda.-ang F!a'-,lnng 21140, Thailamd

business decisions of directions can be made 0 tmely manner and most ||'|'||;'_|-:_'|r'[;'|.|'|[I!,r_ to provide advice
to the Board on decisions and business matters ranging from strategy planning, policy, investment and risk.

In determining that the EXCO meets its objectives, the Board further approved a definite Terms of Reference

governing the process and condust of the EXCO, t.. +[B5-30) 054042-5
o= +(65-36) 954046
In FY20 7418, the EXCO convened ten (100 mestings, most of which were project related. For every new project ¥ iavingress.coth
where the subsidiary companies intend to participate in any projects that require new investment, detailed
feasibility study will have to be prepared and presented to the EXCO prior to the tabling of the same al Ayutthaya Plant
the respective board meetings of the subsidiary companies for approval. EXCO meeting is the platform Hi-Tech Indusirial Estate (Ayutthaya] G4/6
for the Company 1o evaluate, deliberate, identify the relevant nsks and challenge the proposal submitted by Moo 1, Banlane Bangpa-in &yuithaya, 13160, Thadand
the subsidiary companies. With these processes, not only the subsidiary companies are able to provide a Y  +(65-35) 314404-45
competitive offer but also interest of the same is safeguarded. &  +(55-35) 314410

E i:.vﬁingrgs:; oo th

The Board is of the view that throughout FY2017/18, the EXCO has performed its duties and obligations
B INGRESS PRECISION SDN. BHD. (285861-D)

PT 24752476, Kawasan Perindusirian Milad, P.O, Box 45,

diligently and prudently within its authorities and limits as provided in its Terms of Reference, The Board further

concludes that the EXCO has met its objectives as assigned and expected by the Board.
71807 Milal, Megen Sembilan Dand Khusus, Malaysia,

On behalf of the EXCO % +606-700 5509
gy +505-700 5547 7 8

g f! 2 I' %  ipsb_nilad®ingresscorp.com.my

Datuk Rameli Bin Musa

Chaiman of the EXCO
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INGRESS TECHMOLOGIES SDN. BHD. (235452-V)

1. Kewasan Permdusirian Bukit Barurt

I} Rawang, Selangor Dard Ehsan, Malays:a

&

m itsbingresscorp.com, my

TALENT SYNERGY SDN. BHD. (350866-U)
3, Jalan F/T, Saksyen 13, Kawasan Perndustrian Bang

13650 Bandar Baru Bangl, Setangor Darul Ehsan, Malayesa

INGRESS AUTOVENTURES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Bahrar LT Road, Bahimd ||-".'.'|I|-' Roackam 1l Work shaoo
Nh-3 Jaipur Hegheay, Dungsas 22001, Haryana, Indsa

%, 011244091 A0

0 Ly P

e U1 12440031 81

™ infoBingressmayur.con

PT. INGRESS MALINDO VENTURES
IIn. Industri Selatan G4, Block GGE=-TAE, Kawasa

Uikarang Selata B4 Hekas), Indonesia.

5 (E2-21) A9E3 4320

™ ptimv@ingressmalindoco s

PT. INGHRESS TECHNOLOGIES IMDONESIA
| Industr Sedatan B4, Block GE-TAR, Kawasa

Uikarang Selata

n (E2-21) 8583 4320
¥ ptimv@ingressmalindoco s

ublic Company Lemnited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

alland) Public Company Limited

Opinion
| hawve audited the accompanying consolidated finang slatements of Qress wirial | Thalland) Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (i oup), which comprise the consolidated statement of financia

gress Industrial (Thailand] Public Company Limited for the sam

|Thailand) Public C

Basis for Opinion
| conducted mw aucit
urther descrnbed | N
my regort. | am independent of th
izsued by the Federation of Accounting Professio
v ather @thecal responsibaibes |

1 iz sufficient and appropriate to provide &

Emphasis of Matter
o o Mate 17 1o the financial state
sts acguired and the liabilities assumed &

by opimion is not modified i

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, i




Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below.

Revenue recogiition

The Group s principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of automolive components

The Group's revenue was mainly derived from sales of automotive components, which were significant in terms
of volume and value, accounting for approximately 98 percent of total revenuses. As this revenue had a direct
impact on the Group's operating performance, | focused on the recognition of revenue from sales of automotive
components, especially the timing of such recognition,

| have assessed and tested the Group's internal controls with respect to the revenue cycle by making enguiry
of responsible executives, gaining an understanding of the confrols and selecting representative samples to test
the operation of the designed key controls. In addition. on a sampling basis, | examined supporting documents
for sales ransactions cceurring during the year and near the end of the accounting penod, reviewed credit
notes issued after the penod-end and performed analytical procedures on revenue from sales accounts

Business combination

Az discussed in the emphasis of matter and Motes 11 to the financial statements regarding the acguisition of
irvestment in Ingress Autoventures (India) Private Limited (Formery known as "Ingress Mayur Auto Venlures
Private Limited™), As at 31 January 2018, the Group provisionally recorded the acgquisition using a best estimate
of the values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, determined by applving the acquisition method
The Group will complete the recording of the acguisition within 31 January 2019, and the amount recorded
as at 31 January 2018 may change. | have focused on this business acquisition since it iz material to the
financial statements as a whole, and the management was required to exercise substantial judgment when
appraising the fair value of the assets acguired and llabilities assumed, Therefore, there s a fsk with respect to
the recognition and the measurement of the assels acquired and labilities assumed, including initial difference

on the acquisition.

| rewiewsad the terms and conditions of the agreement and inguired with management as to the nature and
chjectives of the acguisition in order to assess whether the acgquisition meets the definition of a business
combination under Thai Financial Reporting Standard 3 (revised 2016) Business Combinolions, | checked the
value of the acguisition against supporting documents and related payments to assess whether it reflected
the fair value of the consideration transferred and did not include the acquisition-related costs, | tested the
calculation and considered the reason for the initial difference on acquisition recognised from the business
combination and reviewed the disclosures related to the business combination in the notes to the financial
slalements

Cther Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprize the information included

in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor's report thereon,

The annual report of the Group s expected to be made avallable to me after the date of this auditor's report

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of

assurance conclusion therson.

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so0, consider whether the other information is= matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or

my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materally misstated

When | read the amnual report of the Group, if | conclude that there is 2 material misstatement therein, | am
required o communicate the matter to these charged with govemance for corection of the misstatement

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

hManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such intemal contrel as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whethar due to fraud

or amor.

In prepanng the financial statements, management 1% responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic aternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abouwt whether the financial statements as a whole are free
fromy material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o Issue an auditor's report that includes
my opnion, Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantes that an audit conducted
in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exisis.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasconably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements

Az part of an audit in accordance with Thal Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skeplicism throughout the audit, | also

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatemsant
resulting from fraud is higher tham for one resulting from error, as fraed may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional emissions, misrepresentations, of the overmde of intemal control

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal contred,
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& Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncartainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinicn, My conclusions are based
on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of my auditor's report, However, future events or conditions
may case the Group to cease o continue &% a going concem

& Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemeants, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presantation,

s Obtain sufficient appropriate awdit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. | am responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. | remain =solely responsible for my audit

opinian,

| communicate with thoss charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
| identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, | determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the curment period and are therefore the
key audit matters, | describe these matters in my auditor™s report unless law of regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremealy rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be
communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

| am respongsble for the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report

Supannes Triyanantakul
Cartified Public Accountant (Thailand) Mo, 4498

Q 4

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 28 March 2018
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@ FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Ingross Industrial {Thaitand) Public Company Limibed and its subsidiaries

Statomont of financial position
As at 31 Janusary 2018

Assein

Curment assots

Caah and cash aquivalants

Trade and olher recaivables
Inventories

Other oument asseis

Taotal current assets

Non=cunment assots

Raalricied bank depasts
Unallocabsd cosl of business acquisition
Invesimanis in subsidiares
Imvesiment in assosiabed company
Invasimant proparies

Froparty, plant and acuipmant
Inlarsginka aapals - compular sallwana
Defermed bax sests

Other non-curent assals

Tatal man-current ARssls

Total assots

Tha accomganying nales are an inlegral par of the financial statemants

[Lini; Bakt)
Consaldaied Srancial stalemants Zeparaie fnancial staiemants
2018 2017 2018 2017
288172 524 418,541,452 15,071,138 B, 030, 604
651153807 682,178,458 37H,073,565 106, T37,523
212.241,006 234,287,250
A7 FA7.2TS 17,292 540 1,111,250 B4, 471
12565364, 705 1,362 208,708 04, 256,054 115,308, 535
14,037 847 2372 904 =
46,630,762
1,581,160,250  1,881,180,250
n127arr
A2 BT 420 42 153, 0620
ZTIESEIENS 2781058916 1,398,832 2,038 185
11,826,181 8.753,142 33,332 48,131
352,162 780 206,670,740 4,520,490 128 452
17,545,900 10,901,430 551,747 485 372
3221838585 3163087238 1,687 954651 1,883.870,250
4401203300 4528 386,936 202,220,736  1,999,1TH,ATA
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Ingrasn Induatrial (Thallond] Public Company Limaded and (5 subsidiariag
Stwtement of Bnancial postilan [continued)

As at 31 January 2018
{Lini: Bl
Corsclidabed nenasl slsemenis Sepansis finencal alalamanis
Plabe 2014 2017 2015 207

Listdllhes and sharabolden' squity
Curreni Habilites
Bank cvardrafts and shart-imrm oans ram

Ninancal Inalilutions ™ 445,641,575 AQT ASE B4 - -
Trade ard ollwer payabies 16 455,602, 192 Do B3, BEG BEH, 63,518 705,007 451
Curreni porfion of liabilties nder hine-pechese and

fin@non lease agreamanis Ir 11,642 BT a9, 30,2146 .
Curranl parmon of long-famn Dans e 197 4487, 786 2TH, 748,440 - -
Dividand payabls ta ralsied pary i .05 8F5 - - -
Income & payabls 16,673,533 17,013,983 - 6,592 405
CHher currerd knbiies 19, 0615 4,940,373 4 181,074 4,305 271
Tatal curruet labilltas VOS5, TTE 1,302 480,433 672, BE4 550 715,005,088
Han-currert Aabilitag
Liahiitiag under hing-prichass and finance leasn

agreamain, ned of curmant pation L £0,54H, 558 20,133,050 - -
Long-bemm loans, nel ol curent portian T4 B56,267. 247 797,517,875 - -
Proviaian for long-term omplayee banedis 8 35,809,878 26,808,187 B 123 BT, 203
Oedfarrnd tnx labilhes 24 1ﬁhlmdd_§ 114 107 827 . .
Total non=current labilities TT7.528, 25k BT B2, D&l B3, 123 BT, 305
Total liabilites 1,502, WG 1T 3,360,942, 611 BFY,655, T3 16, 682, aeT

The accompamying nobés ans an imbegral part of e inence slstamenis.

Ingroas indusirial (Thalland) Public Company Limited and Bs subgidianiss

Satement of financlal position (Confinued)
As at 31 January 201§

Sharshnkders’ sguity
Shara crplal

Ragistanad

1 A46. 947 580 ordinary shares of Haht 1 mach

Issued and fully paid

1,446 347 550 ardinary shanes of Bahi ¥ aach

[@ME: 1,185 380,190 ardinary shares ol Bak 1 aadh)

Share peembim
Defch from: the changs in ihe ownershin inieresis in subsidiary
Doefcit from huniness combinatiors unoer comman connod
Aetainad pamings

Appmapnialesd - Saldory resared

Linappmonnbed
‘Uther comporanis of shanhol oo’ ogualy
Equily asrihutahia o awnars of the Campany
Hor-comnoding intsmats of ihe sukaidianas
Total sharsholdars’ squity
Taotal labilites and shareholders’ aquity

[Linib Bahly
Cansalidated nordinl slatemenls Separale Francisl stalsmenis

Note 2018 a0y 28 2y
| 446042550 | 448 542800 ) 445542 600 1 445 542 B0

aa 1,445 0432 550 1185 380,760 14445 8.2 BR0 1,985,350,190
24 B0, 749 575 - &0, 749 575 -
1" i, 328 By . . .
[ARER: 8.} {f 'I-l:.I}E.E.EBJ:I a =

22 17 000 000 11,000, 000 17, 00, D] 11,000,000
178,847,272 202,801 417 B Ex2, 15T &H, 248, 291

1,742 872 975 1442 1008 658 1 608, 525 0F8 1,283 625 481

BOS 361,151 B30, BES AT - -
2548334 136 3,065,204 435 1 GO8, 525,028 1,283 628 481

4 ART 20N J00 4 BE5 QA6 B0 2 3E2 2M)TES 1,694, 176,874

The BCcompaming Nodas A an imagral pat of the financial slalements.

Cirecizrs
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Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Campamy Limibed and Hs subsidiarias

Swmtemant of comprehensive incomas

For tha year orded 31 Janunary 2018

Prafit or loss:

Revonues

Salas

Cthes Incomo
Dividend insamo
Konapemant feo noome

Gains on exchange rais
Eorop sales

Gan from sogquaition of share from non-cortoling imaonest
Ditearn
Todnl raven e
Exparikas
Caostof sales
Befling sxperass
Aderarsalral s dxpanses
e on anchange rEle
Tofal sxpanson
Prafit belors share of gain from irmsesmants |6
sssoslated company, finonco cost and
tax income [exponses)
Shara of gain Tram inveemants in aassatated company
Prafit before finamoe cost and tax incomn [expanses)
France cosl
Prafit bafore tax income [expansea)
Tax oo (ERpanses)
Prafit for ihe yaar

(LTl Batil)
Cangiftated Anancinl glatbmrednis Senanee financisl siaements
il 2098 2017 2014 2097
FRE R PR £ 35905 A0 - £
17 . - 136,460,750 81423158
i . a7 845 065 35 45, 728
i TH,TOT 40 48 4849, 206
556,728 30278 84T
11 14,332, 55
11,568, &bS L A0 id ol B, 9659
1 HTEATT ETT 3A531.653.515 174,404 64 167,325,058
2 266 75T 221,141,808 - .
44 475, Bl A6 148,831 - -
d52.208. 272 AT 28, B2 53, AEE 808 48, 15T
1364, 604 = 7918236
2,764 307 437 278,319,663 fi1,486,142 45,102 754
13,500,440 LR KR 113,062932 121,176 522
12 4.8902.310 5153, 721 = =
NTEILESD 267 466 682 118, 0@2.832 121,176,524
[72.360,188) 74,104 FA0} = =
1440812 4a2 TH35E1,.803 113,082 832 121,176 324
M 3 348,518 17,046 184 4,063 H08 5,104, 300%
14T BEE 400 A2 T 116, 085, 540 115072 24

The sccompanyng noles arm an integral par of the financial staiemens.

ingress ndustrinl (Thalland] Public Company Limiled snd s subaidiariss

Piaterment of comprobenstve income (cantinued|
Far the yoar ended 31 January 2018

Cther comprehensioe incomn:
Cithar covmymhanasys fncoma In be meclasaiTod
i endTt o ings i ssbpeguend panods:
Exchange differances on warslation ol inancial stamnwents
¥ Tereign curency
Ohair comnpraREn R T o ba recinasiied
10 ol i ek i Bl uOng paricds

Chin P Srviyrs N A Vv 0T [ D reslasiieg
iz ol oy ipas i suheaioel poris
Actunnal gaing oea] - reof noors 18
Gars on nivafiaton of Basels - net of mcame
Dl commaBnEnS mcome nol 1o be reclassfied
13 prefil oF kiss in susEaquent pamods - mel af mcame B
Dther comprahenaive incoma for tha year

Tolal compratenaive incamm for the year

Profit athibutabla to:

Equity holdoms: of ine Comparyy

Nan-paninaling infeensis of T subsidianag

snarshalders of subaidianes and asscaiand company
nafors. comddraton of business wrdar commen conin

Compralnsie Incoma afiriaabis to:

Equity haklars. of i Compaery

Non-pontrafing inkerests of B subsidianes
Snareholders of subsidanes and assosiabed compay

belore combmatan of business pnder common oonimi

Emrnings peer &lnane
Basc pamings par sharo
Proft aniributabie W souily bobders of the Campany’

Hote

26

Tha acoompanying rotes am an integral parl of Ta inancial slammants.

(unit; Baka)
__ Corsciidated financinl stalemamis Saparain financial siatemania
ki 21T La18 ST
1,765 500 {133 343 ES0| = E
{1,365, 500) (133,343,680 - -
{4,918, 513) TITAATE (8, £ 50} (25, 104}
- 13E58, 778 - -
{1,818, 513) 15852304 (48, 550} (25, 104y
iG, 184,013 (1174114886} (48, §5a) (25,104}
H‘iIE"?IEB-E ﬂ'ﬂ-.l.'.|1ﬂ|ﬂ-3-1 11EIIII:3?.3W 115,048, 530
0T A0 TS 164,041, 0BT 11-5D!5!54I:I 115 Eii!g
50,058 BFS A0, 781,878
- & 605,088
1!'|'H-1!4I]l.:l 115.125!1:1?
0572436 THEST BTG 11E 0ET, 380 115 CWE Ba0
alf Rl e 0 BET TS
: 4,131,580,
144677 A58 13,018 631
.07 14 [}, 0 310
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ingrass ndizatrial (Thadand] Public Company Limbted and its subaidiarias
Cash flow stabtsmant
For the year ended 31 January 2018
{Linit- Bahi)
ingress Indusirial [Thallund) Public Company Limtted ard its subsidiaries Gonpolklatad Snarvial stalamists Separnie Bnarcie walomants
Statesnant of changes in sharehalders” equity foontinued) 2018 20T 2014 2017
For the yoar onded 11 January 2048 Cash flows from operating activitios
[Link. Bahl) Proft bofare tax 144 B2 202 160,381,053 111022 803 29,178,224
Sopurla fwncial stalermenks Adusirens 16 recanciie peoft befare 1A i
Fottined semins e niEtcash provided by (pacd ingm) operating acthsbcs;
Approprated - shshcliers Deprecinlion ofd smortisation 300,008 441 318,805 B0T T84 653 TaD T4
Nole ki IR A oy oo - e Incraass | adowancs bor doubitul debls (Revarsa) (0.7 &5y 2,023,902 - -
Balanca as af 1 Fabmuary 2098 1,185,380,180 ' £, 000,000 63,063.702 1,2a3,443,803
Heversal of reducton of inverdory fo net mealsahle vakue {4, 128:924) LhEG, 50T} x e
Pralt for the year : . 145,070 15,072 024
Yot T SN I K T Fiar . ) ) 1251043 (25, 104) Dividend inoome Trom subresdaies - - {136 £80.740) 181,823 158)
Total comprehensie incoms for Ha year x ) - 145,048 G20 P — Galn on changas In falr value of Invasimant propery 2 (1688 320 3 :
Yriraliy ol okppicpaetalind setaied Sarings o Gaines on sales sguigmarnd (4,028,010} |57, 468E)

— & . ) 8,000,000 161,000,003 ) Wille-f aquipment 6,047 221 1,582 428 - :
Eavicend peid A ) ) ) p— (75.064.330) Unmalsad mcharge {gains) ioss 1,466 144 1,300,212 (4,971,863 44, 748 622}
Baloncs as ad 31 January 2017 1,788, 380,190 ' 11,000,060 B, 246 291 1,203, B35 401 Galn Fom acquisilion of share oM Ran-contmllig inleest (14,332 255) : - .

- Shara of galn trom mvestmand in assosiated company (4,002 210 (&, 163,31} - -
Balarnos as af 1 Fabruary 3017 1,105, 330,100 .- 49,000,000 AR, 246 201 1,282 B2, 4R Pravison for iong-lerm employes banafits & 304 560 4457111 1E5BET 180,711
Praftt for the paar : : 116,085, 540 116, Da, 540 Incoma from Long-lesmn non-rierast beanng oane - 113,616, 554) -
Toinl piher comprenanane income for e year . . 148,150 {48,156 Inbares] Moomo {454 TR {4,602, 782 : .
Tolsl comprefinme incoime b ey - - = 116,037, 380 116, 05T 300 Iithdrens] Enpa e T2 560 168 T4 104, 70 - .
frcraara B capial 2 264,562 500 BOTABETS . . 342,312 {175 Proft {loss) fram operaing activites tefors
vl ol it ot abioa ecriciOn. i charges 1 cperaling sssess and labilbes 503,340,087 570,562,604 (26.831,521) (8,565,031}

s Ak £ ' £ ol R ' Oiparaling aassds (increasa) decraess
Deidand paict 27 > ; PR i . L s L3 2 Tt el ol i iiairkag TIAGIEDS  (IE3ISEE01) (272138,851) (14, 141,882
Balanco as 31 31 January 2018 1,240, 542 65 B, 749 5TH 17,000,000 3, A2 TAY 1,608, B2 a2 e (55,754 780} (10,240, 345] : :

y Oithar cumart resets (14,025 noa) 45,511,878 452 814 (537.162)
Thes mecoimparning iebes arm A insgrel pan of e francsl Malsmens
Diher non-curtent assets (5,853,921} 2,053 668 {56, 525) .
Cipmnaling banlilies increans (feomani)
Trache and other payabies (184,17 421} 0,557, B58 (30.148,008) 18,436,835
Dividen payabie o reialid party 8,057 825) = . :
Cithar cumran lablines 9,138 863 1498, &63) (134,937 HEr4 967
Pravison far iong-lean empioyes banefis {383.946) (1,670,641} 3 {534,735}
Dithar non-curmant iafilias (4. BE5657) = - -
Cash fiows from {used in) operating activities 315,008,700 £04,001 358 (328 847, 358) 2 5
Carsé pald lar imemeal sxgerseg [T2, 280, 168) 172,836,314 - -
Cash paid for incoma tax (57 120 807, 62 61 5 B ) {7 Ba0 e {4 B Gk
Mol cash Nows from [used in) operating activities TS 358,668 4325 {337.788.343) (4, B0 542
Tha accompanying notes are an niegral parl of the firancial statemoris
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Ingress Industrial {Thallapd] Public Company Limibed and its subsidiaries

Canh flow statemant {oontinmed)
For the year ended 31 January 2018

Cash flows from investing activities

Caeh recedand from dividand pakd from sutaldiares
Cash paid fr acoustion of irvestmant mn subsidiary
Decrease in mesiiched Bar deposils

[Fecreass @ curment reaaiments

Acnuigition of bulding Improvement and egulnman
Acgurilion of ntangible assets - compuber saftwee
Praceads bom sales of aguinment

Cash recewsad from intorest income

Hat cash fiows from (usad |n) invosting sctivities
Cash flows from financing activities

Incrosresn {(decrease] in shar-tarm loans from Sranoal meidotions

Decraass i lang-Sarm bbard fom reésted paty
Repayment of llabilfae wdes him-purchasa
and {mancil ingss ogneemants
Cagh recedvad fom long-lenm ioans
Repayment of leng-term loars
Cash received it payment for addigonal sharos of subsdiary
Cash recedodd Bom [aauance ardinany shands
Cash paid far-direc! cost ratated o the shara offarng
Cash paid for foemer shamehcigers ol subsidiares and
sesacidled company bafan (s buginess cambinalion
Crvidmnd pasd
Devidenos paid by the subsidiones 1o non-conirolling imeresis
Mat cash flows from (used in) financing acthwies
Decrease {increase) in translation adjusimoent
Mat increass (decreass) in eash nnd eaah squivalonts
Cagh and cagh equivalents al beginning of yasr
Canh and cash oquivalonts af ond of yoar (Nate T)

Suppiomentnl cash flows information:
Kon=tnsh ransactions
Purchae of machinesy and aguipmeant for
whith no cash has bean pei
Purchase of assots under hirepurchasn snd
finance lsase agreamanis
Mosalion of long-leem loan fromm relited paty of the subsidiary
to lang-tarm Inan from fmanmal netiuton

iLimk: Batil)
Gansctidaied Ninancial slatamants SEparate inancial siRtamsanis
2018 2017 2018 2017
+ 136 460D, 40 81,823,158
(81,554 G20y
{10,271,356) 13,745
11341351 - =
(136,271 478} [A27 812,624} (101,500) -
(4,868, TEE} [2.BE9. &3}
& 605,640 00 560, 504
{2af ShEL 3 Bod Ta2
&8 BAT TAEL (495,838 OTE} 136,358, 220 81,523,158
48, T5T 06 74,557 448
(22.410.817) -
{40,240,303) (16,862,084}
55,092,180 & B0 5TE = *
(33412 815} 204 2 355 - =
12,200,000
AT BTEAZE T ATEAZS =
{6,957, 551} - {6,857 563 -
(32, 283.456)
(132 450 924} (15,8564, 530 (132450, 824)
{11,651 013} (41,365,237} (75 NeL E3T)
(140,204 408} 127 067 BAR 208 458 B30 (76 5L 231)
16,348,585 (23,657 B3}
(137,791 934} 45,240,856 T 04535 1,168,185
398 AZHAES 353, 150,488 30530604 BAGZ 415
L7067 50 A58 429 458 1EO71, 138 B0, 04
41,319,361 25 B45, 765
9,293,166 25,306, 356
218 B85 S1E

Thie accormpanying nodes Bie a0 hiegral ped af B Snances] stalamania

m bgress distial [Thaitand) Publie: Cormipamy Limited

@ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENT

Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 January 2018

1. Corporate information

Ingress Industrial (Thaiand) Public Sompany Limded "the Company”) s a public company. inoorporaled and
domiciled In Thaltand. Its parent company ks Ingress Corparation Berhad, incorporated in Malaysia and its
parent company of the group is Bamdawl Sdn, Bhd, Incorporated in Malaysia. The Company s principally
engaged in the investment holdings. The subsidianes ars princepally engaged m the mamnutacture and distribution
of automotive componenis. The registered office of the Company B S141, 14th fleor, Unit A, UM Tower Buiiding,
Ramkhambaeng Road, Suanluang, Bangkok.

The Stock Exchangs of Thailend ("SET") has approved the listmg of the Company's ordinary shares as
gecurites O be fraded on the SET. effective from 9 August 2017,

2. Basiz of preparation

21 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
emunciated under the Accounfing Professions Act BE 2547 and thewr pressntation has been mads in complianes
with the stipulabions of the MNotfification of the Depardment of Business Development dated 11 October 2016,
issued under the Accounting Act BE 2543,

The financial statements In Thal language are the official statulory financial statements of the Company
The financial statemants in English language have been Fanskated from the Thal language financkal statements

The financial statemants have been prepared on a hisforical cost basis except where otherwise disciosad in

the accounting policies.

2.2 Basls of consalidation
Al The consolidated financial statements Include the fimancial statements of Ingress Industrial (Thadand) Public
Comipany Limilted {"the Company™) and the Tollowing subsidiary companies [“the subsidianes"):

ANMLIAL REPCHT 204 702018 m



CofrIpsary’s farms Nature ol Business Courdry of incorporation  Parcaniage of sharshalding
20138 21T
Percant Parcant

Subsidiaries hedd directl the C

Ingress Industrial (Malaysial Sdn Bhd Irvastmant haoldng balaysia 1000 100u0

Ingress Autoventures Company Limited Marufactura and distnbution Thailand 625 625
ol subomeotive components

Fing Componants (Thaiand) Comgpany Manufacturs and distribution Thailand as0 0.0

Limmibad of Futomotive oM ponants

Subsidearies held through Ingress Industrial (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd

Imgress; Preciion Sdn. Bhd Marufaciure and dstribition Mtaksysia 300 B0
of auinmotive components

Ingress Technoksgies Sdr. Bhd, Marulacture and dstribmion Malsysia 0.0 T4
of auinmotive components

Talent Synergy Sdn Bhd. Prowigion of engneerng and Malaysia 10010 1000
automatic prosucion
Symheam design SeMicas

Imgréss Auboveniures (ncial Private Limited Manufactine and dietribution Irdia 10007 0D

[Formardy knowmn as “Ingrass Mayr Auio of auinmotive components

Venbunes Private Limiged™)

Sub=idiary held through Irrgrtﬂu Pracison Sdn. Bhd.
FT ingress Malindo Vemtunes Marufachss and distribution Indonasia 110 &0

of automotive components

Subsidiary hedd throwgh Ingress Technologkes Sdn. Bhd

FT Ingrees Technolofies Indonesia Marufaciure and dstibution Indonesia 100D 1000

of automaotive components

* Change status from an associate to a subsidary on 13 Novembar 2017,

B} The Company is deemed to have control over an investes or subsidiaries if it has fghts, or is exposed, 1o
vanable retums from it involvement with the investes, and it has the ability to direct the activities that affect

the amount of its retums.

c) Subsidianies are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue fo be
consclidated until the date when such control ceases.

dj The financial statements of the subsidianes are prepared using the same significant accounting policies
as the Company,

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

) The assets and liabilities in the financial statements of owerseas subsidiary companies are translated to Baht
using the exchange rate prevailing on the end of reporting period, and revenues and expenses translated using
monthly average exchangs rates. The resulting differences are shown under the caption of “Exchange differences

on translation of financial statements in foreign currency” in the statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

f} Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies have been eliminated
from the consolidated financlal statemeants

gl Mon-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that are
not hald by the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated profit or loss and within eguity in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

h) The difference bebween the nel proceeds paid or recelved from the change in the percentage of shareholding
in the Company's subsidiaries and the interest of the non-controlling interests of the subsidiares in the net book
value of the subsidianes as of the date of such change it is included in the consolidated statement of changes
in shareholders’ equity under caplion of “Deficit from the change in the ownership interests in subsidiany®,

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries, under the cost method, have
been prepared solsly for the bensfit of the public.

3. Mew financial reporting standards

{a} Financial reporting standards that became effective in the cumrent year

Cwring the year, the Company and its subsidiaries have adopted the revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations (revised 2016) and new accounting treatment guidance which are effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after 1 January 2017, These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding Intemational Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards revision
of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and accounting guidance to users of standards
The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the Company and

its subsidiaries’ financial statements.

ib Financial reporting standard that will become effective in the future

Dwirirvg the current yvear, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
standards and interpretations [revised 27 which are effective for fiscal vears beginning on o after 1 January
2018, These financial reporting standards were alimed at alignment with the comesponding Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards with most of the changes and clarifications directed towards disclosures in the notes o

financial statemsants.

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries believe that the revised financial reporting standards
will not hawe any significant impact on the financial statementzs when they are initially applied.
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4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue recognition

Soles of goods

Sales of goods are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed
to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting

dizcounts and allowances.

Rendering of services
Service revenue s recognised when senvices have been rendered taking inte account the stage of completion

Dividands
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends iz established.

4.2 Cash and cash eqguivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liguid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

4.3 Accounts receivable

Accounts recelvable is stated at the net realisable value, Allowanse for doubtful accounts 15 provided for
the estimated losses that may be incurred In collection of receivables, The allowance s generally based on
collection experience and analysis of debt aging.

4.4 Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valied al the lower of cost (under the weighted average method) and
net realizable value, The cost of Inventories s measured using the standard cost method, which approximates
actual cost and includes all production costs and atfnibutable factory overheads,

4.5 Investments
a) Investments in secunties held for rading are stated at fair value, Changes in the fair value of these securities
are recorded in profit or loss

b} Investments in associated company are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements wusing the

eguity method.

o) Investments in subsidianes and associated company are accounted for in the separate financial statements
using the cost method, The Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the investments whenever
there is an indication that it may be mpaired.

4.6 Investment properties

s subsidiary's Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including ransaction costs, Subseguent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, Any gaing or losses arising from changes in
the value of investment properties are recognised in profit or loss when incurmed,

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the as=et is recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

4.7 Property, plant and equipmentDepreciation

Land is stated at revalued amount less allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any). Buildings and
eqguipment are stated at cost or revalued amount less accumilated depreciation and allowance for loss on
impairment of assets (if any).

The Company and s subsidiares” land and bulldings are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and
subsequently revalued by an independent professional valuer to their fair values. Revaluations are made with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carmying amount does ot differ materally from fair value at the end of
reporting penod,

Differences arigng from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation of the assets of the Company and
its subsidiaries, the increase s credited directly to the other comprehensive income and the cumulative increase
I% recognised in equity under the heading of "Revaluation surplus on property and plant”, However, a revaluation
increase is recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decreass in respect of the sams

assel previously recognised as an expense

- When an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the assets of the Company and
its subsidiaries, the decrease s recognised in profit or loss, However, the revaluation decrease s changed o the
other comprehensive income to  the extent that it does not exceed an amount already held in “Revaluation

surplus on property and plant” in respect of the same asset.

The Company and its subsidiaries plan to have these assets revalued every 3 years.

The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the useful ife of the assels or the lease terms,
whichever i= lower, provided there is no reasonable uncertainty that the Company and its subsidiaries will own
the assets at the end of the lease terms,

Depreciation of plant and egquipment is calculated by reference to their costs or the revalued amount, on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives with the exception of molds used for specific goods,
for which depreciation is caleulated based on units of production. The estimated useful lives using the
straighi-line method are as follows:

Long-term leasehold land o 20 and 98 vears
Buildings and buildings improvement - 5 - 50 years
Long-term leasehold bulldings and bulldings improvenent o 20 vears
Machinery and eguipment o 9 - 10 vears
Furniture, foctures and office eguipment - 3 - 6.7 years
Motor vehicles o 3 - 6.7 vears
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Depreciation is included in determining income. The surplus on plant and equipment is amortised to retained

earmings on a siraight-line basis ower the remaining lives of the related assets.

Mo depreciation is provided on land and assets under construction and installation.

The revaluation surplus on land and builldings can neither be offsel against deficits nor used for dividend
payment.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ property, plant and egquipment s derecognised upon disposal or when o
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an
assel (calculated as the difference between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel)
% Ineluded in profit or loss when the assel is derecognised,

4.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable o the acgquisition, construction or production of an assel that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its infended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the respective assels. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried they are incurmed, Bormowing costs
consist of interest and other costs thal an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

4.8 Intangible assets
Intangible assels are carmed al cost less accumilated amortisation and allowance for impairment losses of the
assets (if any).

The Company and its subsidiaries's computer software with finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the useful life of 5 and 10 years and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the computer
software may be impaired, The amortisation pencd and the amortisation method of such computer software
are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged fo profit or loss.

4.10 Related party transactions
Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the Company and
itz subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company and

its subsidianes,

They also include associated companies, and individuals or enterprizes which directly or indirectly own a voting
interest in the Company and its subsidiaries that give them significant influence over the Company and
its subsidiaries, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the planning and direction

of the Company and its subsidiaries’ operations.

4.11 Long-term leases

Leases of property, plant and egquipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
clazsified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of the leased assels
and the present value of the minimum leass payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to profit or loss over the lease penod,

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited

The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated owver the shorter the useful life of the asset and the

lease period.

Leazes of property, plant and eguipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit
of kss on a straight line basis over the lease term,

4,12 Foreign currencies
The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company’'s
functional currency. ltems of each entity included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using

the functional currency of that entity.

Transactions in foreign currencies are ranslated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction, Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Babt at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period,

Gains and losses on eschange are included in determining income.

4.13 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment reviews in respect
of the property, plant and eguipment and other intangible assets whenever events oF changes In circumstances
indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss 15 recognised when the recoverable amount of
an assel, which is the higher of the assel's fair value less costs to sell and its value In use, is less than the
CAFTYING amoint,

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. However in cases where property, plant and equipment was
previously revalued and the revaluation was taken to eguity, a part of such impairment is recognised in eguity

up to the amount of the previous revaluation.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there s any indication thal previcusly recognised impairment loss
may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company and s subsidianes estimate the asset's recoverable
amount. A presiously recognised impaiment loss s reversed only if there has been a change in the assumplions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased
carrying amount of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been defermined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reverzal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is camried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal, which exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, i reated as a revaluation
increase
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4.14 Employee benefits

Short-term employes benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions o the social security fund are recognised as expenses when
incurred,

Post-employment benefits

Dafined confribution plans

The Company, its subsidiaries and its employess have jointhy established a provident fund. The fund is monthly
contributed by employees and by the Company and its subsidiaries, The fund's assels are held in a separate
trust fund and the Company and its subsidiaries’ contributions are recognised as expenses when Incurmed,

Defined benefit plans

The Company and its subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments they must maks to
employess upon retirement under labor law and other employes benefit plans. The Company and its subsidiaries
treat these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The cbligations under the defined benefit plan are determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary
based on actuanal technigues, using the projected unit credit method,

Actuarial gains and losses arsing from post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in other

comprehensive income.

4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and itz subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resowrces embodying economie benefits will be reguired to seltle
the abligation, and a rellable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

418 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
Current income tax iz provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities,
based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation,

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and llabilities and

their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting pericd, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

The Company and s subsidianes recognise deferred tax labilities for all taxable temporary differences while
they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to
the extent that it s probable that fulure taxable profit will be avallable against which such deductible temporary
differences and tax losses camed forward can be utilised

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
of part of the deferred tax assel to be utiised

The Company and its subsidianes record deferred tax directly to shareholder's equity if the tax relates to items
that are recorded directly 1o shareholders’ eguity

417 Fair value measurement

Fair valug is the price that would be received o sell an asset or pald to transfer a llability in an orderly
transaction between buyer and seller imarket participants) at the measurement date. The Company and its
subsidiaries apply a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets and liabilities that are
required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting standards, Except in case of no active
market of an identical asset or liability or when a guoted market price 5 not avallable, the Company and
its subsidiaries measure fair value using valuation techmique that are appropriate in the circumstances and
mazimises the use of relevart cbservable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured
at falr value

All assets and liabilities for which fair valus is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair valse hierarchy info three levels based on categonse of input 1o be used in fair value measirement
as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such asssts or labilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or labilites, whether directly oF indirectly

Level 3 - Use of unchservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Company and its subsidiaries determine whether transfers have occumed
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assels and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
that are measured at fair value on a recurmng basis

5, Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times reguires
management o make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.
These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures: and actual results could differ from
these estimates. Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:

Leases
In determining whether a lease 15 to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is
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requirgd to ugse judgement regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased assel
has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and condifiors of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtiul accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and estimates
based upon, among other things. past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debis and the prevailing
eCanarmis aondificn

Net reafisable valus of inventories

The management wses [udgment 1o estimate the nel realisable value of rventores based on the amount the
Iveniones: are expected to realise. These estimales take info consideration fluctssticns of proe or cost directly
relating to events occurring after the end of reporting date. In addifion, the management makes judgment and
eatimates expected loss from siock obsolescence based upon past sales history and the prevailing sconomic
conditicn

Fair value of financial instruments

In determdning the fair value of financial hatraments recognised in the staterment of financial position that are
nod astively traded and for which guoted market prices are nol readily avallable, the managemeant exercise
judgemeant, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input fo these modsals = taken from
ochservable markets, and includes consideration of credit sk (bank and counterparty, both) liguidity, correlation
ard longer-Tenm volatility of financial instruments, Changs in assumplions aboul these factors could affect the
fair value recognised in the statement of financial position and disclosures of fair value hisrarchy.

Property plant and equipment/Depreciation
In determining depreciation of plant and eguipment, the management & reguired o make estimates of the

useful lives and residual valuss of the plant and eguipment and to review estimate ussful lives and residual

values when there ane ary chaniges

The Company and its subsidiaries measure land and buildings at revalued amounts. Such amounts are
determined by the mdependent valuer usimg the market approach for land and the depreciation replacemsni
cosl approach for bulldings. The valuation imohes certain assumptions and estimonbes,

In addition, the mansgemsent is reguired fo revienw property, plant and equipment for impairment on a8 periodical
basis and record imparment losses when i s determined that thelr recoverable amount is kewer than the
cagrying amount. This reguires [udgements regarding forecast of fulure revenues and experses refaling 1o the
asseis subject to the review.

Deferred tax assets

Deterred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and wunused tax losses to the sxient
that it i= probabie that taxable profit will be availabde against which the temporary differences and losses can be
illlisged. Significant management [udgemen] is reguired 1o determing the amount of deferred tax assels that
cinl b recpgnsed, based upon the Bkely tming and level of estimabe future taxable profits

m Ingrees ocustrial (Thalland) Public Ceenpany Limited

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligations under the defined benefil plan are determined based on-actuanal techinlgues, Sueh determination
is e based on vanous assumptions, including discount rate, fulure safary increase rate, moralily rate and
stafl tumower rale,

6. Related parly transactons

During the vears, the Company and #4s subsdianes had significant business ransasctions with related parties.
Such transactions. arose in the ordinary courss of business and were condluded on commercial terme and

bases agreed upon betwsen the Compamy and those relaied parfies.

The significant business transactons with relsted parties, for the years ended 31 January 2018 and 2H7 are

f J
as folows iUnit Thousand Baht}
Corsolidated Sepnrale

financial staimmants fmancial statarmmnis
2018 7 A018 207 Transfer pricing poficy

Transactions with parent company
Chyichand mcome 133451 TE A4 132451 75.BR4 As announcemant
Inlurast sxperses - 1.7 - - AL rates of COF plus

1.25 percent per armwim

Transactions with subsidianas
{alimmaied from the eonsolidated

finaricial statsmenis]

Managament fes income - - ar 5 aG914 Contract price
Dividend Fcoines - - 136.481 1,823 As annourcement
1 i it :

ashareholders of subsidiaries
Gala of goods ang 4 g - ' Az agresd
Purchase of raw materals and supplies 20617 24,1594 - - Am agresd
Purchase of machinery and eguipment 117 QA83 - ' As mgroad
Royalty fea 12850 1rrig - ' Caontract price
Technical assistance fes 7802 62324 - - Caontract price
Dirvidhand pasd 71487 41,385 - - Az armoumoamant

Tranusactions with subsidistes

of 8 corporale sharsholders

ol & subskdiary
Bale of guods T 482 1122823 - - A agresd
Transaclions with related companies
Zale of goods 2.380 45383 - . As agresd
Ranial incoma 2040 17687 - - Contract price
Purchase of machinery and equlpement 33487s T82a5% - - Az agresd
Purchiase of sopplies 288 - . . AR agreed
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Az at 31 January 2018 and 2017, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related Directors and management’s benefits
companies are as follows: During the yvear ended 31 January 2008 and 2017, the Company and 15 subsidiaries had emploves benefit
expenses pavable to thelr directors and management as below,
(LInit; Thousand Bahi)
{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate
finanelal stalements financial statements Consalidated Separate
financial statements financial statermsnts
2018 27 2018 2017
2018 217 2018 2017
Trade and other recelvables - related parties
s e, 1o jes [Nate ) Short-term emploves benefits 83,403 68,303 15,004 13,673
Subsidiaries of corporate sharsholders of subsidiaries 106,373 45,787 . . Poet-employment benefita 2121 a792 907 907
Related companies 1,181 2,080 = . Total BE.S524 T1.055 15,811 14,580
Total trade recelvables - related partses 107 554 459,026 - -
Other receivables - ralated parties (Note 8] )
Parent company 3073 696 ) . 7. Cash and cash equivalents
Corporate shareholdars of subsidiaries _ i _ _ The balances of cash and cash eguivalents as at 31 January 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
Subssdiaries - - are.0vd 106,738
Subssdiaries of corporate shareholders of subssdiares 9,760 145,229 - - {Unit: Thousand Baht)
Ralated companies 15,5340 10812 - - Consolidated Separale
Total other receivables - related parties 28,173 164,977 ATROT4 106,736 financial statements financial statements
Total trade and other recelvables - related parties 135,727 14,003 ATEOTA 106,736 2018 2017 2018 217
Cash 30 a4r 12 30
Bank deposits 287872 418,194 15,059 8.001
Total 288,173 418 5411 15,071 8.031
Corporate sharsholders of subsidisres 1,578 1,064 - -
Related companies 1,373 250 - -
Total trade payables - related parties 2,852 1,314 - 5 As at 31 January 2018, bank deposits in saving accounts and figed deposits camed interests betwesan 0,10 to
Other payables - related parties [Mote 16) 1.10 percent per annum (2017: between 0.38 to 0.85 percent per annum) {the Company onby: 1.10 percent per
Parent company 16,232 9,005 58 65 amnum 2017: Mil).
Corporate shareholders of subsidianes 2,GBE 11,985 - -
St SR L Cash and cash eguivalents as at 31 January 2018 and 2017 presented in the cash flow statements consist of
Subsadiaries of corporate shareholders of subsidianes - 84,738 - -
Associaled company - 331 - - {Unit: Thousand Baht)
Related companies 9978 26,251 - s Consolidated Separale
Total other payables - related parties — 28888 1323010  _G6306F Y0832 financial statements financial statements
Total trade and other payables - related partes :11,351:: 133624 EEEIDEE .'-'I:I2|332 2018 217 2018 2017
Cash 301 347 12 3
Dividend ble to related party )
ne paya = Bank deposits SETAT2 418194 15,059 8001
Corporate shareholder of subsidia 9,058 - - - )
- ¥ Total cash and bank deposits 2BRATI 418,541 15071 8031
Total dividend paymble fo related party 9,056 - - -
— Less: Bank overdrafis (Mote 15) {17.535) 201120 - -
Total 270,638 388,420 15,071 8.031
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B. Trade and other receivables 8. Inventories
The balances of trade and other recelvables as at 31 January 2018 and 217 are as follow: The balance of iventones as at 31 January 2018 and 217 are as follows:
{Unit: Thousand Baht)
{Unk: Thousand Baht) Consolidated financial statements
Conselidated Separale Reduce cost o net
financial statements fimancial statements Cost realisable value Inveniones - met
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2m8 2017 2018 _ 2017
Trade receivables - related parties Finished goods 43,236 57,985 (1.459) (2,243) M TTT 55,742
Aged on the basis of due dates Wark in process 44,4089 51,608 (777) {1,055) 43,632 50,554
Nat yet due e S ) } Raw materials 174906 119406  (1538)  (4608) 173458 114800
Past due Spare parts and factory supplies 12,131 12630 - - 12,13 12,639
Up to 3 months 4,293 630 = . Gaods In transit {943 552 - - 1,243 552
3 - & months 23,467 114 ; : Total 276M5 242101 (3774) _(7.o04) 272241 234,287
6 - 12 months : 52
Over 12 months 2 2,571 - - During the current year, the subsidiaries reversed the write-down of cost of inventories by Baht 4.1 million
Tetal trade receivables - related parties 107,554 49,026 - - {2017: Baht 1.0 million), and reduced the amount of inventories recognised as expenses during the year.
Trade receivables - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates 10, Other current assets
Mot yet dus 315,532 237073 » . The balance of other current assets as at 31 January 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
Past dues
Up to 3 months 104,325 147270 (Unit: Thousand Baht}
S e SAsin ﬁnaf::ir:zl;::;ﬂerda ﬁnancs:‘:ia:r:tr:f:ﬂanm
Ll LU ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Over 12 months 4,313 6,582 Prepald expenses 13,583 5,036 ) )
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties 460673 424,940 Tax Recoverable 10,561 5.874 1.024 )
Less: Allowance for doubtiul dabts (2677 {2,705} Advance payment for mold 21,319 1675 B B
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net 457 SAg AZP 235 Others 5334 a0R a7 540
Total trade receivables - net SeSE60 471261 Total 47797 17 993 1111 540
Other receivables
Other recelvables - related parties 28173 164977 A78,074 108,738
Other receivables - unrelated parties 75 8a7 74,985
Total other receivables 104,070 2394972 378,074 106,738
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts [18.468) (189,055)
Total other receivables - net 85 604 220817 378074 106,738
Total trade and other recaivables - net 651,154 ﬂﬁa 78,074 106, T3
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Juint vanture agreemant and shareholding in FCT
On 15 Aprll 2014, Ingress Corporation Berhad ("ICE’), the parent company, entered Into a: joint veniure

J0AT
i 433

agreament with lwamoto Co. Lid. [“Ilwamoto™), a business pariner from Japan, with respect to investment in

durirg ponod

201E

51461

¥5.000° 37500
'IEEE‘I E] EEE

fnit Trousarss Babil)
Cisiciond recoend

Fine Components (Thailand} Co., Lid: (“FCT"}, under which Iwamoto was o provide FOT with operational

P i?i E_ uﬂl 2 support relating to the manufacturing and maintenance of molds and ocusiomer ecquisstion,
B T g %z
3 : - Linder the agreemaent, iwamote was o west in 81,00 new ordinary shares of FCT {representing a stake of
= i =
m E ﬁ % " 30 percent} within two years from the date of the joint venture agreement, [T lwamoto was mable 1o fully invest
& f‘ @ a in the shares of FOT as specified n the agreamant within such perlod, the two wmvestors: were (o negotiate 1o

find a ressonable solution
il

2047
Permant
onag
625
SB00

From.July to December 2074, Iwamoto invested in 208,00 new ordinary shares of FOT with a par value of
Baht 100 sach, amounting to Baht 21 millon, representing & 10 percent sharsholding in the paid-up capital of
Baht 208 millian.

Shnsebiicing
paenlags

203
Percanl
ionn
g25
B850

= =
; . B3
E ﬁi ; _‘é E Or 1 June 2015, the Company enteéred Into-an agreament. granting rights under the above a [aint venture
= B § g g agreameant with ICB and Iwamote, whereby the rghts and ebligations under the joint venture agresment
(=
E E Rl wolld be transferred 10 the Company by the ICB. effective from 1 Febeuary 2015
: i B
T d = & F § Dwiring the first guarter of the year 2016, the Company and hwamoto made an additional agreement fo extand
| = | —1 =
E E| | 4 8 the period for mvestment m the remaining 593,000 ordinary shares of FCT to be made by hwamoto to be within
b =
é P 2 § 15 Apsil 2017.
z 2 5 &
': o g % - Curing: the first guarter of the current year, the Company and Iwamoto entersd inte additional agresments
B = g ¥ .
E % 2 % s £ as follows:
[
E u 'rg ﬁ E
- E i (1) An agreement to make payment for 122,000 shares with a par value of Baht 100 each, amounting fo
B B E
'E E. E o3 & Baht 12 million, In May 2017, the Company recemwved full payment for the additional shares.
8 3 EE
a % g g (2} An agreement to0 make payment for the remaining 471,000 shares with a par valus of Baht 100 sach,
[ia]
E iy amounting to Bant 47 million, within 15 April 2018
= ki
E E . 3 E O 26 May 2017, Fing Components (Thadand) Cou, Lid. & subskdiary, received payment for the addiional shares,
]
0 E 'E E = A a resull, the Company's shareholding In this subsidiary deoreased from 90 percent o BB percent, The
*§ - -ﬁ ﬁ §_ Company recorded the difference of Baht 6 million betwesan the cost and the book value of the Company's
w E EF 2 =
- E % E _g equity interest in the subsidiary that resaolted from the change i shareholding under the caption of "Defict from
-E = i % £ the change i ownership interests in subsidiary”. This is presented &= & separale tem in sharehoiders” eguity in
B —_ L]
E E E E E E the consalidated statements of financial position.
E ko e o
- — E E E o g
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Subsidiary held through Ingress Industrial [Malaysia) Sdn,. Bhd.

Acguisition of investment in Ingress Autoventures (India) Private Limited (Formerly known as “Ingress Mayur
Auto Ventures Private Limited™)

On 14 September 2017, the Board of Directors” meeting of the Company approved a resclution reguiring
a wholly cwned subsidiary (Ingress Industrial (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd, ("IIM™) to enter inte a Shares Sales
Agreement with Mayur Industries Private Limited "MIPL"), whereby 1M s to acgquire from MIPL 5.3 million
ordinary shares of Ingress Autoventures (India) Private Limited (CIAIPL") (Formerly known as “Ingress Mayur

Autoventures Private Limited"} at a par value of INR 10 per share, representing a 60 percent shareholding

in IAIPL, for a total consideration of IMR 159.0 million or Baht 82.6 million. As a result of the acquisition,
IAIPL"s shareholding of [IM would increase from 40 percent to 100 percent. Subseguently, on 11 October 2017,

M paid INR 159 milion or Baht 88 million, representing 10 percent of the tofal consideration. On 13 Movember
2017, I paid the remaining consideration, amounting to INR 1431 million or Baht 8.2 millien. As a resull
of the acguisition, IM has control over IAIPL, The Group, therefore, classified IAIPL as a subsidiary and has
included the financial statements of such subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from 13 November
2017 [ghare acqusition date)

The fair values of identified assets and liabilities of IAIPL as at the acguisition date were as follows:

[Unit: Thousand Bahi)

Assat

Cash and cash eguivalents 1,045
Trade and other receivables 35,5933
Irventories 21,283
Other current assels 9,815
Restricted bank deposits 1,383
Plant and eguipment 67,585
Oiher mon-current asssts 713
Total assets 137567
Liabilities

Short-term loans from financial institutions [455)
Trade and other payables (38,073
Other current labilities (8,003)
Provision for employes benefit (1.085)
Other non-current llabilities 16,065
Tatal liabilities (53.732)
Met asset B3B335
Met assets in the porfion held by the Company 33,535

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Investment in subsidiary - at cost 130,467
Less: Acguisition costs 182 600}
Met book value of imvestment at the eguity method - at acquisition date A7 BET
Gaim from acguisition of shares from mon-controlling interest

af the subsidiany {14,332}
Met assels in the portion held by the Company 33,535
Invvestment in subsidiary - at cost 130,467
Less: Met assels (B3,835)
Unallcated costs of business acquisition 46,632

Summarized effect about cash flow from acquisitions are as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Bakit)

Acguisition costs &2.600
Less: Cash and cash eguivalents {1,045}
Met cash flows paid for acguisition 81,555

As at 31 January 2018, the Group was still in the process of determining the fair valus of the business, and
therefore assigned an independsent appraiser to assess the fair value. In this regard, the fair values of assets
acguired and liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition were the estimated walues, which might be
adjusted in accordance with TFRS 3 [revised 2016) Business Combinations, According to the standard, the
Group's management s reguired to make a preliminary assessment of the fair values of businesses acguined
as at the acquisition date, Duning the measwrement pericd, which must not excesd one year from the acguisition
date, the Group % o refrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recogniszed at the acguisition date to reflect
neny information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. In addition,
the fair values of the businessses acquired during the period are dependent on the result of the purchass
price allocation exercize and this process is currently not completed. The Company therefore recorded such
discrepancy of INA 8% million or Baht 47 million as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of

financial position under the caption of “Unallocated costs of business acguisition”™,

11.2 Details of investments in subsidianes that have matenal non-controlling interests

fUnic Milion Banil

Oirer comprehoenshe

Proporon af eoquity Fraft or o income allocated ta
iforost hoid by Accumulzted balanoe  allocabed bo non- non-controling Dividend paid to
nen-Coriealing of non-confroling  conlroling irderesis  Imovesis during  pen-coninoling inlenssts
CErPRany’s: Tame irerecis ireresia during the yasr the year durireg the year

28 An7 2 2y ANA AM7 2g 2y g ANF
Ferconl  Porcent
Ingress Aulovenhures Company Limfisd 375 375

Ingross Technoiogles Sdn. Brd. 30,0 200

a7 13 mn 1
21 ) 4 131

A0 475 45 23
4 e o] ) 13
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11.23 Summarised financial information that based on amounts before inter-company elimination about

subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

Summarnsed Information about finanaclal position

Currant assets
Mon-curmant assets
Currant liabilities

Mar-Current lEabdlithes

Summarised information about comprehensive income

Ingress Autcveniures

(Unit: Million Bakt)

Ingress Autoventunes Ingress Technologies

Company Limited Sddn. Bhd.

Az at 31 January As at 31 January

2018 2017 2018 2017

BT B34 1,005 1,178

BTV T 1,151 1,044

223 236 564 585

44 43 444 459

(Linit: Billion Bakht)

Ingress Technologies

Company Limited Sdn. Bhd
For the vear ended 31 January For the year ended 31 January
2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenue 982 8385 1,255 1173
Profit i 33 | Fit |
Other comprehensive income i1 2 14 {103}
Total comprehensive incoms 7o a5 A5 (320

Summansed Information about cash flow

Ingress Autoveniures

(Unit: Million Bakt)

Ingress Technologies

Company Limited Sdn. Bhd.
For the year ended 31 January For the year ended 31 January
2018 207 2018 2017
Cash flow from operating activities 137 159 230 24
Cash flow from investing activities (121) (23 (100 {110}
Cash flow from (used in)
finansing activities (1400 (300 (113) B4
Decrease in ranslation adjustment - (2] (2
Met increase (decrease) in cash and
cagh eguivalents [124) 76 15 [25)

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

12, Investments in associated company

121 As at 31 January 2018 and 2017, details of inwestment in associated company held through Ingress Industrial

iMalaysia) Sdn. Bhd., a subsidiary, are as follows:

{Linit; Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statemerts

Carrying amourts
Courtry of Sharcholding basad on
Company's name Mature of business  incorpomation parcentags Cost ity Pt
014 20T 208 an7 208 2T
Ingress Autowvanunes |india) Pyt Manufacture and India 40 - 24572 - iz
Limitesd {“IAJIPL"} (Fomnerly digtribidion af

knawn a8 “Ingress Mayur Ao AUt

anture Pyt, Lid™)" COMponents

* Changed status from an associated to a subsidiary on 13 Movembar 2017

12.2 Share of comprehensive income

During the years, the Company has recognised its share of profit from investments in associate companies in

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

[Unit: Thousand Bahi)

Consolidated financlal statements

Share of profit Share of other comprehensive
from investments in associates income from investments in associates
during the year during the year
2018 207 2018 207
Ingress Autoventures (India) Pt 4,002 5153 (5495]) 1.759

Ltd. {Formerly known as
“Ingress Mayur Auto Ventures
Pvt. Ltd.")"

* Changed status from an associated to a subsidiary on 13 Movembar 2017
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123 Summansed financial information about material associates A& subsidiary (Ingress Precision Sdn. Bhd) leased land to a related company (Ingress Katayama Technical Centre
Summarized information about financial position of Ingress Autoventures (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as Sdn. Bhd) under a long-term lease agreement for land and buikdings on the plot, The subsidiary presented these
“Ingress Mayur Auto Ventures Pwt. Lid.")*. imvestment properties al fair value as appraised by an independent appraiser,

{Unit: Thousand Bahit)
Asoat 31 January 2017

During the current year, such company received rental income from investment properties of Baht 2 millicn

Current assets 58,390 (2017: Baht 2 million).

Mon-current assets 72,865

Cusrent liabiitiss (44.774) The subsidiary has used the investment properties as collateral for loans granted by financial institutions, as
Non-current liabilities {5.580) described in notes to the financial statements No15 and 18.

Met assets a80.210

Shareholding percentage (%) 40

Share of net assels 32,364

Transkation adjustment {2.236]

Carrying amounts of associates based on egquity method 30,128

* Changesd stafus from an associated to a subsidiary on 15 Mowembar 2017.

Summarised information about comprehensive income of Ingress Autoventures (India) Pt Uid. (Fomerdy known as

"Ingress Mayur Auto Ventures Pyt, Lid,™)",
(Uit Thousand Baht)

As at 31 January 2017

Revenue 214,576
Profit 12,882
Crher comprehensive income 13,575)
Total comprebansive income T.307

* Changed status from an associated 8o a subsidiary on 13 Movembar 2017

13, Investment properties
A reconciliation of the net book value of investment properties for the years ended 31 January 2008 and 2017

iz presented below.
(Lnit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2018 2017
Met book valse at beginning of year 42,153 44,021
Gain on change in fair value of investment properties - 1,688
Translation adjustment 519 [3,566)
Met book value at ending of year 42672 42153
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(Linit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Furniture,
Builldings fixtures and office

improvement eguipment Taotal
Cost:
As at 1 February 2016 2335 1.290 3,625
Az oal 31 January 2007 2335 1.280 3625
Additions - 102 1032
As at 31 Jamuary 2018 2,335 1,383 727
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 February 2016 583 27T 864
Depreciation for the pericd 467 ool Tog
Az oal 31 January 2007 1,060 224 1,580
Depreciation for the pericd 467 2re vag
Az oal 31 January 2018 1,527 B0 2328
Met book walue:
As at 31 Jamuary 2017 1,275 TE1 2,036
As at 31 Janmuary 2018 208 A1 1,388

Depreciation for the periced are recorded in selling and adminisirative expenses

In October 2015, the subsidiares arranged for an independent professional valuer to appraise the value of
certain assets on an asset-by-assel basis, The basis of the revaluation was as follows:

- Lamd was revalued using the market approach.

- Buildimngs were revalused using the depreciated replacement cost approach.

As a result of the revaluation the subsidiaries increased the surplus on revaluation of land and buildings in the

statement of comprehensive income in the year 2006 by Baht 191 million (net of income tax)

In December 2016, a subsidiary (PT Ingress Malindo Ventures) arranged for a revaluation of land and buildings
using the current basis. As a result of the revaluation the subsidiary increased the surplus on revaluation of
lamd and buildings by Baht 14 million in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Jamuary
2017,

Had the land and buildings been carried in the financial statements on a historical cost basis, their net book

valse as of 31 January 2008 and 2007 would have been as follows:

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Companny Limited

[(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

208 2017
Land 204,417 203,689
Long-term leasehold land 81,857 B3ET3
Buildings and bulldings improvement 341,881 259,026
Long-term leasshold buildings and improvement 158,275 178,858

Ags at 31 January 2018, the subsidianes had machinery, vehicles and eguipment with net book value of
Baht 64 million (2017 Baht 48 million) which were acquired under hire-purchase and finance lease agresments

Az at 31 January 2018, certain items of plant and eguipment were fully depreciated but are still in usa. The
gross carying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of these assels amounted to approsimately
Baht 2,922 million (2017: Baht 3,811 million).

The subsidianes have pledged ther property, plant and eguipment amounting o approxinately Baht 1,535 million
(2017 Baht 1,683 million) as collateral against credit facilities receved from financial institutions as described
in Mote 15 and 18 to the financial statements.

Long-term leasehold rdghls o land in Malaysia

Az at 31 January 2018, a subsidiary in Malaysia {Ingress Precision Sdn. Bhd. had the outstanding long-term
leasehold rights to land with net book values amounting to RM 11.7 millicn or Baht 94.6 million (2017 R
11.8 million or Baht 94,7 millicn), The leasehold rights o the land were derived from two long-term lease
agreements and the Govemment of Malaysia granted written permission for the subsidiary o utilise the rights
to the two plots of land for manufacturing business activity for periods of 9% years, ending in 2086 and 2052,
During the lease term, the subsidiary s not required to pay rent annually, After the expiry of 99 years, if the
subsidiary wishes to renew the lease, it is reguired to comply with legal reguirements, including payment of
fees for renewal and use of the land fo the government. Each subsequent renewal may not excesd 99 years.
Howewver, if the subsidiary does not follow the legal procedures to sesk permission from the Government of
Malaysia for the utilisation of two plots of land for business purpeses, the right to use the land and buildings
thereon will be returned to the Government of Malaysia.

The long-term leasehold nghts to the land of the subsidiary s subject to several restrictions with which the
subsidiary must comply, including on the use of land for the purpeses permitted by the relevant authonties, the
transfer or sale of the leasshold rights to the land to other individuals or juristic persons, or the use of land as
collateral for debt repayment. The ufilisation of land for these purposes requires permission from the authorities
before procesding in accordance with relevant regulations

The Malaysian law on the possession of land for commercial or industrial purposes stipulates that the type of
possession and use of land (defined by the Malaysian government and relevant authonties) is mainly divided
into two types, namely the possession and use of land by an cocupler who has the ownership of the
land {Freehold title] and the possession and use of land by an cccupier who has the right to use the land for

a period of not exceeding 99 vears (Leasehold tithe),
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Long-term leasehold rghts to land in Indonesia

As at 31 January 2018, a subsidiary in Indonesia |[PT Ingress Malindo Ventures), had the outstanding lomg-term
rights to land with net book values amounting to INR 44 812 million or Baht 105.0 million {(2017: INR
46,704 million or Baht 123.3 million).The Govemment of Indonesia granted the subsidiary the nght to build
on land in Indonesia for a period of 30 years, which will expire in 2026. During the leass term, the subsidiary
iz not required to pay rent annually. {The right to build is regarded as a right to ufilise and derive bensfit from
land in Indonesia (Right of Usage)). After a pericd of 30 years, the right to use such land may be extended,
with the first renewal to be for 20 vears, while subseguent renewals will be for 30 vears, If the subsidiary
wishes to renew the lease, it must follow legal procedures, including the payment of fees for the renewal and

use of the land to the government. However, if the subsidiary does not follow the legal procedures to seek

permission from the Government of Indonesia to use the land for business purposes, the right o use the land,

buildings and structures thereon will be returned to the Gowvernment of Indonesia.

The long-term leasehold Aghts to the land of the subsidiary are subject 1o several restrictions with which the
subsidiary must comply, including restrictions on the use of land to the purposes permitted by relevant
authorities, the transfer or sale of the lkeasshold rights to the land to other individuals or juristic persons, or the
uge of land as collateral for debt repayment, The wtilisation of land for these purpeses requires permission from
the authonties before proceeding in accordance with relevant regulations,

According to the Constitution of the Republic of Indonesia, the ownership of all lands in the country belongs
to the govemment, The law goveming the aght to occupy and use the land of Indonesia restricts the dghts of

ownership and use of land (Freehold land ownership) to individuals who have Indonesian nationality and

particular juristic persons organised under Indonesia under Indonesian law, such as government agencies,

state-run banks, agrculture or agriculture-related cooperatives, and organsations for religious and social calses
Business organisations, whether incorporated in or oulside Indonesia, can only seek approval from the

Giovernment of Indonesia for the right to use and derive benefit from land located in Indonesia (Right of usags).

15. Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions
The balance of bank owerdrafis and short-term loans from financial institutions as at 31 Januwary 2018 and 2017

are as follows:

(Uinit: Thousand Baht)

Interest rate Consolidated
(percent per anmum} financial statements
2018 2017
Bank overdrafls (Mote 7) MR 17.535 20112
Promussory noles - Baht MLR - 1.5 129941 149,841
Revoling credits - USD 12.05 - A7 564
Fevohing credits - Ringgit 521 - .70 191 467 152,803
FRevoling credits - Rupe 935 6,183 -
Bills payable and trust receipts - Ringgit 338 - 472, 549 100,506 30,8975
445642 101,485

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

Details of collateral of bank overdrafts and short term loans from financial institutions can be summarsed
as follows:

Company’s name Secured by
Ingress Autoventures Company Limited and The mortgage of certain the land with structures thereon
Fine Components (Thalland) Company Limited
Imgress Precision Sdn, Bhd, and
Ingress Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
PT Ingress Malindo Ventures

Guaranteed by Ingress Corporation Berhad [parent company)

The mortgage of certain the land with structures therson,
machines and equipment and guaranteed by Ingress
Corporation Berhad (parent company) and subsidiary's
directors

Imgress Autovenivees (India) Private Limited Subsidiany's directors
(Formerly known as “Ingress Mayvur Auto
Ventwres Pvi Lid.")

16. Trade and other payables
The balance of trade and other pavables as at 31 January 2018 and 217 are as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separale
financial statements financial statements
2018 2017 2018 2017
Trade pavables - related parties 2,952 1,314
Trade payables - unrelated parties 302,983 258,800
Other payables - related parfies 25808 132,310 GE3,062 02832
Other payables - unrelated parfies 01,814 129,405 1,701 25
Accrued expenses 29,046 42915 5521 2150
Total rade and other payvables 455,683 534,834 GEE,GE T05,007

17. Liabilities under hire-purchase and finance lease agreements
The balamce of lliabilities under hire-purchass and finance lease agreements as at 31 January 2018 and 2017

are as follows:
{Unit: Thousand Bahi)
Consolidated
financial statements
208 2017
Liabilites under hire-purchase and finance lease agresments 44 928 33,112
Less: Deferred interest expenses (4,636} 12.718)
Taotal 40292 249393
Less: Portion due within one year 111,643} 19.260)
Liabilites under hire-purchase and finance lease agresments
- net of current portion 28,649 20,133
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Liabilities under hire-purchase agreement
Hire-purchase payable consists of amount payabie upder varioss vehicle hire-purchase agraements, with
payments o be made over 3G - 60 monthly installments

Liabilities under finance lease agreements

The subsidiaries have entered info finance lesss agreements with various leasing companies for rental of
machinery for uss in their operations. Installments are paid on 8 monthly basis 60 periods and at the end of
the agresments, the subsidiaries have the opbion 1o purchase the machinery at prices specified n the
g reamants,

Fulure: imimimum lease payiments required under the hire-purchase agreements and the finance lease agresments
g5 at 31 January 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

iUnit; Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

Less than 1 year 1 - & years Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Future manemum lease paymsents 13,650 10,872 31,278 22240 44 828 33,112
Deferred interest expenses (2,007} {1,612} (2.629) [2.107) (636} {3,718}
Present value of future minemum
I payment 11,543 9,260 28,649 20,133 40,282 28,303

18. Long-term loans from financial institutions

The subsidiaries have long-term loan agreements with commercial banks a3 ab 31 January 2078 and 2077 as follows:

{Uni: Thousand Eat)
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Key restrictions of long-term loans from financial instilution are summansed below,

Subsidiaries’ name Key restriction
Fime Components {Thailand) Company - Maintaining the key financial ratios
Limited - Assignment of benefits from property insurance policy

- Restrictions on dividend payments, disposal of and creation
of ohligations over property, eto,
Ingress Industrial (Malaysia) Sdn, Bhd, - Restrictions on dividend payments, shareholding structure,
and creation of obligations over propery, ets,
Ingress Precision Sdn. Bhd, and - SBhareholding of Malaysian shareholders s al least
Ingres=s Technologies Sdn. Bhd. 51 percent.
- Restrictions on dividend payments, shareholding structure,
and creation of obligations owver proparty, etc.
PT Ingress Balindo Ventures - Restrictions on dividend payments, shareholding structure,
disposal of and creation of obligations with respect
o property, and additional indebtedness and capital

reducton, etc

18. Provision for long-term employee benefits
Provision for long-term emploves benefits, which is compensations on emplovees' retirement as at 31 January

2018 and 2017 are as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Conselidated Separate
financial statements fimancial statements
2018 2017 2018 2017
Provision for leng-term employee benefits at
beginning of year 25,903 26,299 BT DED
Additional of acquisition during the year 1,085 -
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 2,962 3260 117 185
Interest cost 1,403 1,165 ¥ 5
Past service costs and gains of losses on
seftherment - 32
Included in cther comprehensive income:
Actuaral [gain) koss arsing from
Demographic assumptions changes 329 - 36
Financial assumptions changes 3,268 [4.317) ] (BS5)
Experiance adjustments 1,824 1,339 18 117
Benefits paid during the year 394) {1.871) : (535)
Translation adjustment [BE0) ]
Provision for leng-term employee benefits at
end of year 35,510 254803 &3 ad vy

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

Line items in profit or loss under which long-term employes benefil expenses are recognised are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Bakhit)

Conselidated Separale
financial statemeants fimancial statements
For the year ended For the year ended
2018 2017 2018 2017
Cost of sales 3211 3.062
Selling and adminisirative expenses 1,154 1,385 124 180
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 4,365 4457 124 180

The Company and its subsidianes expect to pay Baht 2.3 million of long-term employes benefits during the
next year ({The Company only: Baht 0.4 million) (2017: Baht 1.5 million The Company only: 0.4).

A= at 31 January 2018, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term employes benefit is
13 - 20 vears (The Company onby: 13 years) (2017: 14 - 15 years) (The Company only: 14 years).

(Linit: Thousand Bakdt)

Conszolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
208 27 2ME 27
|percent per annum) {percent per annum) (percent per annum)} {(percent per annumj
Discount rate 270, 7.25, 750 3.20, 8.50 270 320
and 7.84 and 2,00
Futwre salary increasse rate  5.00, 5.50 and 10.00 500 and 10.00 5.00 L.00
Staff turmover rate 0.00 - 25.00 .00 - 30.00 1.00 1.00

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the long-term
employes benefit obligation as at 31 January 2018 and 2017 are summansed Delow;

{Linit: Thousand Baht)
As at 31 Jamnuary 2018

Conszolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1%
Discount rate (1.924) 2218 (36 41
Salary increase rale 2147 [1.504) 40 {35}
Increase 10% Decrease 1054 Increase 10% Decrease 10%4
Staff turmover rate i1.278) 14446 (4} 4
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(Unit: Thousand Bahit)
As at 31 January 2017

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Increase 1% __Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1%
Dizcount rate {1,740} 2,094 (23) ar
Salary increase rate 2,5 (1,730) 27 (23}
—Increase 108  _Decrease 10%  __ Increase 10% = _ Decrease 10%
Staff turmnover rate (1.417) 1,573 (:3) 3

20, Share capital

Between 31 July 2007 and 2 August 2017 the Company made an initial public offering of 317 million of its
existing ordinary shares and 262 million newly issued ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 each, at an
offering price of Baht 1.33 per share, amounting o Baht 421 million and Baht 348 million, respectively, The
Company has received full payment for the additional capital and registered the increase of its issued and
paid-up share capital from Baht 1,185 million (1,185 million ocrdinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 each) to
Baht 1,447 million {1,447 million crdinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 each) with the Ministry of Commerce
on 4 August 2017, The Stock Exchange of Thailand approved the 1,447 million ordinary shares with a par value
of Baht 1 each as listed securites, with trading permitted from 9 August 2007,

The Company incurred expenses relating to the share offering amounting to approximately Baht 5.6 million
(net of income tax of Baht 1.4 million), and these expenses were recorded as a deduction against share

premium.

2. Revaluation surplus
This represents surplus arising from revaluation of land and buildings. The surplus is amortized to retained
eamings on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives of the related assets,

Movements of revaluation surplus account for the year ended 31 January 2018 and 2007 are summarsed below:

(Linit: Thousand Bahit)
Consolidated financial statements

_2018_ _2m7_
Balance at begimning of year az1.313 327142
Add: Revaluation of assets during the year - 13,658
Less: Amortisation for the year (18,60} [19.488)
Balance at end of year 401,713 321,313

The revaluation surplus on land and buildings can neither be offsst against deficits nor used for dividend

payment.

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited

22, Statutory reserve

Purguant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act BE. 2535, the Company & reguired to set aside
a statutory reserve egual to al least 5 percent of its net profit after deducting accumulated deficit brought
foreeard (if amy} until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered share capital. The statutory reserve is not
available for dividend payment.

According to Section 1202 of the Thai Givil and Commercial Code, a subsidiary (incorporated under Thai Laws)
is required to sel aside a statutory reserve equal to at least 5 percent of 15 net profit each time the company
pays oul a dividend, untll such reserve reaches 10 percent of s regstered share capital, The statulory resenve
is not avallable for dividend payment,

23. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses classified by nature are as follows:
(Unit: Thousard Bakit)

Congsolidated Separate
finamcial statements financial statements
2018 2017 2018 2017
Raw materials and consumables used 1422853  1.295089 -
Changes in inventones of finished goods and
wark in progress 30,844 14,323} -
Salaries, wages and other emploves benefits 618,462 588,533 28,716 23,072
Depreciation and amortisation 300,008 318,810 755 T4
Repair and maintenance expenses 71,802 86,340 1,670 338
Rental expenses 42,7495 47,690 806 843
LHility expenses 57,075 59,217 261 =31
Travelling expenses 28,703 26,426 4,702 3818
Transportation expenses 53,838 50,558 -
Royalty fee 19,853 17,748 -

24. Income tax
Tax {income} expenses for the vears ended 31 January 2018 and 2017 were summarised below:

(Unit: Thousand Bahit)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

208 2017 2008 00 2017

Current income tax

Current income tax charge 19,676 25,403 - 716
Adjustment in respect of tax (income) expenses

of previcus year (748) 20,981 225 11,681)
Total current Income tax 18,828 56,474 225 6,035
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(Lnit Thousand Baht)

Congsohdated Separate
fimancial ststements financial statements
28 2007 2018 2017
Deferred tax
Adpustment In respect of {ax Income
of previous year (2075 162,110 [3.288) iy
Adpustment in respect of deferred tax
of pravious year {20,102) {44200 : -
Total deferred tax {22177 173,520 (3 .2848) 22

Tax (imcome] expenses reporied in the

statements of comprehensive insome

!3.219! !1T|D-!I-E'I !E.UEG:I 6,104

The amounts of inoome tax relating 1o each component of other comprehensive inoome for the yewrs ended
31 danuary 2008 and 2017 are as follows:

(Lnit: Thousand Baht)

Consoldated Saparate
fmancial statemenis financial statemants
2018 2017 2018 2007
Difesrred fax relaling 10 galns on revaluation
of assels - . -
Deferred tax relating to actuarial gains (losa) (502) 705 (12 (&)
(502) 05 (1) I5)

The reconciliation between accounting profit and tax {ncome) expenses are shown below:
(Uit Thougand Bakt)

Acoounting profit before Tax
Thai corporate income 1ax rale
Acoounting prodit befors tax
muftiplied by incoms tax rats
Adjustment in respect of tax (income)
expanses of previous year
Used tax losses, capital alowance and

reresimenl alowancs in the curment yeas,

on which deferred tax assets have not
beesan rRCOgniSed

Difference in fax rote i gQroup companies

Effecis of:

Promaotional privileges (Mote 25)

Mon-deductible expensss

Tax-sxampl mocome

Share of profit from investiment in associated
oI

Adjsstment of deferred tax of prevsous vear

CHhers

Total

Tax (income) expenses reported in the

statermant of comprefensive income

Corsmoldated Seperida
financial statements financial statemsnts
218 207 218 smy
144612 183,382 113,023 121176
2055 203 20% 20%
28833 A8.6T6 22606 24235
{748) 30,881 225 (1,681)
124725 (98.448) 1281
{1.409) (572 =
{5401} (6,538) T
T A2E 25,026 12 B3
- - [Piist o {16.385)
{800} 11.031) -
{20,102} (4410 -
1,333 {4.730) {4 {118
{17542} 12317 (27284)  (16.450)
[3.249) [17,048) [3,063) 6,704

The components of deferred fax assets and deferred tax labilities as af 31 January 2008 and 2017 are
(Uit Thougsand Baht)

as follows:

Deferred bix assets
Alloweancs for doubitful deb
Differences of depreciation for accounting

and tax purpose

Reduction of inventory to net realisabls valus

Provision for long-term employes bensfits
Unused tax losses
Unuised reimvestment allowsiice

Tatal

Consolidated Separate
firancial statements financial statermsenis
2018 2017 2018 2017
8873 8878 -

210 ag7 -
T 1.481 -
4 659 3,305 165 122
63 1,662 4654
331.254 271127 -
3521683 286,680 4,820 1249
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(Uit Thousand Baht)

Congsolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
218 2017 20148 2017
Deferred tax liabilities
Differences of depreciation for accounting
and tax purpose 105,249 59,716 -
Revaluation surplus on land and buildings 48,504 51,328 -
Liabilities under finance lease agresments 3147 3,064 -
Total 156,800 114,108 -

Az oal 31 January 2008, the subsidianes have unused tax losses otaling Baht 16 millien (2017 Baht 16 million).

Mo deferred tax assels have been recognised on these amounts as the management of the subsidianes believe
fulure taxable profits may not be sufficient to allow utilsation of the unused tax losses,

25. Promotional privileges
Ome subsidiary (Ingress Autoventures Company Limited) has received promotional privileges from the Board of
Investment for the manufacture of automotive components, pursuant to the promobion certificate as follows:

Description of Income tax Date of first
Item Ceertificate MNo. Diated products privilege (years) income derived
1. 2345(2)/2553 3 December 2010 Dwoor sashes ] 17 October 2011
2 5092(2)/2556 21 May 2013 Door sashes B 11 March 2013

Subject to certain imposed conditions, the privileges include exemptions from import duty on approved

machinery and raw materials, exemption from corporate income fax on profits from the promoted activities,

for a pericd of 8 yvears commencing from the date of the first sales, and decrease from corporate income tax
on profits from the promoted activities 50 percent of the nommal rate, for a perod of 5 vears commencing from
the date of expiration of exemplion

26. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the period (excluding other comprehensive income)
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the yvear,

Congsolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

£ns 2017 0 208 2017

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

(Thousand Baht) a7.803 164,041 116,086 115072
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in

Isse during the year 1215087  1,185380 1215087 1,185380
Earnings per share [Baht per share) 0.07 0.14 0.08 010

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

27. Dividend paid
Dividend Approved by Dividend paid Dividend per share
{Million baht) (Baht)

Dividend for the year 2017 The Annual General Meeting
of the shareholders on

26 April 2017 380 .03
First Interim dividend for the The Board of the Directors
year 2018 Meeting on 28 March 2017 56.8 0.05
Second Interim dividend for The Board of the Directors
the year 2018 bteeting on 14 December 2017 a7 6 003
Total dividends for 2018 1324 211

Dividend for the year 2016 The Annual General Meeting
of the shareholders on

31 May 2016 ar.e .03
Total dividends for 2007 ar.a 0.03

28, Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reports that are regularly
reviewsd by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about the allocation of resources
o the segment and assess s performance,

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing of the automotive components.
ks operations are carried on im Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and India. Segment performance is measured
based on operating profit or loss, on 8 basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss and
total assets in the financial statements, As a result, all of the revenues, operating profits and assets as reflected
in these financial statements pertain exclisively to the aforementioned reportable operating segment.

Revenue from extemal customers is based on locations of the customers for the year ended 31 January 2018
and 2017 as follows:
(Uit Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

_2018_ _207_
Revenue from external customers
Thailand 1.137 628 1.963.297
Malayszia 1.549,311 1.522. 405
Indonesia 188,045 230204
India 268837

2812 521 281 5,906
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Other non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets and wnallocated costs of business acguisition) as at
31 January 2018 and 2017 as follows:
[(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2018 2017
Mon-current assets
Thailand 935,280 1036129
Malaysia 1,628,129 1,584,512
Indonesia 182,392 225,508
Iz BT 244 30128
Total 2,823,045 2,876,367

Information aboul majer cusiomers
For the vear ended 31 January 2018, the Group has revenue from two major customers in amount of
Baht 982 million and Baht 542 million {2017: Baht 865 million and Baht 436 million derived from two major

customers).

29. Provident fund

The company and s subsidianes in Thalland and its employees in Thalland have jointly established a provident
fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act BE. 2530, Both the subsidianes and emplovees contribute o
the fund monthly, at the rate of 5 percent of basic salary, The fund, which is managed by Kasikom Securities
Fublic Company Limited, will be paid to employess upon termination in accordance with the fund rules, For the

year ended 31 January 2018, the company and its subsidiaries contfributed Baht 4 million to the fund {2017

Baht 4 million}.

The provident funds of the owerseas subsidiaries and their employees have been established in accordance

with each subsidianys policies and the law of s country of domicile
30, Commitments and contingent liabilities
301 Capital commitment

As at 31 January 2018 and 2017, the subsidiaries had capital commitments relate to the acquisitions of

machinery and equipment as follows:

{Linit: Million)
Consolidated financial statements
2018 _2017_
MYR 2 3
UsD i 1
[813] LT 3131
JPY 250 182
Total in Milfion Boht 130 113

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

30.2 Operating lease commitments
The Company and its subsidiares have entered into several lease agreements in respect of the lease of motor

vehicles and residences. The terms of the agreemants are generally between 1 and 5 years.

Future minimum lease payments required under these non-cancellable operating leases contracts as at
31 January 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
{Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated Saparate
fimancial statements financial statements

218 2017 2018 HAT

Payable:
In up to 1 year 10 8 2 1
In cover 1 and up to 5 years 4 L 2 -

30.3 Long-term service commitments

Three subsidianes (Ingress Autoventures Company Limited, Ingress Precision Sdn, Bhd, and PT Ingress Malindo
Ventures) have entered inte license agreement and technical assistance agreement with Katavama Kogyo
Con, Lid,, a corporate shareholder of that subsidiaries, Under the conditions of the license agreements, the

subsidiaries are to pay an annual royalty fee as stipulated in the agreemenis.

One subsidiary (Fine Components (Thailand) Company Limited) has entered into license agreement and
techinical assistance agreement with lwamoto Co., Lid., a corporate shareholder of that subsidiary. Under the
conditions of the license agreement, the subsidiary is to pay an annual rovalty fee as stipulated in the
agreements,

304 Guarantees
Az at 31 January 2018, two local subsidiaries have outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 10 million
{2017: Baht 9 million) issued by banks on behalf of the subsidiares in respect of certain performance bonds as

reguired in the normal course of business

3. Fair value hierarchy
Az at 31 January 2008 and 2017, the subsidiares had the assels and labilites that were measured at fair value
ugng different levels of inputs as follows:
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and other receivables, resiricted bank deposits, bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial instifutions.

(Uirit: Million Bahi) =
i
o i 5 o
Comsolidated Financial Staiemants E = ; = R
] i i
Asoal 31 Janusry ; = a g 2 % E = E
Leved 1 Level 2 Luvel 3 Tatal L & o
18 i) I 2018 207 2014 2017 2018 17 5_ E o
Assets measured at falr value o g o~
:5 P {Fp ] e - = |
Irveaineent properiies - - - - 43 42 w3 4z tE 4 ¥ : E - E
Praperty plant and equipment . % - - 1298 1268 1,228 1286 w g E =z g 3 R 3
Leahilitias for which fair valus @ o
are disclosed T
Long=larm lonns - - - - A5 1,065 805 1,066 P
" ) H  eg- 5 8 2 plg
Liabilities under hee-purchase and N H 1':"_ o
findnce lsese agreements = S - - 40 20 40 an o g ?é
i j— E o
. 580 =3
32. Financial nstruments
E ‘L‘\. P
o . - F ! [ [ i
*lEls | B § g
321 Financial risk management 'E B E
= = =
The Company and its subsidanes financial instruments; as defined under Thal Accounting Standard No. 107 E E = D o - g @ -
. . - = o3 Wl oy e
Finangial Instruments: Disclosurg and Presentations™, principally comprse cash and cash equivalents, trade E a a s o 34 - 3
a

P i (]
trade and other payables, dividend payable o related party, lizbilfities under hire-purchase and finance |lease Z -E ﬂ ¥ ™3 ',‘_,? % E
agreaments and long-term loans. The financial risks associsted with these financial instrumentz and how they E ]
are managed is described below. E % = | = 3 ' ﬁ E
Creait rsk o R ; g o
: : , 5
The Company and its subsidiaries are expossd o oredit rsk primarily with respect to rade and other ﬁ EJ o E
receivatdes: The Company and s subsidiares manage the sk by adopting appropriate eredit control policies E uwh
and procedures and therefore do not expect o incur maternal fmancial logses. The maximum exposwre to E = g R : o ﬁ E
credit nsk is imited to the carrying amounts of frade and other receivables as stated in the statement of E
financial position. el g = g L 1R
g ol —| =
b | —
£
interest rate sk £ % s i@ @ = =] =
= =T L o — il o
The Company and 1% subsidiares’ exposure o interest rate nisk redates primanly to their cash at banks, bank o g Ll

overdrafts and shor-term boans from finanslal nstitutions, labibtes under hire-purchase and inance lease E E
agreements and ong-teem oans Most of the Company and ifs subsidiaries” financial assels and liabilitles bear - E 5 tr3 ﬁ E
] i
floating imterest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate. g ﬁ # E 2 :§ = E- %
I - = &
i 4 A ESEE
Sigmnificant financial assets and liabilities classified by typs of interest rats are summarised in the table below, A 3 ] z .E E E E %
=4 ¥ i3 o
with those financial assets and fabilities that carmy fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity g E -g 2 K| lﬁ E D E = E g
i = E 7 E
date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date, L P 3 -E ® & 'E 4 =5
fcsk fciasszi
] 5 & m E -, E ¥ 0 & £
s 3 =i & 5 - E ] b
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Separated financial statements
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J01H 2017

207

Fxxed mlerest rates
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Mola 7

15
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383

1

Cash and caeh sguivalents
Trade and oltver recewvabies

107

107
1156

ara

115

383

10

Financial lHabilithes

it 2]l 05

705

BHY

Trade and ciher payabies

T4

[=1515]

BES

Forelgn currency risk
Subnsldanes exposure to forelgn currency sk anses mainly from trading transactions and acquisition of

meachines that are denominated in foreign cwmencies.

Az at 31 January 2078 and 3017, the balances of finencial assets and liabilities denominated in forssgn currencies

ware summarnised below.

Consoldated fnancial statemants

Foreign currancy Financial assats Financial liabilities fwworage exchanga rato
2018 2017 2016 2017 2018 2017
{ BTl { Millian)| AR {Rdilsan) (Baht per 1 Bosign currensy i)
YR - - i - B514 759634
LIS o4 03 o1 24 31.3mg2 351808
JBEY - - 43,0 BT 0,283 anag
[4]=] - - a4.F - 0,524 (G

Saoparate financial statoments

Foreign currency Financkal asaals Finaneial liabalties Averade exchange rate
018 017 sk 2017 208 £017
{ Ikt iMithon| i Minng {bdiluon) {Baht par 1 foraign cuarency und)
YR 378 B2 7.2 .2 B.O514 78554
(4] a2 - - - 31.4762 3R 1804

322 Fair values of financial instruments
Thie estimeated falr vale of financial nstruments, In somparzon with the camang amounts as at 31 January 2018

and 2017 are as follows:
iUrit: Billion Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2018 2017
Carmylng Carrying
A Fair value armount Faur valoe
Financial liabilitics
Long-term loans T4 BOS 1.073 1,066
Lisbdlitizs under hire-purchase and
finance lease agresments 40 A4 28 a0

The methods and assumplions used by the Company and ts subsidiaries in estimating the fair value of

financial mstruments are as follows:

a} For firancial assets and liabilities which have short-tsrm maturty, including cash and cash eguivalents, frads
and other receivables, restricted bank deposits. bank overdrafis and short-tsrm lpans from financial nstitutions,
frade and other payables, dividend payable to related party and labillbes under hire-purchase and finance lease
agresments, their camying amounts o the statement of financial position approximate thair foir value
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B} For long-term leans carmying interest approximate (o the market rate, thelr carrying amounts in the statement
of financial position approximates thelr fair value, The fair values of other long-term loans are determined by
calculating the present value of expected future cash flows, with a discount rate that approximates the current

market rate for loans with similar terms and conditions.

33. Capital management
The primary objective of the Company and its subsidianes’ capital management are o ensure that it has
appropriate capital structure in order to support 15 business and maximise shareholder value,

Az oal 31 January 2008 and 2007, the Group's debl-to-eguity ratio were summansed below,

(LIt Millian Bakt)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2018 2017 2018 2017
Debt-to-eguity rate 0.7a: 1.00:1 0421 0.56:1

34, Events after the reporting period
Omn 28 March 2018, the Board of Directors’ Mesting of the Company had the following resclutions.

a) To approve the increase register share capital of Ingress Autoventures (India) Private Limited (Formerly
known as “Ingress Mayur Auto Ventures Private Limited”) from INR 20 million (2,989,875 ordinary shares of
INR 10 each) to INR 93 milllon (9,278,222 ordinary shares of INRE 10 each) by issuing 278,347 ordinary shares
of INR 10 each

B) To propose the payment of a final dividend for the year 2017 to its shareholders at the rate of
Baht 0.025 per share, calculated based on the 1447 million registered and paid-up shares, or a total of
Baht 38 million, for approval by the 2018 Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders. The Company
will record the dividend in the first guarter of the year 2018 and pay the dividend in the second guarter of the
wear 2018

Ingress Autoventures Company Limibed
On 27 March 2018, the Board of Directors’ meeting of Ingress Autoventures Company Limited passed a
resolution o propese the payment of a final dividend for the year 2007 1o its shareholders at the rate of

Baht 10 per share, calculated based on the 3 million registered and paid-up shares, or a total of Baht 30 million,

for approval by the 2018 Annual General Meeting of the subsidiary’s shareholders. The meeting also passed
a resolution to propose the payment of an interim dividend for the year 2018 to its shareholders at the rate of
Baht 10 per share, or a total of Baht 30 million. Swch subsidiary will pay and record the dividend in the second
quarter of the year 2018

m Ingress Industrial (Thalland) Public Company Lmited

Ingress Technologies Sdn. Bhd,
On 23 March 2018, the Board of Directors’ meeting of Ingress Technologies Sdn. Bhd, passed a resolution o

propose the payment of a final dividend for the year 2017 to its shareholdsrs at the rate of MYR 019 per share,

calculated based on the 20 million registered and paid-up shares, or a total of MYR 3.75 million, for approval
by the 2018 Annual General Meeting of the subsidiary’s shareholders. Such subsidiary will record the dividend
im the first quarter of the year 2018 and pay the dividend in the second guarter of the year 2018,

35, Approval of financial statements
These financial statements were authonsed for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 28 March 2018,
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INGRESS

Ingress Industrial (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Mo. 94141 UM Tower, Floor 14™
Suanluang Bangkok 10250, Thailand
Tel :{+B52) 710 - 9544 - 45

FAX : (+662) 719 - BE47
www.ingress.co.th

Lint A1, Ramkharmhasng Boad,

Thea investor can find mora infermation of the Coempany fram the Company’s Annual Ragistration
Statannent {Form 58-1) at www, sac.orth or the Company's wabsite
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